
CITYOF MENDOTA
ooCantaloupe Center Of The World"

VICTOR MARTINEZ
Mayor

LIBERTAD "LIBERTY" LOPEZ
Mayor Pro Tem

JOSE ALONSO

JOSEPH R. RTOFRIO

OSCAR ROSALES

AGENDA
MENDOTA CITY COUNCIL
Regular City Council Meeting
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

643 QUINCE STREET
March 14,2023

6:00 PM

CRISTIAN GONZALEZ
City Manager

JOHN KINSEY
City Attorney

The Mendota City Council welcomes you to its meetings, which are scheduled for the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of every
month. Your interest and participation are encouraged and appreciated. Notice is hereby given that Council may
discuss and/or take action on any or all of the items listed on this agenda. Please turn your cell phones on vibrateloff
while in the council chambers.
Any public writings distributed by the City of Mendota to at least a majority of the City Council regarding any item on
this regular meeting agenda will be made available at the front counter at City Hall, located at 643 Quince Street
Mendota, CA 93em, during normal business hours, 8 AM - 5 PM.

ln compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals requiring special assistance to participate at this
meeting please contact the City Clerk at (559) 655-3291 or (559) 577-7692. Notification of at least forty-eight hours
prior to the meeting will enable staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting.

Si necesita servicios de interpretaci6n para participar en esta reuni6n, comuniquese con la Secretaria de la Ciudad al
(559) 655-3291 o (559) 577-7692 entre las 8 a.m. y las 5 p.m. de lunes a viernes. La notificaci6n de al menos
veinticuatro horas antes de la reuni6n permitir6 al personal adoptar las disposiciones necesarias para garantizar su
participaci6n en la reuni6n.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

FLAG SALUTE

INVOCATION

FINALIZE THE AGENDA

1. Adjustments to Agenda

2. Adoption of final Agenda

PRESENTATIONS

City Council to recognize the AMOR Wellness Center for its continued service to
the community.

Fresno Regional Workforce Development Board and Workforce Connection to
present information on the services that the organization provides.

City Council Agenda March 14,2023

1

2

1

643 Ouince Street Mendota, Calilornia 93640

Telephone: (559) 655-3291 Fax: (559) 655-4064

TDD/[TY 866-735-2919 (English) TDD/[TY 866-833-4703 (Spanish)

ci.mendota.Ga.us

The City ol Mendota is an equal opportunity prouider and employer



CITIZENS' ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS
At this time, members of the public may address the City Council on any matter not listed on the agenda involving
matters within the jurisdiction of the City Council. Please complete a "request to speak" form and limit your comments
to THREE (3) MINUTES. Please give the completed form to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. All speakers
shall observe proper decorum. The Mendota Municipal Code prohibits the use of boisterous, slanderous, or profane
language. All speakers must step to the podium and state their names and addresses for the record. Please watch
the time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND NOTICE OF WAIVING OF READING

1. Minutes of the regular City Council meeting of February 28,2023

2 Notice of waiving of the reading of all resolutions and/or ordinances introduced
and/or adopted under this agenda.

CONSENT CALENDAR
Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion and one
vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. lf discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the
Consent Calendar and will be considered separately.

FEBRUARY 28,2023 THROUGH MARCH 8, 2023
WARRANT LIST CHECK NOS. 52948 THROUGH 53013
TOTAL FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL - $455,862.37

Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 23-12, directing staff to proceed with the
purchase of a cap and cable assembly replacements from MuniQuip, LLC for the
Lozano Lift Station.

Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 23-13, approving an amendment to the
agreement with the Superior Court of California, County of Fresno, for the provision
of Available Court Connection and Electronic Support Services.

Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 23-14, approving the Consultant Services
Agreement and Proposal from Provost & Pritchard Engineering Group, lnc. for
Land Surveying & Engineering Services for the Sth & Quince Street Reconstruction
Project and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents.

Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 23-15, conditionally approving Exclusive
Facility Use Permit Applications submitted by organizations for the exclusive use
of City of Mendota facilities tor 2023.

Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 23-16, approving an amendment to the
employment contract of the City Manager.

Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 23-17, authorizing the City Manager to
purchase two vehicles for the Public Works Department in an amount not to
exceed $120,000.00 plus taxes and fees and execute all documents necessary to
effectuate the purchases.

1

2

3.

4

5

6.

7

2City Council Agenda March 14,2023



8 Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 23-'18, ratifying and extending the
Proclamation of Local Emergency issued by the Director of Emergency Services
on March 9,2023, to address rain and flooding throughout the City.

BUSINESS

Council discussion and consideration of Resolution No. 23-19, confirming its
intention to approve an amendment to the contract between the Board of
Administration, California Public Employees' Retirement System and the City of
Mendota; and Ordinance No. 23-01, authorizing an amendment to the contract
between the Board of Administration, California Public Employees' Retirement
System and the City of Mendota.

a. Receive report from Director of Administrative Seryices Lekumberry
b. lnquiries from City Councilto staff
c. Mayor opens the floor to receive any comment from the public
d. Council provides input and considers Reso/ution No. 23-19 for adoption
e. Councilconsrders introduction and waiver of the first reading of Ordinance

No. 23-01 and sefs a public hearing for March 28, 2023

Council discussion and consideration of potential solutions to the perceived
proliferation of illega! food vending operations throughout the City.

a. Receive report from City Manager Gonzalez
b. lnquiies from Councilto staff
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public
d. Counciltakes action as appropiate

Council discussion and consideration of Resolution No. 23-20 establishing the
fee schedule for the use of the William Robert Johnston Municipal Airport.

a. Receive repoft from City Manager Gonzalez
b. lnquiies from Councilto staff
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public
d. Council provides input and conside,rs Reso/ution No. 23-20 for adoption

4. Counci! discussion and consideration of its participation and attendance at various
external events.

a. Receive repoft from City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia
b. lnquiries from Councilto staff
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public
d. Counciltakes action as appropiate

1

2

3

3City Council Agenda lVlarch 14,2023



DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

1. Finance Director
a) Grant Update

2. City Engineer
a) Update

3. City Attorney
a) Update

4. City Manager

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

1. Council Member(s)

2. Mayor

ADJOURNMENT

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

l, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby declare that the
foregoing agenda for the Mendota City Council Regular Meeting of March 14,2023, was
posted on the outside bulletin board located at City Hall, 643 Quince Street, on Friday,
March 10, 2A23, at 6:00 p.m.

Celeste Cab Clerk

4City Council Agenda l/arch 14,2023



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  1    February 28, 2023 

  
MINUTES OF MENDOTA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 

Regular Meeting    February 28, 2023 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Martinez at 6:00 PM.  
 

Roll Call 
 
Council Members Present: Mayor Victor Martinez, Mayor Pro Tem Libertad 

“Liberty” Lopez, Councilors Jose Alonso and Oscar 
Rosales 

 
Council Members Absent:  Councilor Joseph Riofrio 
 
Flag salute led by Mayor Pro Tem Lopez 
 
Invocation led by Police Chaplain Robert Salinas  
 
FINALIZE THE AGENDA 
 
1. Adjustments to Agenda. 
 
2. Adoption of final Agenda. 
  
A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to adopt the agenda, seconded by Councilor 
Alonso; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Riofrio). 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
1. Fresno County Economic Development Corporation to present information on the 

services the organization provides. 
 
Mayor Martinez introduced the item and Sherry Neil, Darian Galindo, Tiffany Louk, Spencer 
Bremer, Mai See Vang, and Will Oliver with Fresno County Economic Development 
Corporation (“EDC”) presented information on services provided by their organization. 
 
Discussion was held on the presentation given by Fresno County EDC.  

 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  2    February 28, 2023 

CITIZENS ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS 
 
Ofelia Ochoa – stated she is happy that new businesses in the City have been beneficial 
to residents; stated that she gathered signatures to be given to either State Senator Anna 
Caballero, Fresno County Supervisor Brian Pacheco, or Assembly Member Esmeralda 
Soria in the hopes of obtaining a stop light at Highways 180 and 33 near Burger King; and 
thanked staff for their work with the all-inclusive playground at Rojas-Pierce Park.  
 
Discussion was held on the comments made by Ms. Ochoa; on traffic issues near the 
schools; the roundabout project at the intersection of Highways 180 and 33 near Burger 
King; the need to educate community members on how to properly use roundabouts; the 
gravity of the homelessness issue in the City; and on the upcoming Town Hall meeting 
planned for late March/early April.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND NOTICE OF WAIVING OF READING 

 
1. Minutes of the special and regular City Council meetings of February 14, 2023. 
 
2. Notice of waiving of the reading of all resolutions and/or ordinances introduced 

and/or adopted under this agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to approve items 1 and 2, seconded by Mayor 
Pro Tem Lopez; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Riofrio). 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
1. FEBRUARY 15, 2023 THROUGH FEBRUARY 21, 2023 

WARRANT LIST CHECK NOS. 52896 THROUGH 52947 
TOTAL FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL = $619,162.78 

 
2. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 23-10, supporting and urging the approval 

and funding of the grant application submitted by the City of Huron to the California 
Public Utilities Commission for a Local Agency Technical Assistance Grant.   

  

A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to approve items 1 through 2, seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Lopez; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Riofrio).   
 
BUSINESS 
 
1. Council discussion and consideration of its participation and attendance at various 

external events. 
 
Mayor Martinez introduced the item and City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia provided the report.  
 
Discussion was held on the report provided by City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia, including the 
possibility of the City Council as a whole providing direction regarding which items are 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  3    February 28, 2023 

addressed at external events; the importance of the City Council Members who attend 
events reporting back to the entire City Council on their experience; which City Council 
Members would attend which events; and on the issue of trash being illegally dumped in 
the City.  
 
City Council consensus was reached to direct staff to conduct additional research for the 
item for discussion at a future City Council meeting.  
  
2. Council discussion and consideration of the status of the William Robert Johnston 

Municipal Airport. 
 
Mayor Martinez introduced the item and City Manager Gonzalez provided the report.  
 
Discussion was held on the report provided by City Manager Gonzalez.  
 
Mayor Martinez opened the floor to receive any public comments. 
 
Ofelia Ochoa stated that the City Council should obtain community input on what should 
be done with the William Robert Johnston Municipal Airport (the “Airport”). 
 
Discussion was held on the comments made by Ms. Ochoa and on possible uses for the 
Airport.  
 
Mayor Martinez closed the floor to public comments. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to provide direction to staff to look for alternative 
uses for the William Robert Johnston Municipal Airport and inform the Caltrans Aeronautics 
Division that the Airport will not be repaired, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Lopez; 
unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Riofrio).  
 
3. Council discussion and consideration of Resolution No. 23-11, approving a pilot 

teleconferencing participation program for members of the public to enable greater 
access to public meetings. 

 
Mayor Martinez introduced the item and Assistant City Attorney Castro provided the report.  
 
Discussion was held on the report provided by Assistant City Attorney Castro, and the 
requirements for City Council members to participate remotely and the possibility of live 
streaming City Council meetings, including possible streaming platforms. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to direct staff to research and implement a 
YouTube channel to live stream City Council meetings, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Lopez; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Riofrio).  
 
 
 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  4    February 28, 2023 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
1. Animal Control, Code Enforcement, and Police Department 

a) January Monthly Reports 
 
Chief of Police Smith provided the monthly report for the Animal Control department.  
 
Discussion was held on the report provided by Chief Smith, including the poor condition of 
the dog pound. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Lopez left the Council Chambers and returned at 7:41 p.m. 
 
Chief Smith provided the monthly report for the Code Enforcement department, including 
monthly statistics. 
 
Discussion was held on the report provided by Chief Smith.  
 
Chief Smith provided the monthly report for the Police Department, including monthly 
statistics.  
 
Discussion was held on the report provided by Chief Smith; the importance of public safety 
in the City, including the need to increase participation in the Public Safety Subcommittee 
meetings and gun issues being faced by the Community.   
 
2. City Attorney  

a) Update 
 
Assistant City Attorney Castro provided an update on the upcoming AB 1234 Ethics 
Training. 
 
3. City Manager 

a) Update 
 
City Manager Gonzalez provided an update on the upcoming Pool Park Subcommittee 
meetings, and the joint meeting with Mendota Unified School District (“MUSD”) Board of 
Trustees.  
 
Discussion was held on the update provided by City Manager Gonzalez; items to be 
discussed at the joint meeting with MUSD, including public safety items and their active 
shooter protocol; issues with the Casa de Rosa apartments; issue of multiple renters in 
households; sidewalk vendors in the City; the City’s citation system and the need to revisit 
fees for illegal trash dumping; animal control issues; and food sale fundraisers held by 
community members.  
 
 
 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  5    February 28, 2023 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
1. Council Member(s) 
 
Councilor Alonso thanked everyone for their attendance at the Mendota Police Station 
Groundbreaking Ceremony; thanked City staff for their work; announced that he was 
elected to be a Delegate for the California Democratic Party; and thanked Congressman 
John Duarte for flying a United States flag at the United States Capital in his honor.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Lopez commented on the arrest of a community member; the upcoming 
Town Hall meeting and the possibility of holding it March 29th from 6 p.m. – 8 p.m.; 
requested that Chief Smith remind his officers not to text while driving; commented on the 
AMOR Wellness Gala event, including the possibility of City representatives attending; 
mental health workshops being held at the AMOR Wellness Center; and an upcoming 
Central Valley Leadership meeting.  
 
Discussion was held on the comments made by Mayor Pro Tem Lopez. 
 
Councilor Rosales commented on Congressman John Duarte and the progress being 
made at City parks. 
 
2. Mayor 
 
Mayor Martinez commented on a meeting that he recently had with State Senator Anna 
Caballero; an upcoming meeting with Fresno County Supervisor Brian Pacheco; progress 
being made on projects throughout the City; and thanked everyone for their work.  
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

Pursuant to subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54957 
Title:  City Manager 

 
At 8:49 p.m. the Council moved into closed session.  
 
At 9:32 p.m. the Council reconvened in open session and Assistant City Attorney Castro 
stated that in regard to item 1 of the closed session, there was no reportable action. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no more business to be brought before the Council, a motion for adjournment was 
made at 9:32 p.m. by Mayor Martinez, seconded by Councilor Alonso; unanimously 
approved (4 ayes, absent: Riofrio). 
 
_______________________________   
Victor Martinez, Mayor 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  6    February 28, 2023 

  
ATTEST: 
  
_______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

02/28/2023 - 03/08/2023

CK# 52948 - 53013

Check Date Check Number Check Amount Vendor Name Cash Account Invoice Description

February 28, 2023 52948 43.19$                          ACE TROPHY SHOP GENERAL

(2) NAME PLATES (PLANNING COMMITTEE)

February 28, 2023 52949 26,797.95$                   AETNA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY GENERAL

MEDICAL INSURANCE FOR MARCH 2023

February 28, 2023 52950 44.48$                          AGRI VALLEY IRRIGATION, INC. SEWER

(15) GASKET RINGS WWTP

February 28, 2023 52951 324.00$                        BSK ASSOCIATES WATER, SEWER

GENERAL EDT WEEKLY TREATMENT&DISTRIBUTION 01/17/23, WW 

WEEKLY GRAB SAMPLE BOD,TDS 01/24/23

February 28, 2023 52952 1,954.01$                     CORBIN WILLITS SY'S INC. GENERAL

CURT PROJECT 005781 ADDING 2 NEW BILLING CODES, ENHANCEMENT 

AND SERVICE FEES JANUARY 2023 MOMS

February 28, 2023 52953 8,236.50$                     STANTEC CONSULTING SERV. SEWER

GROUNDWATER SAMPLING&REPORTING 3RD&4TH QTR REPORT

February 28, 2023 52954 1,207.58$                     EINERSON'S PREPRESS WATER, SEWER, REFUSE 

10,000 UTILITY BILLING PAPER

February 28, 2023 525955 33,287.65$                   ENGIE SERVICES U.S. INC. WATER, SEWER

YEAR 2 MV ,OM FEES SOLAR MAY 2022- APRIL 2023, COM EMERGENCY 

PV REPAIR PERIOD 5/1/22-4/30/23

February 28, 2023 52956 1,874.68$                     HACH COMPANY WATER

KIT, CL17 PRE-ASSY MAINTENANCE, FIELD SERVICE, &TRAVEL

February 28, 2023 52957 776.25$                        iCAD INC. WATER

PRISON SITE SERVICE WORK AND TRAVEL

February 28, 2023 52958 215.95$                        JAM SERVICES, INC STREETS

(1) SOLAR PANEL KIT FOR CROSSWALK 2ND & I ST

February 28, 2023 52959 58.85$                          JORGENSEN & COMPANY GENERAL, SEWER, STREETS 

(36) GLASSES LI COMET,(14) GLASSES LI SILVER 

February 28, 2023 52960 287.02$                        MENDOTA 1 SMOG WATER, SEWER

2012 FORD PICKUP- SMOG INSPECTION, 2016 FORD- F250: LICENSE 

PLATE BULB HOLDER,WIRE

February 28, 2023 52961 90,014.76$                   MID VALLEY DISPOSAL, INC REFUSE

SANITATION CONTRACT SERVICES JANUARY 2023

February 28, 2023 52962 220.84$                        MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT STREETS 

(1)SPROCKET RUBBER,(1)WHEEL RUBBER- SWEEPER

February 28, 2023 52963 1,304.08$                     OFFICE DEPOT GENERAL, WATER, SEWER

(1)CARDSTOCK PAPER, (3) WALL CALENDAR 2-SIDED, (1) PRINTER HP 

M610D

February 28, 2023 52964 310.00$                        RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE AC WATER, SEWER

(2) BOOT REPLACEMENT PER MOU (J.SALOMON, A. GONZALEZ)

February 28, 2023 52965 3,065.00$                     RRM DESIGN GROUP GENERAL, WATER, SEWER

MENDOTA POLICE STATION CONSTRUCTION DOC- 02/17/23

February 28, 2023 52966 1,994.39$                     SIGNMAX GENERAL

(20) 8X8 MENDOTA 80TH SQUAD CARD DECALS, (4) 30X30 STOP AHEAD 

SIGN, (4) 18X6 ALL WAY SIGN

February 28, 2023 52967 2,124.53$                     Dept. 32 2002513996 GENERAL, WATER, STREETS

(4) FLOOD LIGHTS, RUG, (4) 48" 16W DIM LED, (5) WOOD DIGGING SHOVES 

PD GROUNDBREAKING

February 28, 2023 52968 200.00$                        UNITED HEALTH CENTERS GENERAL

(1) PRE-EMPLOYEMENT PHYSICAL EXAM

February 28, 2023 25969 145.62$                        UNIFIRST CORPORATION GENERAL, WATER, SEWER

(3) MATS, (3) BOWL CLIPS, WET MOP,DRY MOP & (100) TERRYCLOTHS

March 1, 2023 52970 120,209.00$                 CITY OF MENDOTA PAYROLL GENERAL

PAYROLL TRANSFER FOR 02/13/23-02/26/23

March 3, 2023 52971 262.15$                        ALERT-0-LITE STREETS, GENERAL

RAPID CONCRETE PAIL HYDRAULIC (5) STREETS & PARKS

March 3, 2023 52972 1,411.02$                     AT&T MOBILITY GENERAL

POLICE DEPARTMENT CELL PHONE SERVICES - 1/12/23-2/11/23

March 3, 2023 52973 169.20$                        MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE EQUIPMEN STREETS

(2) CONVEYOR SIDE DEFLECTOR, (1) CONVEYOR DRAG SKIRT

March 3, 2023 52974 1,288.19$                     OFFICE DEPOT GENERAL,WATER,SEWER

(1) TONER 147A BLACK,(1) FILE CABINET FRONT OFFICE, (2) BRIGHT 

WHITE #65, OFFICE SUPPLIES: PAPER,WRITING PADS, PENS

March 3, 2023 52975 25,653.80$                   PG&E GENERAL,WATER,SEWER,STREET

CITYWIDE UTILITIES 01/07/23-02/06/23

March 3, 2023 52976 4,500.00$                     PROVOST & PRITCHARD GENERAL, SEWER, WATER

CITY ENGINEERING- RETAINER JANUARY 2023

March 3, 2023 52977 341.22$                        R.G. EQUIPMENT COMPANY GENERAL

(6) BLADES, (4)TRIMMER LINE SPOOL



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

02/28/2023 - 03/08/2023

CK# 52948 - 53013

March 3, 2023 52978 1,656.47$                     SIGNMAX STREETS

(10) SQUARE POST 10FT, (10) SQUARE POST 30 IN. ANCHOR (10) 30" HIP 

STOP SIGN RESHEET FOR STREETS

March 3, 2023 52979 287.37$                        TRIANGLE ROCK PRODUCTS,LLC STREETS

ST 3/8 CM SC3000 AGG&ASPHALT QTY:3.02 POTHOLES

March 3, 2023 52980 81.23$                          NORMA DIAZ WATER

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR DIA0025

March 3, 2023 52981 85.90$                          MEDARDO ORELLANA WATER

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR ORE0027

March 7, 2023 52982 2,146.00$                     A-1 NATIONAL FENCE GENERAL

COMPLETION OF ROJAS PIERCE PARK SOCCERFIELD FENCE

March 7, 2023 52983 267.29$                        ADT SECURITY SERVICES GENERAL, WATER, SEWER

SECURITY SERVICES 03/13/23 - 04/12/23 CITY HALL & DMV

March 7, 2023 52984 137.90$                        ALERT-0-LITE STREETS

(1) 250' W/G UF CABLE STREET LIGHTS

March 7, 2023 52985 503.75$                        ARAMARK GENERAL, WATER, SEWER

PUBLIC WORKS UNIFORM SERVICES FOR 02/02/23, 02/09/23, 02/16/23, 

02/23/23

March 7, 2023 52986 14.03$                          AUTOZONE, INC. GENERAL

(1)CABIN AIR FILTER (PD)

March 7, 2023 52987 450.00$                        BAR PSYCHOLOGICAL GROUP GENERAL

POST PRE-EMPLOYMENT PSYCHOLOGICAL S.YAGITOUBI (PD)

March 7, 2023 52988 542.47$                        CALIFORNIA BUSINESS MACHINES GENERAL,WATER,SEWER

COPIER CONTRACT SERV. BASE- MARCH 2023, USAGE FEB 23

March 7, 2023 52989 259.31$                        CAMCO GENERAL

(1) SPOT SPRAYER 25 GAL

March 7, 2023 52990 342.80$                        CHEMSEARCH SEWER

CHERRY FLOW 5 GL FEBRUARY 2022 (LOZANO LIFT STATION)

March 7, 2023 52991 61.30$                          COLONIAL LIFE GENERAL

LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUM FOR FEBRUARY 2023

March 7, 2023 52992 1,123.61$                     EINERSON'S PREPRESS GENERAL, WATER,SEWER

12,000 LEFT HAND WINDOW ENVELOPES #10 BLK INK& SH

March 7, 2023 52993 45.75$                          EMPLOYEE RELATIONS WATER, SEWER

(1) COPY OF REPORT, (1) CREDIT REPORT,(1) EDUCATION

March 7, 2023 52994 243.33$                        FASTSIGNS GENERAL

(2) 30"X60" POLE BANNERS HONORING VETERANS W/PHOTOS

March 7, 2023 52995 504.00$                        FRESNO MOBILE RADIO INC. GENERAL

(36) POLICE DEPARTMENT RADIOS SERV FEBRUARY 2023

March 7, 2023 52996 678.75$                        iCAD INC. WATER

SERVICE AGREEMENT 25802, AND TRAVEL

March 7, 2023 52997 560.09$                        JON'S FLAGS & POLES INC GENERAL

(2) 3X5 MARINE CORPS OUTDOOR FLAG, (3) 5X8 CA FLAG

March 7, 2023 52998 5,981.83$                     SIMPLOT GROWER SOLUTIONS GENERAL, SEWER

(25) GAL ENVY, (120) OZS TREEVIX, (30) GAL ENVY (50) OZS TREEVIX

March 7, 2023 52999 163.65$                        LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES GENERAL

MEMBERSHIP DUES FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2023

March 7, 2023 53000 302.98$                        LEAF GENERAL,WATER,SEWER

(2) KYROCERA COPIER LEASE PAYMENT 03/15/2023

March 7, 2023 53001 6,163.47$                     LIGHTHOUSE ELECTRICAL INC SEWER, WATER

SERVICE AGREEMENTS, 6741,6715,6716,7179

March 7, 2023 53002 5,400.00$                     PATRICIA LYONS GENERAL,WATER,SEWER

TRANSLATING & INTERPRETING SERVICES FOR 2/01/23 - 2/01/24

March 7, 2023 53003 1,003.27$                     METRO UNIFORM GENERAL

(1) RAZOR BODY ARMOR- J.GURROLA

March 7, 2023 53004 184.46$                        MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT STREETS

(2) LED UTILITY LAMP PAR 36 REPLACE

March 7, 2023 53005 2,033.77$                     NORTHSTAR CHEMICAL WATER

(643) GAL SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE- 12.5% MIL A

March 7, 2023 53006 3,958.07$                     PLATT ELETRIC SUPPLY STREETS

(16) IMT LED SPECIFIER GRADE, (3) LFU FUSEHOLDER, (3) LEBAAK 

FUSEHOLDER, (1) BELT, (3) ATA ORMF10L4K

March 7, 2023 53007 68,888.23$                   PROVOST & PRITCHARD GENERAL,WATER,SEWER

PROF SERV JANUARY- 2020 HOUSING ELEMENT PROG REPORT, 

CONSTRUCTION WELL 10, ROJAS PARK IMPROVEMENTS. 

March 7, 2023 53008 290.00$                        SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY AIR WATER,SEWER

23/24 ANNUAL PERMIT TO OP: DIESEL- FIRED STANDBY GENERATOR



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

02/28/2023 - 03/08/2023

CK# 52948 - 53013

March 7, 2023 53009 21,945.00$                   SIERRA DISPLAY, INC. GENERAL

60% DEPOSIT FOR CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS

March 7, 2023 53010 535.00$                        TECH MASTER PEST CONTROL GENERAL,WATER,SEWER

PEST CONTROL SERVICE FOR DIV. BLDS, PUBLIC WORKS, PD, DOG 

POUND, WWT OFFICE ROJAS PARK,  02/28/23

March 7, 2023 53011 8.21$                            THARP'S FARM SUPPLY GENERAL

TRACTOR #46- (1) CYLINDER PIN

March 7, 2023 53012 611.44$                        TRIANGLE ROCK PRODUCTS,LLC STREETS, WATER

(2) 3/4IN CL 2 BASE,  AGG&ASPHALT QTY:16.27 & 16.61

March 7, 2023 53013 79.73$                          VALLEY FARM SUPPLY STORES INC. GENERAL, STREETS 

(2) STIHL CHAIN LOOP (1) STIHL CHAIN

455,862.37$                 



1 

 

AGENDA IT EM – ST AFF REPORT  

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

VIA:  JERONIMO ANGEL, CHIEF PLANT OPERATOR 

SUBJECT: DIRECTING STAFF TO PROCEED WITH THE PURCHASE OF A CAP AND CABLE 
ASSEMBLY REPLACEMENTS FROM MUNIQUIP, LLC FOR THE LOZANO LIFT STATION 

DATE: MARCH 14, 2023 

 

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-12, directing staff to proceed with the purchase 
of a cap and cable assembly replacements from MuniQuip, LLC for the Lozano Lift Station? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Mendota (the “City”) maintains its Lozano Lift Station (“LLS”) that pumps raw 
sewage into the City’s forced sewer main which then transfers raw sewage to the City’s Waste 
Water Treatment Plant. Certain power control equipment of the LLS has deteriorated to a point 
where the equipment’s control wires exposed and pose a significant threat to the existing control 
panel of the LLS. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Certain power control equipment of the LLS has deteriorated to a point where the equipment’s 
control wires exposed and pose a significant threat to the existing control panel of the LLS. If the 
LLS were to fail as a result of the condition of the failing power control equipment, there is a 
high possibility that the failure would result in raw sewage overflowing at the LLS and pose a 
threat to the public and environment. 
 
Staff has obtained a quote from MuniQuip, LLC for the replacement of the necessary equipment 
for the LLS, and for a spare part to maintain on hand should the issue arise again. The total cost 
for the replacement and the spare parts is $4,856.21. The equipment is a proprietary product and 
is only made and sold by MuniQuip, LLC. Funding has not been previously allocated for the 
equipment, but due to the emergency nature of the situation, staff requests that the City Council 
authorize the funding from the Sewer Fund to cover the costs of the equipment. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
The total fiscal impact would be $4,856.21 from the Sewer Fund. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council to adopt Resolution No. 23-12, directing staff to proceed 
with the purchase of a cap and cable assembly replacements from MuniQuip, LLC for the 
Lozano Lift Station. 
 



2 

 

Attachment(s): 
1. Quote submitted by MuniQuip, LLC 



MUNTWTB LLC
Your Source For Wa[er .tWastewater Equipnrent

DATE: March 03, 2023

TO: City of Mendota

ATTN: Jerry

RE: Lozono LS - Cap Cable Replacement

QUOTE #MQ23-10T227 RL

Dear Rich,

We are pleased to offer the following items for your consideration:

,l/
Yu*

1/ ll/
NOTES:

Lead time 2-3 weeks

Freight is F.O.B. factory. W
Quotation is valid for 60 days. S
This proposal is subject to the attached MuniQuip Terms & Conditions and/or the Terms and Conditions of the
individual companies MuniQuip has quoted.

Best Regards,

MuniQuip, LLC

Taylor Hansell

Project Manager

209-489-0073

Thansel I @ muniquipllc,com

2024 Opportunity Drive # 130, Roseville, CA 95678, (915)787-5641 office, (916) 787-5642fax

www.muniquipllc.com

ITEM

PART

NO. DESCRIPTION / awl UNIT PRICE

LINE

AMOUNT

1

24218-
r27508L

Cap and Cable assembly- 2 CABLES, 1 POWER \
7X2.5M M2+4X0.75MM2, t CONTROL

4X1.5MM2,82 FEET Sz,133.oo 54,266.00
\")

SUBTOTAL S+,z6s.oo

TAX
(7.975%) s34o.2t

Freight
(Est.l S25o.oo

TOTAL USD s4,956.21

Iv

JS



MUNTQITB LLC
Yor-rr Source For Water' &-Was[ervater Equipnrent

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Acceptance of this Order is final only upon written approval by MuniQuip, L.L.C. 1"tvtQ').

2. The total sale price, as set forth on the first page hereof, including all tax, is payable by Purchaser as

follows: One-Hundred percent (100%) within 30 days of notice of availability for shipment by the
manufacturer. Any amount not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of tBYo per annum.
Purchaser agrees to pay reasonable attorney's fees and all collection costs incurred by MQ if payment is

not timely received. All payments by Purchaser shall be made without offset of deduction.

3. All prices are FOB source shipping point. MQ is not responsible for any loss during transit. Breakage or
shortage claims arising from shipments shall be made by the Purchaser directly against the carrier.
Purchaser will accept shipment within five (5) days of notice of availability from MQ.

4. Purchaser understands and acknowledges that the Equipment is not manufactured by MQ and that MQ
offers no representations or warranties of any kind or nature with respect to the Equipment.
spEclFtcAtLy, MQ DoEs NoT oFFER ANY EXPRESS OR IMPL|ED WARRANTY OF DESCRIPTION, TITLE, OR

coNDtTtoN oF UEN oR sEcuRrTv TNTERESTS, MERCT{ANTABILIW, OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICUTAR

PURPOSE. The only warranties with respect to the Equipment shall be those offered by the
manufacturer, if any. The sole obligation of MQ shall be to assist Purchaser in connection with the
presentation of any warranty claim to the Manufacturer. lf applicable, MQ will assign all manufacturers'
warranties to Purchaser or end user. Purchaser shall be responsible for all costs and labor for installation
and start-up assistance of the Equipment.

5. MQ shall not be responsible for any loss, claim or damages resulting from any force majeure, including

but not limited to strikes, accidents, unavailability of labor or materials, acts of God, weather conditions,

inability of carrier to deliver, legislative, administrative, or executive law, order or requisition of any

governmental entity, or any event not under the direct control of MQ. Any delay in delivery from the
Manufacturer caused by a force majeure or action or inaction of the Manufacturer or carrier shall not be

the responsibility of MQ.

5. ln no event shall MQ be responsible for any liquidated, consequential or special damages arising from
breach of this Agreement any delay of delivery or any other cause.

7, Purchaser shall pay any sales, excise, or other government charge payable by MQ to federal, state or local

authorities. Any such taxes now or hereafter imposed upon sales or shipments will be added to the
purchase price. Purchaser agrees to reimburse MQ for any such tax or to provide MQ acceptable tax

exemption certificates.

8. Purchaser may not cancel this Order without the prior written consent of MQ, and in any event Purchaser

shall be responsible for all costs, charges and fees caused by such cancellation, including labor expended,

material procured, and reasonable overhead expenses applicable thereto.

2024 Opportunity Drive # 130, Roseville, CA 95678, (915)787-5541 office, (9L6)787-5642fax

www.muniquipllc.com



MUNTQIB LLc
Your Sourrce For Waterr (Wastewater Equiprnent

9. Any failure of MQto insist upon the performance of any term or condition of this Agreement or any prior
quotations, agreements, orders, and acceptances or orders related thereto shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of such term, condition, or any other right in the future.

10. The provisions hereof shall apply to all addendums or changes hereto although not specifically set forth
therein, all of these terms and conditions being considered to be additional terms and conditions to any
such addendum or change.

11. Purchaser agrees to inspect the Equipment immediately upon delivery. Any claim for shortages must be

made to MQ within ten (10) days after shipment or shall be deemed waived. Any other claim by

Purchaser, other than warranty claims against the manufacturer, shall be made within thifi (30) days

after receipt of shipment, and if not made, shall be waived.

12. Purchaser agrees to provide and maintain adequate insurance against loss of or damage to the Equipment
until the purchase price to MQ has been fully paid. Any loss or damage to the Equipment after transfer of
possession shall not relieve the Purchaser from obligations under this Agreement.

13. This Agreement represents the final and complete understanding of the parties with respect to all terms

and conditions of the sale of Equipment as contemplated hereby, and there are no other representations,
promises or agreements, whether written or oral, made in connection herewith. Purchaser specifically
understands and acknowledges that no agent, employee or representative of MQ has the authority to or
has made any other representation, promise or agreement except as specifically set forth in this
Agreement. No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and executed by

both parties.

14. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of California, and any action arising

hereunder shall be commenced in that state.

2024 Opportunity Drive # 130, Roseville, CA 95678, (915) 787-5641 office, (915) 787-5642fax

www. m u-Elq.Uj.pll c.-go m



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 23-12 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA DIRECTING 
STAFF TO PROCEED WITH THE PURCHASE 
OF A CAP AND CABLE ASSEMBLY  
REPLACEMENTS FROM MUNIQUIP, LLC FOR  
THE LOZANO LIFT STATION 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota (“City”) Lozano Lift Station (“LLS”) pumps raw 
sewage into the City’s forced sewer main, which transfers the raw sewage to the City’s 
Waste Water Treatment Plant (“WWTP”); and    
 
 WHEREAS, certain power control equipment for the LLS has deteriorated to a 
point where its control wires are exposed and it poses a significant threat to the existing 
control panel of the LLS; and 
 

WHEREAS, this situation poses a threat to the public and environment because 
there is a high possibility that the failure would result in raw sewage overflowing at the 
LLS if the LLS were to fail as a result of the this failing power control equipment; and 

  
WHEREAS, City staff have obtained a quote from MuniQuip, LLC, for the 

replacement of the necessary LLS equipment, and for a spare part to maintain on hand 
should this issue arise again; and 

 
WHEREAS, the equipment is a proprietary product that is only made and sold by 

MuniQuip, LLC; and 
 
WHEREAS, funding as not been previously allocated for this purchase, but given 

the emergency nature of this item, it is imperative that the equipment be acquired. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Mendota hereby directs City staff to proceed with purchasing the necessary cap and 
cable assembly replacements for the LLS from MuniQuip, LLC and authorizes the 
allocation of funding from the Sewer Fund to cover those costs.  
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Victor Martinez, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 14th day of March, 
2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:            
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA, CITY CLERK 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH THE SUPERIOR COURT OF 
CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF FRESNO FOR THE PROVISION OF AVAILABLE COURT 
CONNECTION AND ELECTRONIC SUPPORT SERVICES 

DATE: MARCH 14, 2023 
  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-13, approving an amendment to the agreement 
with the Superior Court of California, County of Fresno for the provision of Available Court 
Connection and Electronic Support Services? 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2020, the City of Mendota (“City”) entered into an agreement with the Superior Court of 
California County of Fresno (“Court”) for the provision of Available Court Connection and 
Electronic Support Services (“ACCESS”). ACCESS allows the Court and the City to provide 
remote traffic court services to Mendota residents and those from surrounding communities 
every Tuesday from 8:30am-12pm (excluding holidays and Court closures). Through ACCESS, 
a City staff member facilitates the court proceedings at City Hall and Court staff provide 
assistance remotely. The Court compensates the City up to a certain amount for facilitating the 
services. Every year, since the adoption of the initial agreement, the City Council has considered 
and approved agreement amendments to extend the term of ACCESS. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The existing agreement will expire on June 30, 2023. The proposed agreement amendment 
extends the term of the contract to June 30, 2024. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There will be a maximum amount of $5,000 of revenue as a result of the City assisting with 
ACCESS. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-13, approving an amendment to 
the agreement with the Superior Court of California, County of Fresno for the provision of 
Available Court Connection and Electronic Support Services. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution No. 23-13 
2. Exhibit “A” - Agreement Amendment 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 23-13 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING  
AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT 
WITH THE SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, 
COUNTY OF FRESNO, FOR THE PROVISION 
OF AVAILABLE COURT CONNECTION 
AND ELECTRONIC SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mendota (“City”) entered into an 
agreement (the “Agreement”) for the provision of Available Court Connection and 
Electronic Support Services (“ACCESS”) with the Superior Court of California, County of 
Fresno (“Court”), effective January 1, 2020; and  
 
 WHEREAS, since the inception of ACCESS, the City Council has annually 
approved amendments to the Agreement to extend the term of the Court’s partnership 
with the City and 
 
 WHEREAS, the existing Agreement is scheduled to expire on June 30, 2023; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Court desires to amend the agreement again to extend the term 
of the Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota’s residents and the community at large will be 
better served by the extension of the ACCESS agreement.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota, that the City of Mendota hereby approves the amendment to the ACCESS 
agreement with the Court in substantially the form presented as Exhibit “A” to this 
Resolution.     
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Mendota 
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the amendment, and all other 
documentation necessary to effectuate the same, subject to such reasonable 
modifications, revisions, additions, and deletions as he may approve prior to execution, 
said execution to provide conclusive evidence of such approval. 
  
 
       _____________________________ 
       Victor Martinez, Mayor 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 14th day of March, 
2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A 



SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
STANDARD AMENDMENT                                                                                                   
 AGREEMENT NUMBER 
 10-2019-MEND-3 
1.

 
All capitalized terms have the meanings given to them in Agreement 10-2019-MEND-O, 
between City of Mendota (“Contractor”) and Superior Court of California, County of Fresno 
(“Court”). 
 
 2. The Parties agree to Amend the Agreement as follows: 
 

A. Contract cover page, Section 2 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with: 
 

This Agreement becomes effective as of January 1, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) and 
expires on June 30, 2024. 

 

3.   All terms and conditions of the original Agreement remain in full force and effect.   
 

  
COURT’S SIGNATURE 

 
CONTRACTOR’S SIGNATURE 

   JBE’S NAME 
 
 
 
    Superior Court of California, County of Fresno 
 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME  (if Contractor is not an individual person, state whether 
Contractor is a corporation, partnership, etc., and the state or territory where 
Contractor is  organized) 

       

 City of Mendota 
 

      BY (Authorized Signature)                                                     

   
    BY (Authorized Signature)                                                           

  

   PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING  
 
  Craig Downing, Assistant Court Executive Officer  
 

 PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 
 

 Cristian Gonzalez, City Manager 
  
      DATE 

 
    DATE 
 

     ADDRESS 
 

    Accounts Payable 
    1100 Van Ness Avenue 
    Fresno, CA  93724 

     ADDRESS 
        
       City of Mendota 
       643 Quince Street 
       Mendota, CA  93640 

  



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: NANCY BANDA, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: APPROVING THE CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT AND PROPOSAL FROM 
PROVOST & PRITCHARD ENGINEERING GROUP, INC. FOR LAND SURVEYING & 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE 5TH & QUINCE STREET RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
AND AUTHORIZES THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 

DATE: MARCH 14, 2023 
  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-14, approving the Consultant Services 
Agreement and Proposal from Provost & Pritchard Engineering Group, Inc. for Land Surveying 
& Engineering Services for the 5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project and authorizes the 
City Manager to execute all necessary documents? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Mendota (the “City”) has been awarded $767,753.00 in Surface Transportation 
Block Grant (“STBG”) funding for the construction of the 5th & Quince Street Reconstruction 
Project (the “Project”) which includes reconstructing the asphalt pavement from 5th Street from 
Quince to Derrick Ave (SR 33) and Quince Street from 5th Street to 6th Street. 
 
ANALYSIS 
5th Street is a Major Collector in the downtown core of the City that connects State Route 33/ 
Derrick Avenue to State Route 180/Oller Street. Along 5th Street is Our Lady of Guadalupe 
Church, Washington Elementary School, and residential housing. 5th Street pavement is in a 
failed condition (PCI of 11). The Project will reconstruct the asphalt pavement of 5th Street 
between Derrick Avenue and Quince Street utilizing full depth reclamation with cement treated 
base (FDR-C); this technique has been successfully utilized on 6th Street, 8th Street and, most 
recently, 5th Street between Quince Street and Oller Street. Concrete curb and gutter will be 
replaced to facilitate upgrades to curb ramps, valley gutters and drive approaches that are in poor 
condition or not complaint with current accessibility codes. The street will be restriped to include 
a two-way left turn lane and bike/parking lane to reduce travel lane widths and calm traffic. The 
project will improve the profile of 5th Street across Quince Street to significantly reduce the 
“dip” that is currently a hinderance to general vehicular traffic and first responders. 
 
Quince Street connects 5th Street to 6th Street and is a perimeter street of Washington Elementary 
School. Quince Street pavement is also in a failed condition (PCI of 11). The asphalt pavement 
from 5th Street to 6th Street will also be reconstructed utilizing FDR-C. The curb and gutter will 
be replaced to facilitate upgrades to curb ramps and valley gutters. 
 



2 

 

This Project will continue the reconstruction of 5th Street that extended from Oller Street (SR 
180) to Quince Street and which was completed in 2020.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $1,275,000.00. The City was awarded $797,753.00 
in STBG funds for the construction contract (CON) costs of 5th Street. The City will utilize their 
STBG Lifeline for the 11.47% match of these STBG funds ($91,502.00). The City will utilize 
other local transportation funding sources (primarily Gas Taxes) to pay for the cost of surveying, 
engineering, environmental clearances (PE/ROW); construction engineering and testing (CE); 
and the construction cost of Quince Street (CON) since Quince has a local functional 
classification and is therefore ineligible for Federal Funds (non-participating costs of 
construction contract.)  
  
This project will not impact the General Fund. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-XX, approving the Consultant 
Services Agreement and Proposal from Provost & Pritchard Engineering Group, Inc. for Land 
Surveying & Engineering Services for the 5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project and 
authorizes the City Manager to execute all necessary documents. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution No. 23-14 
2. Exhibit “A” – Consultant Services Agreement 
3. Exhibit “B” - Proposal 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 23-14 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
THE CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
AND PROPOSAL FROM PROVOST & PRITCHARD 
ENGINEERING GROUP, INC. FOR LAND SURVEYING 
& ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE 5th &  
QUINCE STREET RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO  
EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota (the “City”) has been awarded $706,251.00 in 
competitive Surface Transportation Block Grant (“STBG”) funds and $91,502.00 in 
STBG Lifeline funds for the construction of the 5th & Quince Street Reconstruction 
Project (the “Project”) which includes pavement reconstruction and upgrades to curb 
ramps, valley gutters, and alley approaches; and 
 
 WHEREAS, construction of the Project is programmed on the Federal 
Transportation Improvement Program (“FTIP”) for Federal Fiscal Year 2023-2024 and is 
planned for Spring 2024; and 
 
 WHEREAS, with City Council Resolution No. 19-84, the City has agreed to meet 
project deadlines under Assembly Bill 1012; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to retain the City Engineer, Provost & Pritchard 
Engineering Group, Inc. (the “Contractor”), to provide land surveying and engineering 
services necessary to prepare construction-ready bid documents and submit the 
Request for Authorization to Caltrans for the federal funding for construction of the 
Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor has submitted a Consultant Services Agreement and 
Proposal that is acceptable to the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the Consultant Services Agreement and Proposal submitted by Provost & 
Pritchard Engineering Group, Inc., are hereby approved in substantially the forms 
attached hereto as Exhibits “A” and “B,” respectively, and that the City Manager, or his 
designee, is hereby authorized to executive all documents required to effect each 
agreement.  
 
       ______________________________ 
       Victor Martinez, Mayor 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 14th day of March, 
2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 



Project Manager: MSO Prepared By: MRS 
 

  
286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 
(559)449-2700 
FAX (559)449-2715 
www.ppeng.com  
 
 

CONSULTANT 
SERVICES 

AGREEMENT 
 

CSA No:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Client City of Mendota  Proposal No.  
 
Attention Cristian Gonzalez  Telephone (559) 655-3291 x105 
 
Bill To City of Mendota  Fax (559) 655-4064 
 
Billing Address 643 Quince Street  E-Mail cristian@cityofmendota.com 
 
City, Zip Code Mendota, CA 93640    
 
Project Title 

5th & Quince Street 
Reconstruction Project  Location Mendota, CA 

 
Description of Services:  Please refer to the attached proposal dated March 7, 2023, “Land Surveying & 
Engineering Services 5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project.” 
 

The provisions set forth below and on the following paragraphs 1 through 42 are incorporated into and 
made a part of this Agreement.  In signing, the Client acknowledges that they have read and approved all 
such terms and hires Provost & Pritchard Engineering Group, Inc., dba Provost & Pritchard Consulting 
Group, (Consultant) to perform the above described services. 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

Client and Consultant agree that the following terms and conditions shall be part of this agreement: 
1. In providing services under this Agreement, the Consultant shall perform in a manner consistent with 

that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing 
under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same or similar locality.  The Consultant makes 
no warranty, express or implied, as to its professional services rendered under this Agreement. 

2. Client acknowledges that Consultant is not responsible for the performance of work by third parties 
including, but not limited to, the construction contractor and its subcontractors. 

3. Client agrees that if Client requests services not specified in the scope of services described in this 
agreement, Client will pay for all such additional services as extra services, in accordance with 
Consultant's billing rates utilized for this contract.  

DOCUMENTS 
4. Client acknowledges that all reports, plans, specifications, field data and notes and other documents, 

including all documents on electronic media, prepared by Consultant (collectively Work Product) are 
instruments of service which shall remain the property of Consultant and may be used by Consultant 
without the consent of Client. Consultant shall retain all common law, statutory law and other rights, 
including copyrights.  Consultant grants Client a perpetual, royalty-free fully paid-up, nonexclusive and 
irrevocable license to copy, reproduce perform, dispose of, use and re-use the Work Product in 
connection with the Project, in whole or in part, and to authorize others to do so for the benefit of Client.  
Client acknowledges that its right to utilize Work Product pursuant to this agreement will continue only 
so long as Client is not in default, pursuant to the terms and conditions of this agreement, and Client 
has performed all its obligations under this agreement. 

http://www.ppeng.com/


City of Mendota  March 7, 2023 
5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project  Page 2 of 6 

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

5. Client agrees not to reuse Work Product, in whole or in part, for any project other than the project that 
is the subject of this agreement. Client further agrees to waive all claims against Consultant resulting 
in any way from any unauthorized changes or unauthorized reuse of the Work Product for any other 
project by anyone on Client’s behalf. Client agrees not to use or permit any other person to use versions 
of Work Product which are not final and which are not signed and stamped or sealed by Consultant. 
Client shall be responsible for any such use of non-final Work Product. Client hereby waives any claim 
for liability against Consultant for use of non-final Work Product. If a reviewing agency requires that 
check prints be submitted with a stamp or seal, those shall not be considered final for purposes of this 
paragraph. 

6. In the event Client (1) makes, agrees to, authorizes, or permits changes in Work Product, or (2) makes, 
agrees to, authorizes, or permits construction of such unauthorized changes, which changes are not 
consented to in writing by Consultant, or (3) does not follow recommendations prepared by Consultant 
pursuant to this agreement, resulting in unauthorized changes to the project, Client acknowledges that 
the unauthorized changes and their effects are not the responsibility of Consultant. Client agrees to 
release Consultant from all liability arising from such unauthorized changes, and further agrees to 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless Consultant, its officers, directors, employees and subconsultants 
from and against all claims, demands, damages or costs, including attorneys' fees, arising from such 
changes.  

7. Under no circumstances shall delivery of Work Product for use by the Client be deemed a sale by the 
Consultant, and the Consultant makes no warranties, either express or implied, of merchantability and 
fitness for any particular purpose. In no event shall the Consultant be liable for indirect or consequential 
damages as a result of the Client’s unauthorized use or reuse of the Work Product.  

8. The Client is aware that differences may exist between electronic files delivered and the printed hard-
copy construction documents. In the event of a conflict between the signed construction documents 
prepared by the Consultant and electronic files, the signed sealed hard-copy documents shall govern. 

LIMITATIONS 
9. Consultant makes no representations concerning soils or geological conditions unless specifically 

included in writing in this agreement, or by amendments to this agreement. If Consultant recommends 
that Client retain the services of a Geotechnical Engineer and Client chooses to not do so, Consultant 
shall not be responsible for any liability that may arise out of the making of or failure to make soils or 
geological surveys, subsurface soils or geological tests, or general soils or geological testing.  

10. Client acknowledges that, unless specifically stated to the contrary in the proposal’s description of 
services to be provided, Consultant's scope of services for this project does not include any services 
related in any way to asbestos and/or hazardous or toxic materials. Should Consultant or any other 
party encounter such materials on the job site, or should it in any other way become known that such 
materials are present or may be present on the job site or any adjacent or nearby areas which may 
affect Consultant's services, Consultant may, at its option, suspend or terminate work on the project 
until such time as Client retains a qualified contractor to abate and/or remove the asbestos and/or 
hazardous or toxic materials and warrant that the job site is free from any hazard which may result from 
the existence of such materials.  

INDEMNIFICATION 
11. To the fullest extent allowed by law, Consultant will indemnify and hold harmless, but shall have no 

duty to defend Client, its officers. directors, employees and agents (collectively, the "Client 
lndemnitees") from, for and against any and all claims, demands, damages, losses. expenses. liabilities 
and penalties arising out of or relating to the Project, but only to the extent caused by the negligent or 
other wrongful acts or omissions of Consultant, its subconsultants, or any person or entity for whose 
acts or omissions any of them are responsible, or by the failure of any such party to perform as required 
by this Agreement. To the fullest extent allowed by law, Client will indemnify and hold harmless, but 
shall have no duty to defend Consultant and its officers, directors, employees and agents from, for and 
against any and all claims, demands, damages, losses, expenses, liabilities and penalties arising out 
of or relating to the Project, but only to the extent caused by the negligent or other wrongful acts or 
omissions of Client or any person or entity for whose acts or omissions it is responsible, or by the failure 
of any such party to perform as required by this Agreement. The obligations and rights of this Section 
are in addition to other obligations and rights of indemnity provided under this Agreement or applicable 
law. 



City of Mendota  March 7, 2023 
5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project  Page 3 of 6 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

FINANCIAL 
12. All fees and other charges due Consultant will be billed monthly and shall be due at the time of billing 

unless specified otherwise in this agreement. If Client fails to pay Consultant within sixty (60) days after 
invoices are rendered, Consultant shall have the right in its sole discretion to consider such default in 
payment a material breach of this entire agreement, and, upon written notice, Consultant's duties, 
obligations and responsibilities under this agreement may be suspended or terminated for cause 
pursuant to Sections 26 through 31. In such event, Client shall promptly pay Consultant for all 
outstanding fees and charges due Consultant at the time of suspension or termination including all 
costs and expenses incurred in the performance of services up to suspension or termination.  

13. Consultant shall not be liable to Client for any costs or damages that may result from the termination 
or suspension of services under this agreement due to Client’s failure to pay Consultant invoices in 
accordance with the terms of this paragraph.  In the event that Consultant agrees to resume terminated 
or suspended services after receiving full payment of all late invoices, Client agrees that time schedules 
and fees, as applicable, related to the services will be equitably adjusted to reflect any delays or 
additional costs caused by the termination or suspension of services. 

14. In all cases where the proposal calls for payment of a retainer, that payment shall be made by Client to 
Consultant prior to commencement of services under this agreement. Upon receipt of retainer payment, 
the Consultant shall commence services as provided for under this Agreement.  Unless otherwise 
provided for in the project proposal, such retainer shall be held by Consultant throughout the duration 
of the contract, and shall be applied to the final project invoice, and to any other outstanding AR, 
including late payment charges, on the project.  Any amount of said retainer in excess of the final 
invoice and other outstanding AR shall be returned to the Client within 30 days of issuance of the final 
project invoice. 

15. Client agrees that all billings from Consultant to Client will be considered correct and binding on Client 
unless Client, within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of such billing, notifies Consultant in writing 
of alleged inaccuracies, discrepancies, or errors in billing.  In the event of a dispute over any billing or 
portion of billing, Client agrees to pay the undisputed portion of any billings in accordance with the 
payment terms set forth in Section 18.  

16. Client agrees to pay a monthly late payment charge, which will be the lesser of one and one half percent 
(1-1/2%) per month or a monthly charge not to exceed the maximum legal rate, which will be applied 
to any unpaid balance commencing thirty (30) days after the date of the billing.  Client acknowledges 
that payments applied first to unpaid late payment charges and then to unpaid balances of invoices.   

17. In the event Consultant's fee schedule changes due to any increase of costs such as the granting of 
wage increases and/or other employee benefits to field or office employees or any taxes or fees 
imposed by local, state, or federal government on consultants’ fees during the lifetime of this 
agreement, the new fee schedule shall apply to all subsequent work on time-and-materials contracts. 

18. If payment for Consultant's services is to be made on behalf of Client by a third party lender, Client 
agrees that Consultant shall not be required to indemnify the third party lender, in the form of an 
endorsement or otherwise, as a condition to receiving payment for services.  Client agrees to reimburse 
Consultant for all collection agency fees, legal fees, court costs, reasonable consultant staff costs and 
other expenses paid or incurred by Consultant in the event that collection efforts become necessary to 
enforce payment of any unpaid billings due to Consultant in connection with the services provided in 
this agreement.   

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
19. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, the aggregate liability 

of the Consultant under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, tort, strict liability or 
any other legal theory, will not exceed the total amount of Consultant's compensation for 
performing services under this Agreement or $50,000, whichever is greater, however this 
limitation of Consultant's liability does not apply to third-party claims, or to the Client's 
reasonable attorneys' fees and expert witnesses' fees and litigation expenses arising out of or 
related to such third-party claims for which Consultant is liable. 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
20. In an effort to resolve any conflicts or disputes that arise regarding performance under this agreement 

by either party, Client and Consultant agree that all such disputes shall be submitted to nonbinding 
mediation, using a mutually agreed upon mediation services experienced in the resolution of 
construction disputes.  Unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, such mediation shall be a pre-



City of Mendota  March 7, 2023 
5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project  Page 4 of 6 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

condition to the initiation of any litigation.  The parties further agree to include a similar mediation 
provision in their agreements with other independent contractors and consultants retained for the 
project and require them to similarly agree to these dispute resolution procedures.  This provision shall 
not be interpreted to restrict the right of either party to file an action in a court of law, in the County of 
Fresno, State of California, having appropriate jurisdiction or to preclude or limit the Consultant’s right 
to record, perfect or to enforce any applicable lien or Stop Notice rights.   

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
21. If the scope of services contained in this agreement does not include construction phase services for 

this project, Client agrees that such construction phase services will be provided by Client or by others. 
Client assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the contract documents and for construction 
observation and supervision and waives any claim against Consultant that may in any way be 
connected thereto. In addition, Client agrees to indemnify and hold Consultant harmless from any loss, 
claim, or cost, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of defense, arising or resulting from the 
performance of such services by other persons or entities and from any and all claims arising from the 
modification, clarification, interpretation, adjustments or changes made to the contract documents to 
reflect changed field or other conditions, except for claims arising from the negligence or other wrongful 
acts of Consultant, its employees, its subconsultants, or any other person or entity for which Consultant 
is responsible. 

22. Client agrees to include provisions in its contract with the construction contractor to the effect that in 
accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the construction contractor will be required 
to assume sole and complete responsibility for job site conditions during the course of construction of 
the project, including safety of all persons and property, and that this requirement shall apply 
continuously and not be limited to normal working hours. Neither the professional activities of 
Consultant nor the presence of Consultant or its employees or subconsultants at a construction site 
shall relieve the contractor and its subcontractors of their obligations, duties and responsibilities 
including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, sequence, techniques or procedures 
necessary for performing, superintending or coordinating all portions of the work of construction in 
accordance with the contract documents and applicable health or safety requirements of any regulatory 
agency or of state law.  

23. Client agrees to require its contractor and subcontractors to review the plans, specifications and 
documents prepared by Consultant prior to the commencement of construction phase work. If the 
contractor and/or subcontractors believe there are deficiencies, conflicts, errors, omissions, code 
violations, or other deficiencies in the plans, specifications and documents prepared by Consultant, 
contractors shall notify Client so those deficiencies may be corrected or otherwise addressed by 
Consultant prior to the commencement of construction phase work.  

24. If, during the construction phase of the project, Client discovers or becomes aware of changed field or 
other conditions which necessitate clarifications, modifications or other changes to the plans, 
specifications, estimates or other documents prepared by Consultant, Client agrees to notify Consultant 
and, at Client’s option, retain Consultant to prepare the necessary changes or modifications before 
construction activities proceed.  Further, Client agrees to require a provision in its construction contracts 
for the project which requires the contractor to promptly notify Client of any changed field or other 
conditions so that Client may in turn notify Consultant pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph. 

25. If, due to the Consultant's error, omission or negligence, a required item or component of the Project is 
omitted from the Consultant's construction documents, the Consultant shall not be responsible for 
paying the cost required to add such item or component to the extent that such item or component 
would have been required and included in the original construction documents. The Consultant will not 
be responsible for any cost or expense that enhances the value of the Project. 

SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 
26. If the Project or the Consultant’s services are suspended by the Client for more than thirty (30) 

consecutive calendar days, the Consultant shall be compensated for all services performed and 
reimbursable expenses incurred prior to the receipt of notice of suspension. In addition, upon 
resumption of services, the Client shall compensate the Consultant for expenses incurred as a result 
of the suspension and resumption of its services, and the Consultant’s schedule and fees for the 
remainder of the Project shall be equitably adjusted. 

27. If the Consultant’s services are suspended for more than ninety (90) days, consecutive or in the 
aggregate, the Consultant may terminate this Agreement upon giving not less than five (5) calendar 
days’ written notice to the Client. 



City of Mendota  March 7, 2023 
5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project  Page 5 of 6 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

28. If the Client is in breach of the payment terms or otherwise is in material breach of this Agreement, the 
Consultant may suspend performance of services upon five (5) calendar days’ notice to the Client. The 
Consultant shall have no liability to the Client, and the Client agrees to make no claim for any delay or 
damage as a result of such suspension caused by any breach of this Agreement by the Client. Upon 
receipt of payment in full of all outstanding sums due from the Client, or curing of such other breach 
that caused the Consultant to suspend services, the Consultant shall resume services, and there shall 
be an equitable adjustment to the remaining project schedule and fees as a result of the suspension. 

29. Client acknowledges Consultant has the right to complete all services included in this agreement. In 
the event this agreement is terminated before the completion of all services, unless Consultant is 
responsible for such early termination, Client agrees to release Consultant from all liability for services 
not performed or completed by Consultant and from liability for any third-party reliance, use, 
interpretation or extrapolation of Consultant’s work product. In the event all or any portion of the services 
by Consultant are suspended, abandoned, or otherwise terminated, Client shall pay Consultant all fees 
and charges for services provided prior to termination, not to exceed the contract limits specified herein, 
if any. Client acknowledges if the project services are suspended and restarted, there will be additional 
charges due to suspension of the services which shall be paid for by Client as extra services pursuant 
to Section 26.  Client acknowledges if project services are terminated for the convenience of Client, 
Consultant is entitled to reasonable termination costs and expenses, to be paid by Client as extra 
services pursuant to Section 28. 

30. The Client may terminate this Agreement for the Client's convenience and without cause upon giving 
the Consultant not less than seven (7) calendar days' written notice. 

31. In the event of termination of this Agreement by either party, Consultant shall invoice Client for all 
outstanding services and expenses reasonably incurred by the Consultant in connection with the 
orderly termination of this Agreement, including but not limited to demobilization, reassignment of 
personnel, associated overhead costs and all other expenses directly resulting from the termination. 
The Client shall within thirty (30) calendar days of termination pay the Consultant for all services 
rendered and all reimbursable costs incurred by the Consultant up to the date of termination, in 
accordance with the payment provisions of this Agreement. 

OTHER 
32. This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of 

Client and Consultant. 
33. This agreement shall not be assigned by either Client or Consultant without the prior written consent of 

the other. 
34. Consultant's or Client's waiver of any term, condition or covenant shall not constitute the waiver of any 

other term, condition or covenant. Consultant's or Client's waiver of any breach of this agreement shall 
not constitute the waiver of any other breach of the Agreement.  

35. Client and Consultant agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal, 
in conflict with any law. void or otherwise unenforceable, and if the essential terms and provisions of 
this Agreement remain unaffected, then the validity of the remaining terms and provisions will not be 
affected and the offending provision will be given the fullest meaning and effect allowed by law. 

36. This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California. 

37. Within the limits of the approved scope and fee, Consultant may engage the services of any 
subconsultants when, in the Consultant's sole opinion, it is appropriate to do so. Such subconsultants 
may include testing laboratories, geotechnical engineers and other specialized consulting services 
deemed necessary by the Consultant to carry out the scope of the Consultant's services. 

38. Consultant shall be entitled to immediately, and without notice, suspend the performance of any and 
all of its obligations pursuant to this agreement if Client files a voluntary petition seeking relief under 
the United States Bankruptcy Code or if there is an involuntary bankruptcy petition filed against Client 
in the United States Bankruptcy Court, and that petition is not dismissed within fifteen (15) days of its 
filing.  Any suspension of services made pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph shall continue 
until such time as this agreement has been fully and properly assumed in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the United States Bankruptcy Code and in compliance with final order or 
judgment issued by the Bankruptcy Court.   

39. This agreement shall not be construed to alter, affect or waive any design professional's lien, 
mechanic's lien or stop notice right, which Consultant may have for the performance of services 
pursuant to this agreement. Client agrees to provide to Consultant the current name and address of 



City of Mendota  March 7, 2023 
5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project  Page 6 of 6 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

the record owner of the property upon which the project is to be located. Client also agrees to provide 
Consultant with the name and address of any and all lenders who may loan money on the project and 
who are entitled to receive a preliminary notice.  

40. Consultant shall not be liable for damages resulting from the actions or inactions of governmental 
agencies including, but not limited to, permit processing, environmental impact reports, dedications, 
general plans and amendments thereto, zoning matters, annexations or consolidations, use or 
conditional use permits, project or plan approvals, and building permits. Client agrees that it is the 
responsibility of Client to maintain in good standing all governmental approvals or permits and to timely 
apply for any necessary extensions thereof.  

41. Consultant and Client each agree to waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters 
in question arising out of or relating to this Agreement.  This mutual waiver is applicable, without 
limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in accordance with paragraphs 
26 through 31, except for termination expenses provided for in said paragraph 31. Client further agrees 
that to the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall not be liable to Client for any special, indirect 
or consequential damages whatsoever, whether caused by Consultant's negligence, errors, omissions, 
strict liability, breach of contract, breach of warranty or other cause or causes whatsoever, including 
but not limited to, loss of use of equipment or facility, and loss of profits or revenue. 

42. This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the Client and the Consultant. It supersedes all prior 
communications, understandings and agreements, whether oral or written. Amendments to this 
Agreement must be in writing and signed by both the Client and the Consultant. 
 

Client City of Mendota  
Provost & Pritchard Engineering Group, Inc., 
dba Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 

By   By  

Name/Title Cristian Gonzalez  
Name/Title 

Jeffrey Dorn, RCE 76749 
Director of Operations 

Date Signed   Date Signed  
  

 

3/7/2023



EXHIBIT B 



 455 W Fir Avenue 
Clovis, CA  93611-0242 

Tel:  (559) 449-2700 
Fax:  (559) 449-2715 

www.provostandpritchard.com 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\333623002-5th&Quince\000 Project Management\001 Proposal\5th & Quince PSE Prop.docx 
 

Engineering  Surveying  Planning  Environmental  GIS  Construction Services  Hydrogeology  Consulting 
Clovis    Bakersfield    Visalia    Modesto    Los Banos    Chico    Sacramento 

  
 
March 7, 2023 
 
Mr. Cristian Gonzalez 
City of Mendota 
643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA 93640 
 
Subject: Land Surveying & Engineering Services 

5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project 
 

Dear Cristian: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide land surveying and engineering 
services for the subject project.  This proposal discusses our understanding of the project, 
recommends a scope of services together with associated fees, deliverables, and approximate 
schedules, sets forth our assumptions and discusses other services that may be of interest as 
the project proceeds. 

Project Understanding 

It has been a long-term priority to reconstruct the remainder of 5th Street from Quince Street to 
Derrick Avenue since the completion of the reconstruction work from Oller Street (SR 180) to 
Quince Street in 2020. The 5th and Quince project will include the reconstruction of the following 
street segments: 

• 5th Street from Quince Street to Derrick Ave (SR 33) (approximately 0.2 mile); and 

• Quince Street from 5th Street to 6th Street (approximately 0.1 mile) 
The project will also include upgrades to curb ramps, alley approaches and the valley gutter 
“dip” at the intersection of 5th & Quince. 
5th Street is functionally classified as a “Major Collector” street and Quince Street is functionally 
classified as a “Local” street. In 2019 the City was awarded $706,251 in competitive Surface 
Transportation Block Grant (STBG) funds (plus $91,502 in STBG Lifeline funds) for the 
construction work on 5th Street. Since Quince Street is “local” it is not eligible for Federal funds 
and we understand that the City intends to utilize their accumulated Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Act (RMRA, aka SB1) or other local transportation funds for balance of the 
funding necessary to design and construct this project. 

Scope of Services 

Our proposed scope of work for this proposal is segregated into several phases, described 
below. 



City of Mendota  March 7, 2023 
5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project  Page 2 of 4 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\333623002-5th&Quince\000 Project Management\001 Proposal\5th & Quince PSE Prop.docx 

Phase SURV: Topographic Field Survey 

Services under this phase will include: 

• Establish construction control centerlines using existing curbs, gutters, and fence lines. No 
boundary survey will be provided as the limits of the existing streets are not being 
expanded. 

• Perform a topographical field survey to determine horizontal locations and existing 
elevations of gutter lips, crown elevations, top of curb and flowlines, driveways, curb ramps, 
signs, trees, utility poles, valve covers, manhole lids, and storm drain inlets/outlets. 

• Additional detail will be obtained at driveway approaches and curb ramps for use in 
designing new accessible ramps. We will locate existing signs, trees, above ground utilities, 
and other features that will impact curb ramp design. 

• Contact dry utility providers with services in the area and research maps and information 
they provide. Incorporate utility infrastructure into base maps 

• Prepare base map for use by design engineer. 

Phase PSE: Construction Documents (Plans, Specifications & Cost Opinion) 

Services under this phase will include: 

• Prepare Notice of Exemption for CEQA, since the project is Categorically Exempt under 
Section 15302, Replacement or Reconstruction. 

• Our subconsultant, BSK Associates, will provide subsurface investigations through existing 
pavement (one per block) to a maximum depth of three feet; provide subgrade soil R-value 
recommendations, test for sulfate levels in subgrade soils and provide recommendations for 
full-depth reclamation with cement treated base construction. 

• Design of street improvements, limited curb & gutter (replacement of failed or severely 
cracked concrete), and curb ramps. Improvements to gutter drainage will be made where 
gutters are being replaced; however, there are drainage issues along these streets which 
are the result of factors outside of the project limits. This project will not be able to 
completely address all drainage issues within the project limits. 

• Prepare plans, specifications and engineer’s opinion of probable construction cost (PS&E). 
Plans will be plan view only, at a scale of 1”=20’ to allow for adequate illustration of detail.  

o The plan set is anticipated to include 10 sheets, including cover, notes, plan view 
sheets, and details 

o The specifications are in CSI format and will include Divisions 0 & 1 and 
applicable technical specification sections.  

• We anticipate one preliminary submittal to the City for review when PS&E are approximately 
50% complete.  This will allow the City to provide comments on the design approach.  After 
review is complete, we will incorporate comments (or resolve them with City staff) and 
generate 100% final construction documents ready for use in bidding. 

• Obtain Caltrans Encroachment Permit for “shoulder” work where 5th Street joins into Derrick 
Ave (SR 33) 



City of Mendota  March 7, 2023 
5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project  Page 3 of 4 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\333623002-5th&Quince\000 Project Management\001 Proposal\5th & Quince PSE Prop.docx 

• In order to receive the STBG construction funding from Caltrans, we will prepare the required 
documents per the District Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) for the Request for 
Authorization (RFA) for Construction Funding which includes: 

o Finance Letter 
o Data Sheets 
o Field Review 
o NEPA documentation (PES Form to confirm Categorical Exclusion) 
o DBE goal methodology 
o Right of Way Certification 
o PS&E Certification 

Professional Fees 

Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group will perform the services for the Fixed Fee shown in the 
table below.  These services will be invoiced monthly, on a percent-complete basis.  
Reimbursable Expenses are included in the Fixed Fee amount stated. 
 

Phase Estimated Fee 

Phase SURV $11,000 

Phase PSE $55,000 

Total Fixed Fee: $66,000 

 

Schedule 

Once we receive an executed copy of this Proposal together with the signed Consultant 
Services Agreement and are authorized to proceed, we can prepare the Construction 
Documents and RFA package by the start of Federal Fiscal Year 2023-24, if not sooner.  The 
project is intended to be constructed in Spring 2024. 

Assumptions 

• No existing wet utilities, such as sewer, water, or storm drain will need to be designed or 
replaced as a part of this project, other than adjustment of lids and manholes covers to match 
finished grade. 

• The City will provide video inspection and comments on existing sewer pipes and manholes 
within the limits of the project and will specifically identify any dilapidated manholes that should 
be reconstructed as part of this project. Currently, we are not including rehabilitation or 
redesign of the sewer system in our scope of services. 

• The new infrastructure will not be capacity-increasing and is therefore eligible for a Categorical 
Exemption under CEQA. 

• Existing curb and gutter will be replaced, or new curb and gutter installed only where severely 
broken and unsuitable to be paved against. 

• No sidewalk construction is planned as part of this project, except for short transitional 
segments of walks at curb ramps. 



City of Mendota  March 7, 2023 
5th & Quince Street Reconstruction Project  Page 4 of 4 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\333623002-5th&Quince\000 Project Management\001 Proposal\5th & Quince PSE Prop.docx 

• Construction limits for this project will extend into the Caltrans State Route 33 (Derrick 
Avenue) right of way; therefore, coordination with Caltrans Encroachment Permits office is 
anticipated. Encroachment will be limited to “shoulder” work and will not encroach into travel 
lanes. 

• Provost & Pritchard CAD standards and title block will be used for the design of this project. 

Additional Services 

The following services are not included in this proposal, however these and others can be 
provided at additional cost, upon request.   

• Street lighting, street tree, or landscape design 

• Construction testing or staking services 

• Construction administration, management, or observation services 

Terms and Conditions  

If this proposal is acceptable, please sign the Consultant Services Agreement, and return a 
copy to our office. These documents will serve as our Notice to Proceed.  This proposal is valid 
for 30 days from the date above. 
 
Sincerely Yours, 
Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 
 
 
 
Michael L. Osborn, RCE 66022 Jeffery Dorn, RCE 76749 
Project Manager Director of Operations 
 
 
Terms and Conditions Accepted 

By City of Mendota  
 
 
Signature:    
                 Cristian Gonzalez  Date  
                 City Manager 
 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA, CITY CLERK 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: CONDITIONALLY APPROVING EXCLUSIVE FACILITY USE PERMIT APPLICATIONS 
SUBMITTED BY ORGANIZATION FOR THE EXCLUSIVE USE OF CITY OF MENDOTA 
FACILITIES FOR 2023 

DATE: MARCH 14, 2023 
  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-15, conditionally approving Exclusive Facility 
Use Permit Applications submitted by organization for the exclusive use of City of Mendota 
facilities for 2023? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Mendota Municipal Code (“MMC”) Section 12.20.050 requires that Exclusive Facility Use 
Permit Applications (“Application(s)”) be filed with the City of Mendota (“City”) annually 
during the month of February and be considered by the City Council at its first meeting in 
March. Any applications submitted after this will be secondary to these permits and may be 
approved administratively by the City Manager, or their designee. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Attached to Resolution No. 23-15 are all of the Exclusive Facility Use Permit Applications 
(“Applications”) that were submitted by organizations to reserve use of various City facilities. As 
of the February 28, 2023 application deadline, ten (10) Applications were received by the City 
for the exclusive use of a City facility for events that will benefit the community and its 
residents. On March 1, 2023, the City received an additional Application that does not conflict 
with Applications received by the deadline and has also been included for the City Council’s 
consideration.  
 
If approved by the City Council, the Applicants will need to satisfy all conditions of approval set 
forth in the attached list and any additional conditions that may be imposed by staff ensure the 
safety and maintenance of City facilities and the community, in order to hold the requested 
events. Moreover, in effort to establish and maintain consistency and fair treatment of all non-
profit organizations submitting an Application, any fees waived are in accordance to the City’s 
Administrative Policies (“Policy(ies)”) attached as Exhibits “C” and “D” to Resolution No. 23-
15. Although the City strives to support non-profit organizations by waiving certain fees in 
accordance with City Policies, it is important to note that the event organizer is still responsible 
for ensuring all other costs associated with their event are paid. For a summary of all 
Applications, conditions of approval, and associated fees, please consult Exhibit “B” to 
Resolution No. 23-15. 



2 

 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
General Fund will gain $2,735.00 if all applicable fees are paid. Any waiver of fees may 
adversely impact the General Fund if the City is responsible to provide services that are not 
reimbursed by the event organizer.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-15, conditionally approving 
Exclusive Facility Use Permit Applications submitted by organization for the exclusive use of 
City of Mendota facilities for 2023. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution No. 23-15 
2. Exhibit “A” – Applications 
3. Exhibit “B” – Overview of Applications 
4. Exhibit “C” - Administrative Policy Number 2004.01, Event Permit for Non-Profit 

Organizations 
5. Exhibit “D” – Administrative Policy, City Participation in Community Events 

 
 
 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE  

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 23-15 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA CONDITIONALLY 
APPROVING EXCLUSIVE FACILITY USE PERMIT 
APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED BY ORGANIZATIONS 
FOR THE EXLUSIVE USE OF CITY OF MENDOTA  
FACILITIES FOR 2023 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota (the “City”) allows organizations to use its park 
and recreation facilities to hold community gatherings, events, and recreation activities; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 12.20 of the Mendota Municipal Code (“MMC”) governs the 
public’s use of City-owned parks and recreation areas; and 

 
WHEREAS, MMC section 12.20.050 requires that Exclusive Facility Use Permit 

Applications (“Application(s)”) be filed with the City annually during the month of February, 
and be considered by the City Council at its first meeting in March; and 
 

WHEREAS, as of the February 28, 2023. Application deadline, ten (10) 
Applications were received by the City for the exclusive use of a City facility for events 
that will benefit the community and its residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 1, 2023, the City received an additional Application that 

does not conflict with Applications received by the deadline and has also been included 
for the City Council’s consideration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, applicants must comply with the MMC and Administrative Policy 
Number 2004.01, attached hereto as Exhibit “C,” which states Mendota-based non-profit 
organizations may have one Community Event or Street Fair permit fee waived in any 
given calendar year and each additional permit in that same calendar year will be subject 
to a 50% discount; and 
 
 WHEREAS, applicants must also comply with Administrative Policy - City 
Participation in Community Events, attached hereto as Exhibit “D,” which states the City 
shall host the events listed in the Policy; and 
  
 WHEREAS, applicants must also obtain all necessary permits and required 
licenses and comply with all applicable local and state laws; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Applications included in Exhibit “A,” 
and considered all conditions listed in Exhibit “B,” each of which is attached hereto and 



 2 

made part hereof by this reference, and has independently determined that the requested 
City facility uses are a benefit to the community and its residents. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the City Council hereby approves the Applications listed in Exhibit “A,” 
subject to the conditions contained in Exhibit “B,” and as follows: 
 

1. The City Manager, or their designee, may impose additional conditions on 
these approvals as needed to ensure the safety and maintenance of City 
facilities and the community.  The City Manager, or their designee, is hereby 
granted the appropriate discretion and authority to make such 
determinations.   

2. The Applicants are required to submit any required documentation and fees 
for final approval no later than two (2) weeks before the first use of the 
requested City facility and must receive full written approval from the City 
Manager, or their designee, prior to utilizing the requested City facility. 

 
       ______________________________ 
       Victor Martinez, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a regular 
meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 14th day of March 2023, by 
the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 
       Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A 



,,

CITY OF MENDOTA
FACILITY USE APPLICATION

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS OR ITEMS FORWHICH INFORMATION IS REQUESTED. PRINT

ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE.

FoR use oF ALL oR sUBSTANTIALLy ALL oF THE RoJAS-ptERcE pARK ptcNtc AREA AND

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL PARK BANDSTAND, VETERANS PARK, APPLICANTS MUST

APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT.

Norr: Srcrou 12.20,050 AppltceloNs FoR ExcLUSrvE usE sHALL BE FILED wrrH THE crry
cLERK DURTNG THE MoNTH or FeenulRy ANNUALLy AND sHALL BE sET FoR coNsrDERATtoN
By rHE ctry couNctL AT rrs FtRsr MEETING IN MARcH RNtttillt-y. Appt-tcnnoNs FoR
ExcLUsrvE usE sHALL BE FILED Nor LEss rHAN TwENTy oNE (21) ruon MoRE THAN oNE
HUNDRED rrrrv (150) pAys pRroR To THE udr or rHE FAcrLrw. PRowrorERs sHALL REeuEsr
AN AGREEMENT WTH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPLICATION.

Nore: Secnou 12.20.1{0: Appltcaur MUST pRovtDE rHe Cry wTH cERTTFIcATES oF
INSURANCE SPECIFYING THE CITY OF MENDOTA AS NAMED INSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND
pRopERTy DAMAGE LrMrrs wrrH A cotubrrueo sTNGLE LrMrr oF Nor LESS THAN oNE MrLLtoN
DoLLARs ($1,000,000).

COMPLETED APPLICATION.

PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWTNG CITY OF MENDOTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED,

PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILIry USE

DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMITTED TO FINANCE DBPARTMENT.

OBrannp sECUzuTy As REeuTRED ey MENDora Poucn pdpanruBNr
ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF PERMITIEE WITH ACKNOWLEDGMENT.

Atvtplmrrp Musrc PpmnT m apPLIcABLE

ffi'1hu\

t4
i2tltItltl

1

I

:

a
t



1. This application is for the use of the following facility:

T firh
.rI The organization, individual, business or entity applying for the use permit

Ctn\,al g6\{vrnrh fi6banV

3

4, Dnre

The contact person on behalf of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which
use permit is requested together with all of the following information:

NannE:

AoDRESS (SrnrEr AND CIrY) :
TrlepHoNE No,

2nd qth True

5 Please describe the exact park area or areas requested for Exclusive Use. (List below
and circle the area on the attached map).

Purpose or function for which the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for
exclusive use. Note: Section 12.20.090(b)(c) Fees and Deposits as required.

fwt \hc

7. Number of persons expected to attend the function or event. 150-Ht) krni\i*

Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes 

- 

No. / note: if yes, you must apply for
and receive a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage control, if
so, liquor liability insurance is required to be purchased thirty (30) days in advance by
the applicant. The Fresno County Sheriffs department must be contacted regarding
this application. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free and alcohol free.

Has a promoter been contracted to present, produce, or otherwise be involved in the
event, activity or entertainment during the event? Yes_ No v/. Note: section
12.20.110, if yes, the promoter is required to provide certificate of insurance evidencing
liability and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than
$1,000,000 with a deductible of nor more than $500, and shall specify the Gity of
Mendota and applicant as named insured.

6.

I

I

2



10. lf a promoter will present, produce, or otherwise be involved in the event, activity or
entertainment, state the name, address and telephone number of the promoter and

describe his/herlits participation in the event. Note: Section 5.08.030 Amusement Park

Rides and Attractions; Section 5.08.300 Musical and Theatrical Shows. The Promoter is
required to obtain a business license,

Namr:
AooRess:

-.-]--

PaRrct plttottll uvolvEM ENT:

11. Detailed description of all entertainment and activities, including equipment and

vehicles to be used, the nature and times of use of such equipment, and the nature and

time of use of any amplified sound equipment. Please keep in mind that anything not
mentioned below will not be allowed.

\e fl I {A

,/
12. Will concession stand(s) be used? 

- 

Yes '/ No. Note: for baseball diamond
concession, $150.00 fee, per league, no exemptions.

14. Will there be a live band at this functio n? Yes ,rt' No
(See attached municipalcode regarding noise ordinance)

State the names and addresses of all persons or groups which witt receive any of the
proceeds from this event, including concessions, and how those proceeds will be
divided among such ersons or rou ps.

16. lf this permit application is for all or substantially all of the park area, or all or
substantially all of the picnic and bandstand are, state the overriding public interest or
special circumstances which justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from
using their public park facilities.

Will there be an admissions charge to the
ticket $ # State the reason fo

event? lf so, state the exact amount of each
r imposing this admission charge.

15.

17. l, V't/ ve read the Mendota Municipal Code Chapter
12.20 re: park permits (attached). I understand all of the requirements for conducting an
event or activity in the use of the- Rojas;P[er^ce Park or any City facility. I agree on
behalf of myseif and Central klifurni,,t frDrl Brrla (name of applicant), the
organization on whose behalf this application is made, to indemnify, defend and hold
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, and
proceedings for money damages or other retief for personal injury, property damage br
other losses resulting from or caused by the activity or event for which this permit is

3

13.



issued. The keys to any facility or electrical panel will not be issued until this document
is signed by the permittee requesting a facility andior consenUhold harmless
agreements are submitted to ity staff and proof of insurance is provided and all fees
and deposits are paid.

lvlwlvr-

SEcURIry REQUIREMENT oR coNDITIoNS AS PER CITY oF MeruooTR POI-Ice DEPARTMENT:

Dnrc:Signature of Perm

I, declare I have read and understand the foregoing application
and all ents thereto. I further declare that lwill abide by all City, State, County and
Federal laws at said event.

Dated T

sig Permitee

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL

THts AppLlcATloN ls AppRovEo / ne.lecreD FoR usE oF THE oN

polrcE DE'ARTMENT REaurR;JIm:ttowNG 
coNDlrloNs oF APPR.'AL 

'HALL 
APPLY' MAY IN.LUDE

CITY MANAGER: DATE:

*************************************************************************************************************

PoLIcE DEPT:

4

DATE



Da{es lv\a3 \'le'rg ?ua -fuTrna tla\izta15

?#g$

2

s

,!

I
15
d3{!
Irni

g$

rf ts t4 t5 rE 17 rffi

r* sB fi ?3"ffis4 fs
t# sr 28

BSI$rr

4S6,7 0
9,3
s In

t-! 11 13 14 15 X6 1?

I.ffi 1$ rr
I5 '!E 17 tS

rs s8 s1 2effi H fs
ssg73823303t:

1

fi

ts
tt
f$

:, :: ,,:,:, r..:

2 $ 4 6I r
g r& 11 12&14
ts 1? , 18 I'S 20 gt

us i* Es ,E@ ffi

19.3 4 5 6

? B s rsffilz rs
,x.* t5 tts'xr 18.,l$ t*
fr:t ss ffi Esffigc tr
sffiffifrs*1

''$ ffi tB ES,HffigS H4

E$'*trISffi30
r* r* s2 s3ffi2s p#

fvg8gs3s31!
ii

fr?8$
13 14 15 1S

3456
rffi 11 12 13

1I

iffi

lXS*S
ps4s678
s ID 11 rs@ffi 15

1S 11 18 1$ trI tt m
** E4 25:ffi @ ffi 3s

lt7

1'l t3
11,8 t$

f1X
8S#45$7

r 2 3 4 5

ff tirs m@
,s

1$ S4 ssr
,$ g 13 -1* 1& @

TE
8S
15 1S

u, 23

z5_30@

7

15 'fiSrs 11 13 t3 *s 1$ 11 1S I$ gfi Xr

fx 23 ffi s$ffi3r fH

f$303'!
r* ao 31 ?3. ffi s4 f;s

sffigrffi?$30
17 18 19 2g 27

g4 25 28 27
*,,0r, I

F*hrusryJanusry B,Ifrrth &pril

JUHG July

$*pt*rnber Sct*her H*vernfu*r S,grumher

htlp,X,**,fur+Ar-t+d'""eftfX$f. Cfi,f!?,{t6ieg,dlAf#pfl*tafrt*-e*Ien,,S,*.'e html Frintmh-,t* "*u*nr$r il.akn*arEt 3il'1& hl'\fiertex42.oom . Free ts Print.

$ u I1?{ Tu i'''f Tn f Smffi
5

@
x$

@

6.f
13,t4
3fi.tt

:

8?.ES

E

@

$ u f'-'1 Tu 1'# Th f $a

fti,St-t t'*1

$qi lnl Tu ...*,' Tn r Tfl

Su f*iI T* i*Y Th ,f $a Su I!,,{ Til L,*'f Th f Sm



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

@ 1988.2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Alt rtghts roseryed.
The ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD

DATE (MM/DDfYYYY)

0710612022

THIS GERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMAT]ON ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BEn TEEN THE ISSUING TNSURER(S), AUTHORTZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

lMPoRTANT:lfthecertlflcateholderlsanADDlTloNALlNsURED,thepollcy(les)musfnave
lf SUBROGATION lS WAIVED, sublect to the terms and oondltlons of the pollcy, certaln pollcles may requlre an endorcement. A Btatement on

.-.-thls cerUflcate does not confer rlghts to the certlflcate holder.ln lleu.of such endorsement(s). -

PRODUCER

Relatlon lns. Servlces of Central Callfornia, lnc.

7673 N. lngram Avenue

Sulte 103

Fresno cA 93711

Sara

222-0300

INSURER(SI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

TNSURER A: Phlladelphla !ndomnity lnsurance Company 18058

INSURED

Food Opportunities Organlzatlon & Dlstribution lnc., DBA: Communlty

4010 E. Amendola Drive

Fresno cA 93725

TNSURER B: Zenlth lns Co

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

T1{IS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED IEOVE TON ruT POLICY PEROO
INDICATED. NOTWTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENI, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD wvD POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
IJA
PR $ 100,000

MED EXP (Anv one person) $ 10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000

GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000

PRODUCTS. COMP/OPAGG $ 2,000,000

A Y

COMMERCIAL G ENERAL LIABILITY

CLA|MS-MADE tr occuR

POLICY

PHPK2431023 07lul2a22 0710112023

$

$ 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

BODILY INJURY (Per accldent) $

$

A

ANYAUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON.OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

PHPK2431023 0710112022 0710112023

$

X EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIfUS.MADE AGGREGATE s 2,000,000A

10,000

PHUB82O583 0710112022 07 t01t2023

sx PEFt
STATI.JTE

OTH.
FR

E,L. EACHACCIDENT $ 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE. EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,000
B

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABI LITY
ANY PROPRI ETOR/PARTNEFYEXECUTIVE
OFFICEFUMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory ln NH)
lf yes, descrlbo undor
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N /A 2135108405 0710112022 07luna23

E.L, DISEASE . POLICY LIMIT s 1,00o,ooo

DESCRIPTKIN oF OPERATIONS, LOCATIONS , VEHICLES (ACORD l0l' Addltlonal Rm.rks Schodulq mry b. ltt!.fiad tf mor. .paco l! roqutr€d)

RE: VARIOUS FOOD DISTRIBUTIONS/NEIGHBORHOOD MARKETS/USOA ROJAS PIERCE PARK, 297 SAN PEDRo sT, MENDoTA cA93640..WhEN 
T€qUKEd bY WTIIIEN CONITACT. CERI HOLDER IS INCLUDED AS AN ADOITIONAL INSURED AS RESPECTS TO GENERAL LIABILITY PER

GLPIGLDHS1 O1 1 ATTACHED

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCR]BED POLICIES BE GANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

cA 93640

CITY OF MENDOTA

643 QUINCE ST

MENDOTA
I

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 2s (2A16103)

x

LOC
PRO.
JECT

ffi



Pr-cLD-HS (10t11)

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

GENERAL LIABILITY DELUXE ENDORSEMENT:
HUMAN SERVIGES

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE

It is understood and agreed that the followlng extensions only apply ln the event that no other specific coverage for
the indlcated loss exposure is provided under this pollcy. lf such specific coverage applies, the terms, conditions and
limits of that coverage are the sole and exclusive coverage applicable under this policy, unless otherwlse noted on
this endorsement, The following ls a summary of the Limits of lnsurance and addltional coverages provided by this
endorsement. For complete details on specific coverages, consult the policy contract wording,

Page 1 of 12
lncludes copyrighted material of lnsurance Servlces Office, lnc., with its permission.

@ 2011 Philadelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company

Coverage Applicable Limit of lnsurance Page #

Extended Property Damage lncluded 2

Limited Rental Lease Agreement Contractual Liability $50,000 Iimit 2

Non-Owned Watercraft Less than 58 feet 2

Damage to Property You Own, Rent, or Occupy $30,000 limit 2

Damage to Premises Rented to You $1 ,000,000 3

HIPAA Clarification 4

Medical Payments $20,000 5

Medical Payments - Extended Reporting Period 3 years 5

Athletic Activities Amended 5

Supplementary Payments - Bail Bonds $5,000 5

Supplementary Payment - Loss of Earnings $1 ,000 per day 5

Employee lndemnification Defense Coverage $25,000 5

Key and Lock Replacement - Janitorial Services Client Coverage $10,000 limit 6

Additional lnsured - Newly Acquired Tirne Period Amended 6

Additional lnsured - Medical Directors and Administrators lncluded 7

Additional lnsured - Managers and Supervisors (with Fellow
Employee Coverage)

lncluded 7

Additiona! lnsured - Broadened Named lnsured lncluded 7

Additional lnsured - Funding Source lncluded 7

Additional lnsured - Home Care Providers lncluded 7

Additional lnsured - Managers, Landlords, or Lessors of Premises lncluded 7

Additional lnsured - Lessor of Leased Equipment lncluded 7

Additional lnsured - Grantor of Permits lncluded B

Additiona! lnsured - Vendor lncluded B

Additional lnsured - Franchisor lncluded I
Additional lnsured - When Required by Contract lncluded I
Additional lnsured - Owners, Lessees, or Contractors lncluded I
Additional lnsured - State or Political Subdivisions lncluded 10



Duties in the Event of Occurrence, Clairn or Suit lncluded 10

Unintentiona! Failure to Disclose Hazards lncluded 10

Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others To Us Clarification 10

Liberalization lncluded 11

Bodily lnjury - includes Mental Anguish lncluded 11

Personal and Advertising lnjury - includes Abuse of Process,
Discrimination

lncluded 11

P|-GLD-HS (10/1 1)

A. Extended Property Damage

SEGTION I. COVERAGES, COVERAGE A BODILY INJURYAND PROPERTY DAMAGE
LIABILITY, Subsection 2. Exclusions, Paragraph a. is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the
following:

a. Expected or lntended lnfury

"Bodily injury" or property damage' expected or intended from the standpoint of the insured.
This exclusion does not apply to "bodily injury'' or "property damage" resulting from the use of
reasonable force to protect persons or property.

B. Llmlted Rental Lease Agreement Contractual Liabitity

SECTION I - GOVERAGES, COVERAGE A" BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE
LIABILITY, Subsection 2. Excluslons, Paragraph b. Contractual Liability is amended to include the
following:

(3) Based on the named insured's request at the time of claim, we agree to indemnify the
named insured for their liability assumed in a contract or agreement regarding the rental
or lease of a premises on behalf of their client, up to $50,000. This coverage extension
only applies to rental lease agreements. This coverage is excess over any renter's
liability insurance of the client.

G. Non-Owned Watercraft

SECTION I- COVERAGES, COVERAGE A BODILY TNJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE
LlABlLlW, Subsection 2. Exclusions, Paragraph g. (2) is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the
following:

. (2) A watercraft you do not own that is:

(a) Less than 58 feet long; and

(b) Not being used to carry persons or property for a charge;

This provision applies to any person, who with your consent, either uses or is responsible for
the use of a watercraft. This insurance is exoess over any other valid and collectible
insurance available to the insured whether primary, excess or contingent.

D. Damage to Property You Own, Rent or Occupy

SECTION I- COVERAGES, GOVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE

Page2 ol 12
lncludes copyrighted material of lnsurance Services Office, lnc., with its permission,

@ 201'l Philadelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company



P|-GLD-HS (At11)

LIABILITY, Subsection 2. Excluslons, Paragraph j. Damage to Property, ltem (f ) is deleted in its
entirety and replaced with the following:

(1) Property you owR,,rent,.or occupy, including any costs or expenses incuned by you, or
any other person, organization or entity, for repair, replacement, enhancement,
restoration or maintenance of such property for any reason, including prevention of injury
to a person or damage to another's property, unless the damage to property is caused by
your client, up to a $30,000 limit. A client is defined as a person under your direct care
and supervision.

E. Damage to Premises Rented to You

1. lf damage by fire to premises rented to you ls not otherwise excluded from this Coverage Part,
the word "fire' is changed to 'fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, or leakage from automatic fire
protective systems'where it appears in:

a. The last paragraph of SECTION ! - COVERAGES, GOVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND
PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY, Subsection 2. Excluslons; is deleted in its entirety and
replaced by the following:

Exclusions c. through n. do not apply to damage by fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, or
leakage from automatic fire protective systems to premises while rented to you or
temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner. A separate limit of insurance
applies to this coverage as described in SEGTION lll- LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

b. SEGTION lll - LIMITS OF INSURANCE, Paragraph 6. is deleted in its entirety and replaced
by the following:

Subject to Paragraph 5. above, the Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit is the
most we will pay under Coverage A for damages because of "property damage" to any
one premises, while rented to you, or in the case of damage by fire, lightning, explosion,
smoke, or leakage from automatic fire protective systems while rented to you or
temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner.

c. SECTION V - DEFINITIONS, Paragraph 9.a., is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the
following:

A contract for a lease of premises. However, that portion of the contract for a lease of
premises that indemnifies any person or organization for damage by fire, lightning,
explosion, smoke, or leakage ftom automatic fire protective systems to premises while
rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner is not an
"insured contract";

2. SECTION lV- COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITYCONDITIONS, Subsection 4. Other
lnsurance, Paragraph b. Excess lnsurance, (1) (a) (il) is deleted in its entirety and replaced by
the following:

That is insurance for fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, or leakage from automatic fire
protective systems for (rremises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission
of the owner;

3. The Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit section of the Declarations is amended to the
greater of:

Page 3 of 12
lncludes copyrighted material of lnsurance Services Office, lnc., with its permission

@ 2011 Philadelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company



Pr-cLD-HS (10t11)

a. $1,000,000; or

b. The amount shown in the Declarations as the Damage to Premises Rented to You Limit.

This is the most we will pay for all damage proxlmately caused by the same event, whethsr such
damage results from fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, or leaks from automatic fire protective
systems or any combination thereof.

F. HIPAA

SECTION I . COVERAGES, COVERAGE B PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING TNJURY LIABILITY,
is amended as follows:

1, Paragraph 1. lnsuring Agreement is amended to include the following

We will pay those sums that the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as damages because
of a 'violation(s)" of the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). We have
the right and the duty to defend the insured against any "suit," "investigation," or "civil proceeding"
seeking these damages, However, we will have no duty to defend the insured against any "suit"
seeking damages, "investigation," or'civil proceeding'to which this insurance does not apply.

2. Paragraph 2. Exclusions is amended to include the following additional exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

a. lntentional, Wllful, or Deliberate Violations

Any willful, intentional, or deliberate "violation(s)" by any insured.

b. GriminalActs

Any "violation" which results in any criminal penalties under the HIPAA.

c. Other Remedles

Any remedy other than monetary damages for penalties assessed.

d. Gompliance Reviews or Audits

Any compliance reviews by the Department of Health and Human Services.

3. SECTION V - DEFINITIONS is amended to include the following additional definitions:

a. "Civil proceeding'means an action by the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
arising out of "violations."

b. "lnvestigation" means an examination of an actual or alleged "violation(s)" by HHS. However,
"investigation" does not include a Compliance Review.

c. "Violation' means the actual or alleged failure to comply with the regulations included in the
HIPAA.

Page 4 of 12
lncludes copyrighted material of lnsurance Services Offlce, lnc., with its permission.

@ 2011 Philadelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company



P|-GLD-HS (10t11)

G. Medlcal Payments - Limit lncreased to $20,000, Extended Reporfing perlod

lf COVERAGE C MEDICAL PAYMENTS is not othenrvise excluded from this Coverage Part:

1. The Medical Expense Limit is changed subject to all of the terms of SECTTON lll - LIMITS OF
INSURANCE to the greater of:

a. $20,000; or
b. The Medical Expense Limit shown in the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

2. SECTION l- COVERAGE, COVERAGE C MEDICAL PAYMENTS, Subsection 1, lnsuring
Agreement, a. (3) (b) is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:

(b) The expenses are incuned and reported to us within three years of the date of the
accident.

H. Athletic Actlvltles

SECTION I - COVERAGES, COVERAGE C MEDICAL PAYMENTS, Subsection 2. Excluslons,
Paragraph e. Athletic Activltles is deleted in itrs entirety and replaced with the following:

e. Athletlc Activities

To a person injured while taking part in athletics.

l. SupplementaryPayments

sEcrloN l- covER.AGEs, SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS - covERAGE AAND B are
amended as follows:

1. b. is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:

1. b. Up to $5000 for cost of bail bonds required because of accidents or traffic law violations
arising out of the use of any vehicle to which the Bodily lnjury Liability Coverage applies. We
do not have to furnish these.

1.d. is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:

1. d' All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured at our request to assist us in the
investigation or defense of the claim or "suit", including actual loss of earnings up to 91,000 a
day because of time off from work.

J. Employee lndernnification Defense Coverage

SECTION I_ COVERAGES, SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS. COVER.AGES A AND B thE
following is added:

We will pay, on your behalf, defense costs incurred by an 'employee' in a criminal proceeding
occurring in the course of employment.

The most we will pay for any "employee" who is alleged to be directly involved ln a criminal
proceeding is $25,000 regardless of the numbers of "employees," claims or "suits" brought or
persons or organizations making claims or bringing "suits.

Page 5 of 12
lncludes copyrighted materialof lnsurance services offlce, lnc., with its permission

@ 201 1 Philadelphia lndemnity lnsu rance Com pany



P|-GLD-HS (1 0t11)

K. Key and Lock Replacement - Janitorlal Services Client Goverage

SECTION I. COVERAGES, SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS - COVERAGES A AND B iS
amended to include the following:

We will pay for the cost to replace keys and locks at the "clients" premises due to theft or other
loss to kela entrusted to you by your "client," up to a $10,000 limit per occurrence and $10,000
policy aggregate.

We will not pay for loss or damage resulting from theft or any other dishonest or criminal act that
you or any of your partners, members, officers, "employees", "managers", directors, trustees,
authorized representatives or any one to whom you entrust the keys of a "client" for any
purpose commit, whether acting alone or in collusion with other persons.

The following, when used on this coverage, are defined as follows:

a. 'Client" means an individual, company or organization with whom you have a written contract
or work order for your services for a described premises and have billed for your services.

b. "Employee" means:

(1) Any natural person:

(a) While in your service or for 30 days after termination of service;

(b) Who you compensate directly by salary, wages or commissions; and

(c) Who you have the right to direct and control while performing services for you; or

(2) Any natural person who is fumished temporarily to you:

(a) To substitute for a permanent "employee" as defined in Paragraph (1) above, who is
on leave; or

(b) To meet seasonal or short-term workload conditions;

while that person is subject to your direction and control and performing services for you.

(3) "Employeen does not mean:

(a) Any agent, broker, person leased to you by a labor leasing firm, factor, commission
merchant, consignee, independent contractor or representative of the same general
character; or

(b) Any "manager," director or trustee except while performing acts coming within the
scope of the usual duties of an "employee.'

c. "Manager" means a person serving in a directorial capacity for a limited liability company.

L. Additionallnsureds

SECTION ll- WHO lS AN INSURED is amended as follows:

1. lf coverage for newly acquired or formed organizations is not otherwise excluded from this

Page 6 of 12
lncludes copyrighted material of lnsurance services office, lnc., with its permission,

@ 2011 Philadelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company



P|-GLD-HS (10/1 1)

coverage Part, Paragraph 3.a. is deleted in its entirely and replaced by the following

a. Coverage under this provision is afforded until the end of the policy period.

2. Each of the following is also an insured:

a. Medical Directors and Admlnistrators - Your medical directors and administrators, but
only while acting within the scope of and during the course of their duties as such. Such
duties do not include the furnishing or failure to furnish professional services of any physician
or psychiatrist in the treatment of a patient.

b, Managers and Superuisors - Your managers and supervisors are also insureds, but
only with respect to their duties as your managers and supervisors. Managers and
supervisors who are your "employees" are also insureds for "bodily injury" to a co-
"employee' while in the course of his or her employrnent by you or performing duties
related to the conduct of your business.

This provision does not change ltem 2.a.(1)(a) as it applies to managers of a limited
liability company.

c. Broadened Named lnsured - Any organization and subsidiary thereof which you control and
actively manage on the effective date of this Coverage Part. However, coverage does not
apply to any organization or subsidiary not named in the Declarations as Named lnsured, if
they are also insured under another similar policy, but for its termination or the exhaustion of
its limits of insurance.

d. Fundlng Source - Any person or organization with respect to their liability arising out of:

(l) Their financial control of you; or

(21 Premises they own, maintain or control whlle you lease or occupy these premises.

This insurance does not apply to structural alterations, new construction and demolition
operations performed by or for that person or organization.

o. Home Gare Providers - At the first Named lnsured's option, any person or organization
under your direct supervision and control while providing for you private home respite or
foster home care for the developmentally disabled.

f. Managers, Landlords, or Lessors of Premises - Any person or organization with respect
to their liability arlsing out of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the premises
leased or rented to you subject to the following additional exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

(1) Any "occurrence'which takes place after you cease to be a tenant ln that premises; or

(2) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on
behalf of that person or organizatlon.

Lessor of Leased Equipment - Automatic Status When Required in Lease Agreement
With You - Any person or organization from whom you lease equipment when you and such
person or organization have agreed in writing in a contract or agreement that such person or
organization is to be added as an additional insured on your policy. such person or

PageT of 12
lncludes copyrighted material of lnsurance Services Office, lnc., with its permission.

@ 2011 Philadelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company

g



PI-GLD-HS (10t11',)

organization is an insured only with respect to liability for'bodily injury," "property damage" or
'personal and advertising injury'caused, in whole or in part, by your maintenanie, operition
or use of equipment leased to you by such person or organization.

A person's or organization's status as an additional insured under this endorsement ends
when their contract or agreement wlth you for such leased equipment ends.

With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not
apply to any "occunence'which takes place after the equipment lease expires.

h. Grantors of PErmits - Any state or political subdivision granting you a permit in connection
with your premises subject to the following additional provision:

(1) This insurance applies only with respect to the following hazards for which the state or
political subdivision has issued a permit in connection with the premises you own, rent or
control and to which this insurance applies:

(a) The existence, maintenance, repair, construction, erection, or removal of advertising
signs, awnings, canopies, cellar entrances, coal holes, driveways, manholes,
marquees, hoist away openings, sidewalk vaults, street banners or decorations and
slmilar exposures;

(b) The construction, erection, or removal of elevators; or

(c) The ownership, maintenance, or use of any elevators covered by this insurance.

l. Vendors - Only with respect to "bodily injury" or'property damage" arising out of .your
products" which are distributed or sold in the regular course of the vendor's business, subject
to the following additlonal exclusions:

(1) The insurance afforded the vendor does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which the vendor is obligated to pay
damages by reason of the assumption of liability in a contract or agreement. This

' exclusion does not apply to liability for damages that the vendor would have in the
absence of the contract or agreement;

(b) Any express warranty unauthorized by you;

(c) Any physical or chemical change in the product made intentionally by the vendor;

(d) Repackaging, except when unpacked solely for the purpose of inspection,
demonstration, testing, or the substitution of parts under instructions from the
manufacturer, and then repackaged in the original container;

(e) Any failure to make such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor
has agreed to make or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business,
in connection with the distribution or sale of the products;

(f) Demonstration, installation, servicing or repair operations, except such operations
performed at the vendor's premises in connection with the sale of the product;

Page 8 of 12
lncludes copyrighted material of lnsurance services office, lnc., with its permission.

O 2011 Philadelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company



P|-GLD-HS (10t11)

(g) Products which, after distribution or sale by you, have been labeled or relabeled or
used as a container, part or ingredient of any other thing or substance by or for the
vendor; or

(h) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of the sole negligence of the vendor
for its own acts or omissions or those of its employees or anyone else acting on its
behalf. However, this exclusion does not apply to:

(i) The exceptions contained in Sub-paragraphs (d) or (f); or

(ii) Such inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor has agreed to
make or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in
connection with the distrlbution or sale of the products.

(2) This insurance does not apply to any insured person or organization, from whom you
have acquired such products, or any ingredient, part or container, entering into,
accom panying or containing.

i. Franchisor - Any person or organization with respect to their liability as the grantor of a
franchise to you.

k. As Required by Contract - Any person or organization where required by a written contract
executed prior to the occurrence of a loss. Such person or organization is an additional
insured for "bodily injury," "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" but only for
liability arising out of the negligence of the named insured. The limits of insurance applicable
to these additional insureds are the lesser of the policy limits or those limits specified in a
contract or agreement. These limits are included within and not in addition to the limits of
insurance shown in the Declarations

l. Ownerc, Lessees or Gontractors - Any person or organization, but only with respect to
liability for "bodily injury," "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury''caused, in
whole or in part, by:

(1) Your acts or omissions; or

(2) The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;

in the performance of your ongoing operations for the additional insured when required by a
contract.

With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional
exclusions apply:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" occurring after:

(a) All work, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such
work, on the project (other than service, maintenance or repairs) to be performed by
or on behalf of the additional insured(s) at the location of the covered operations has
been completed;or

(b) That portion of "your work" out of which the injury or damage arises has been put to
its intended use by any person or organization other than another contractor or
subcontractor engaged in performlng operations for a principal as a part of the same
project.

Page 9 of 12
lncludes copyrighted material of lnsurance Services Office, lnc., with its permission.

@ 2011 Philadelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company



P|-GLD-HS (10t11)

m. State or Political Subdlvlslons - Any state or political subdivision as required, subject to
the following provlsions:

(1) This insurance applies only with respect to operations performed by you or on your behalf
for which the state or political subdivision has issued a permit, and is required by
contract.

(2) This insurance does not apply to:

(a) "Bodily injury," "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of
operations performed for the state or municipality; or

(b) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products-completed
operations hazard."

M. Duties in the Event of Occurrence, Claim or Suit

SECTION IV- COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, Paragraph 2. is amended as
follows:

a. is amended to include:

This condition applies only when the "occurrence" or offense is known to:

(1) You, if you are an individual;

(2) A partner, if you are a partnership; or

(3) An executive officer or insurance manager, if you are a corporation.

b. is amended to include:

This condition will not be considered breached unless the breach occurs after such claim or "suit"
is known to:

(l) You, if you are an individual;

(2) A partner, if you are a partnership; or

(3) An executive officer or insurance manager, if you are a corporation.

N, Unintentional Failure To Disclose Hazards

SECTION lV- COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, 6. Representations is
amended to include the following:

It is agreed that, based on our reliance on your representations as to existing hazards, if you
should unintentionally fail to disclose all such hazards prior to the beginning of the policy period of
this Coverage Part, we shall not deny coverage under this Coverage Part because of such failure.

O. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others To Us

SECTION lV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, 8. Transfer of Rlghts of

Page 10 of 12
lncludes copyrighted material of lnsurance Services Office, lnc., with its permission.

@ 2011 Philadelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company



P|-GLD-HS (10t11)

Recovery Against Others To Us is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:

lf the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment we have made under this Coverage
Part, those rights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing after loss to lmpair them. At
our request, the insured will bring "suit" or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce them.

Therefore, the insured can waive the insurer's rights of recovery prior to the occurrence of a
loss, provided the waiver is made in a written contract.

P. Liberalization

SECTION lV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY GONDITIONS, is amended to include the
following:

lf we revise this endorsement to provide more coverage without additional premium charge, we
will automatically provide the additional coverage to all endorsement holders as of the day the
revision is effective in your state.

Q. Bodily lnlury- MentalAnguish

SECTION V - DEFINITIONS, Paragraph 3. ls deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:

"Bodily injury" means:

a. Bodily injury, sickness or disease sustained by a person, and includes mental anguish
resulting from any of these; and

b. Except for mental anguish, includes death resultlng from the foregoing (ltem a. above) at any
time.

R. Personal and Advertising lnjury - Abuse of Process, Discrimination

lf COVERAGE B PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY LIABILITY COVERAGE is not
otherwise excluded from this Coverage Part, the definition of "personal and advertising injury" is
amended as follows:

I . SECTION V - DEFINITIONS, Paragraph 14.b. is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the
following:

b. Malicious prosecution or abuse of process;

2. SECTION V - DEFINITIONS, Paragraph 14. is amended by adding the following:

Discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, age or national origin, except when:

a. Done intentionally by or at the direction of, or with the knowledge or consent of:

(1) Any insured; or

(2) Any executive officer, director, stockholder, partner or member of the insured;

b. Directly or indirectly related to the employment, former or prospective employment,
termination of employment, or appllcation for employment of any person or persons by an
insured;

Page11ot12
lncludes copyrighted material of lnsurance Servlces Office, lnc., with lts permission.

@ 2011 Philadelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company



P|-GLD-HS (10t11)

c. Directly or indirectly related to the sale, rental, lease or sublease or prospective sales, rental,
lease or sub-lease of any room, dwelling or premises by or at the direction of any insured; or

d. Insurance for such discrimination is prohibited by or held in violation of law, public policy,
legislation, court decision or administrative ruling.

The above does not apply to fines or penalties imposed because of discrimination.

Page 12 ol 12
lncludes copyrighted materialof lnsurance Services Office, lnc., with its permission.

@ 201'l Phlladelphia lndemnity lnsurance Company



\

CITY OF MENDOTA

FACILITY USE APPLICATION

JAN 20i0i3

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS OR ITEMS FORWHICH INFORMATION IS REQUESTED. PRINT ALL ANSWERS

EXGEPT THE SIGNATURE.

Fon use oF ALL oR SUBSTANTIALLY ALL oF THE ROJAS.PIERCE PARK PICNIC AREA AND BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA

pooL PARK BANDSTAND, VETERANS PARK, AppLtCANTS MUST APPEAR BEFORE THE ClrY CouNclL FoR APPROVAL

OF THE PERMIT.

Nore: SEcr 12.20.050 APPLICATIOUS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK DURING THE

MONTH Or FeSRUIRV ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT ITS FIRST

MEETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPIICETIOIIS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY ONE

(21) ton MoRE THAN ONE HUNDRED FtFry (150) OAVS pRtOR TO THE USE OF THE FAClLlrY. Pnouorens SHALL

REQUEST AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPLIGATION.

Nore: SEcrlou 12.20.110: Appurcnnr MusT pROVlDe rne Grv wlTH GERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE SPECIFYING

THE CITY OF MENDOTA AS NAMED INSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WTH A COMBINED

sTNGLE Lrmrr oF NoT LESs THAN oNE MlLLloN DoLLARS ($1,000'000).

COMPLETED APPLICATION.

PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWING CITY OF MENDOTA, AS ADDITIONAL INSURED.

DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMITTED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT.

OSTnINIEO SECURIry AS REQUIRED gY MCNOOTR POIICC DEPARTMENT

ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF PERMITTEE WITH ACKNOWLEDGMENT.

NOISE PERMIT, IF APPLICABLE

DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT RETURNED TO APPLICANT

t1tItI
t1
t1
r1
I]

1

FUA 23-03



1. This application is for the use of the following facility:

e rh
$o$r{

2. The organization, individual, business or entity applying for the use permit:

3 The contact person on behalf of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which use permit is

requested together with all of the following information:

Naur:

{o i

4.

5.

o

6.

Aooness (STREET AND C

9:oo Arn A 5:N fn
-oo

pr.rrffiLsihM#J.',; ,"?^'.;;*;3ffir.sted for Exclusive Use. (List berow and circte the area

on the attached map).

7

8

Purpose or function for which the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for exclusive use. Note:

Section 12.20.090(b)(c) Fees and Deposits as required.

{

Number of persons expected to attend the function or event.

Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes note: if yes, you must apply for and receive a

if so, liquor liability insurance is

required to be purchased thirty (30) days in advance by the applicant. The Fresno County Sheriff's

department must be contacted regarding this application. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free and

alcoholfree.

€

separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage control,

9. Has a promoter been contracted to prese(t, produce, or otherwise be involved in the event, activity or

entertainment during the event? Yes-1@-. Note: section 12.20.110, if yes, the promoter is required to
provide certificate of insurance evidencii[liability and property damage limits with a combined single limit

of not less than $1,000,000 with a deductible of nor more than $500, and shall specify the City of Mendota

and applicant as named insured. r I * rres rr'es'eu 
L V-qns lon i/tEcr (c'\'r\cir L"cr''..f any

10. lf a promoter will present, produce, or othenrvise be involved in the event, activity or entertainment, state

the name, address and telephone number of the promoter and describe his/her/its participation in the

2

}
\

t

*4

*.*/



11.

event. Note: Section 5.08.030 Amusement Park Rides and Attractions; Section 5.08.300 Musical and

Theatrical Shows. The Promoter is required to obtain a business license.

Nnue:

Aooness:

Detailed description of all entertainment and activities, including equipment and vehicles to be used, the

nature and times of use of such equipment, and the nature and time of use of any amplified sound

equipment. Please keep in mind that anything not mentioned below will not be allowed.

Will concession stand(s) be used? Yes

$1S0.00 fee, per league, no exemptions.
12. Note: for baseball diamond concession,

13. Will there be an admissions charge to the event? lf so, state the exact amount of each ticketJ
. State the reason for imposing this admission charge.

14.

15.

Will there be a live band at this function?-Yes
code regarding noise ordinance)

(See attached municipal

State the names and addresses of all persons or groups which will receive any of the proceeds from this

event, including concessions, and how those proceeds will be divided among such persons or groups.

lf this permit application is for all or substantially all of the park area, or all or substantially all of the picnic

and bindstand are, state the overriding public interest or special circumstances which justify excluding

residents of the City of Mendota from using their public park facilities.

e read the Mendota Municipal Code Chapter 12.20 re: park

(attached). I understand all of the requirements for conducting an event or activity in the use of the

ierce Park or City facility. I agree on behalf of myself and

(name of applicant), the organization on whose behalf this

is made, to indemnify, defend and hold the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and

claims, actiolls, suits, and proceedings for money damages or other relief for personal injury, property

4

16.

17. I

J
1

all
damage or other losses resulting from or caused by the activity
The keys to any facility or electrical panel will not be issued until

requesting a facility and/or consenUhold harmless agreements

insurance is provided and all fees and deposits are paid,

or event for which this permit is issued.

this document is signed by the permittee

are submitted to city staff and proof of

t^

Signature of

3

Dnrr: f, I'',#-) - -*#,.*5

J



a.

CITY MANAGERAPPROVAL

\NI declare I have read and understand the foregoing application and all

attac ments er declare that lwill abide by all City, State, County and Federal laws at said event.

Dated: n t' &q) G 2,oAs

of Permitee

THts AppLtcATroN ts AppRovED / neuecTED FoR usE oF THE ON

FoLLowtNG coNotTtoNs oF AppRovAL sHALL AppLy, MAy INcLUDT Poltce Drpanrueur REQUIREMENTS.

Tne

CITY

*****************i****************************H************l**********t****ffi******rrffi*************

sEcuRtry REQUIREMENT oR coNDrnoNs As pen Cry or Menoorl Polrce DEPARTMENT:

Pouce DATE# ^€,-re

4



4\.:

A(:ORD' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATE (Lll.l{)DnrYYn

0ai'07,2A22

THIS CEHTIFICATE lS ISSUED AS A I\'IATTEH OF INFOHITIATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO HTGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDEB. THIS

CEBTIFTCATE DOES NOT AFFIRIVIATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVEFAGE AFFOHDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CEBNFICATE OF INSUFANCE OOES NOT CONSTTUTE A CONTHACT BETWEEN THE ISSUTNG INSUREB(S). AUTHORIZED

REPHESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CEHTIFICATE HOLDER-

lf,'llPOBTANT: lf th e certrilcate nolder is an ADDTTIONAL INSUFIED, the po lruytres, rnust I t{a ve ADDIT1ONAL INSUHED provisions or be endorsed.

lf suBRoGATloN ls \/AlvED, subject to the terms and condilions of the pollcy. certain policies may require an endorsemenl. A statement on

this certilicate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lleu ol such endorsemenl{E)

PRODUCEH

East Main Street lrrsurance Se,vices, lrrc

Wrll il{add,-rx

PO Box 1 298

Grass Valley,

IHSUfiED

\''.ti! I'j'acd-,:,(.

i5lt0; 477'6521

in{o € the Arithc r.cci:'r

cA 95945

Jose Prrteda

485 Rio Fr ir> St

lulerrciota CA 938+0

COVERAGES FICATE NUMBER

DEScfftPIIONOFOpERAIIONS/LOCAnONSIVEHICLES (ACOB0l0l,AdditionalBemartsscnedule,maybeattachedifmorespaceisrequirad)

Certilicate hr:lder listeC belor.; is named as e..Jdrtional insured per attached fu1EGL 221 7 01 1S.

10C0, Ei'etrt Type: Scccer Ganre 'Arr:atetir cnlY

REVISION

iS T{} CEtrTl=\ T!-{AT Tl+= ptLit]lES CF lNSl-:R-Ai'if,E l-lST=D E=-C';','HA,'',"E tsEEi'l

CERTIFICA.I-E t.iAY E= ISSjEo cR IlAY FERTAI\. TLi= Ii.:.S'JRA\L-: iEiORDED EY ThF =C.IL-IES 5=SC-<iEED H=REIIi iS SLi3,=CT TC A:L TF= T=F.I,]S,

EXCLJSTI:rS ANI CONOiTtCI{S C= S:JC.l FC,lclES, Llt.liTS -aF,C.1,'N :.l.tY lA.t.'E B=E\j F.ECUCEt EY FAIJ CLAI;.lS

ISSUED TC THE |iiS,UR:D i\,iAI.1=f, A3O.v E Ft]R THE PC-IC.r, ;-RIO]

LI"IITSTYPE OF I}JSURAIJCE

l,COO,CCO

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000

{14/09/2022 04109i2023

12:01 AM 12:01 AM

COT.{f.{E R CIAL GEHEEAL LTABILTTY

i.-,. .i-,'!r= iXl c:r.=
, 
Hqst Ligt-:or .Liability
Retari Lrrlr-,o r Liaurlrty i soss4Tg-[,12708985

=i._-
: --j-

I

i
I

I

I

I

I
I

I

:X
YA

;
I

ilx
I

I

Xi

I

I

I
l--, 

- 
- 

_1\l'

, !-l/

| 
--F

;- j', 
=i'i:- 5.^'..-:-= '- , i

i-n 
-.. -.1-)\:IrrEl'.. -: :

s.--. .,r, .= ,'.22.-=.c-,-
'--- -. 

r-: \I ! FY'L< .'

L--.i-';' 1.,--i.r '-i'a:: la-:,
-Fi::i;tr 

- 1: -,31
- r .!-a.r

-=! .'t - r'..: .'

A LTTO fiIO B ILE LIA BILITY

i +l-l .ir-'rc

- 
i,'. t.Il i ' 

I s,:-=l -_=f,
*. J -.i;Ti_S Ct.-\' l- .. I iul.lS

i-iR,E.3 I li,"i\-t.,.'l.EI
**t Ai,TiS Gl\-Y l*-J i'-;-(13 O''.'-'tirl

I

=-:iC'::-;--=i,l:
i.l,l: 

=c 
il=

.tt-o I li _- |.-', i i
i excess L|AB I I c:e.li.t5_r.1i.3=i i

-ili ItED tR=r=l.iri.:,r{5 t l

? - =)f:.'i 
i(l; :.=.l,lT

E.. lr3;.:.-c! - Fa_r,::'Y' _1 .' T

l-='( i i U,i-lsi;r;'= L !=='YTIORK E RS CO rdPEH SATIOIJ
ANO ET.{PLOYERS' LIABI LITY

a.r1? ;_1,1, =;., =-ili, 
i iRT., 

==,3 
: l- J-ii., 

=l-
r. r .JLr \ i. 

-,.

(i,{andatory in HHt
rJ, r-<
t' i r.

:=SiF,rF-i'.1I. C= i?=fi'tl,:-'1.S :+' j',

.I

I
I

HilY/N

F

E 1988-2015 ACORD COHPOHATION

The ACOBD name and logo are registered marks of ACOHD

TlON

SHOULD ANY OF THE AEOVE DESCRIBED POLIGIES BE CANCELLED BEFOFIE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEFIEOF, NOT}CE U/ILL BE DELIVEFIEO IN
ACCOFIOANCE V{ITH THE POLICY FHOVTSIONS.

AUTH OHIZED H EPRES ENTATIVE

Rojas Pierce Par*

City of ivterrdota

297 Sarr Pedrc St

lt4gsirJurr.e cA 9'.1640

ACOHD 2s t2016/03)

All rights reserved.

a }

INSUHEH(S} AFFORDI}iO COYEFAG E NAIC:r

35378Evartston lrtErrt erlo?

TNSUHE[_^B ;

INSUBEH C :

INSUHEB D :

INSURER E r

NUMBEFI:

i!llil
'oi Iiili

i
I
t

I

I

I
l

I
i
I

I
l
I
I



q

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
POLICY NtJN,1 BER : 3DS5"+73 -N,tZ7 ABgBs

INARfiTT

EVANSTON INSURANGE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHA,NGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

ADDITIONAL INSURED . DESIGNATED
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsenrent modifies irrsurance provideC under the fotlowing

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORi\4

SCHEDU LE

Name Of Additional lnsur:ed Person(s) Or Organization(s)
Rojas Pierce Park
City of lv'lerrc{ota
297 San Pedro St
Menclota, CA 93640

A. Section ll - Who ls An lrrsured is amended to include as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) shown
in the Schedule of this endorsement, but only with respect to liabitity for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal
and advertising injury" caused, in whofe or in part. by the acts or omissions of any insured listed under Paragraph 1. or
2. of Section ll - Who ls An lnsured:

1. ln the performance of your orrgoing operations; or

2. ln connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

However:

t. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law: and

?. lf coverage provided to the additional insured is required by a contract or agreement, the insurance afforded to such
additional irrsured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract or agreement to provide for
such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following is added to Section lll - Limits Of
Irrsurance:

lf coverage provided to the additional insured is required by a contract or agreement. the most we will pay on behalf of
the additional insured is the amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicabte Limits of lnsurance shown in the Declarations;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable Limits of lnsurance shown in the Declaratiorrs.

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged

Incir:des copyrighted material of lnsurance Semices Office, lno.,
u.,ith its perntission.

MEGL 2217 0r t I Page 1 of 1

t

I



F\rA

City of Mendota
Facility Use Application lnstructions

643 Quince Street
Mendota, California 93640

Phone: (559) 655-3291 t Fax' (559) 655-4064

A Facility Use Permit is required for use of any facilities owned by the City of M
pre-advertised assembly or by groups of 25 or more people. Rates and fees are
City Gouncil approval. Gity sponsored/co-sponsored events will take precedence and othe r
reserved events. To obtain copies of fee schedules, forms, and policies and to view the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"), please contact Mendota City Hall ("Gity Hall") at (559) 655-3291 or visit the
City's website at ci.mendota.ca.us.

Process for Completinq the Facilitv Uqe Applicatisn:
1. Fill Out Facility Use Appiication And Sign lt: Fill out the application as completely as possible and read the

"Agreement and Release of Liability" section on the last page of the application and sign it. You will also need to
initial the bottom ,cf this Application lnstructions Page. lf you have any questions regarding the application, contact
City Hall at (559) 655-3291. For additional information regarding the Facility Use Application ("Application")
process, including the annual exclusive use process, please refer to MMC Chapler 12.2O.

2. Turn ln Facility Use Application To City Hall: Once the Application has been completed it must be turned in to
City Hall, 643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640. lf you would prefer to submit the Application electronically,
please call City Hallto obtain the e-mail address to send the application to.

3. Getting Facility Use Application Approved: Within 10 working days, unless otherwise noted, of the date all
applicable papenrvork ha_s been turned in to City Hall, you will be notified via mail (and e-mail, if applicable) of the
status of your application. lf your application is approved, you will be provided a copy of the Application (which
contains the conditions of approval), any other required permiVlicense applications, and an invoice for the
fee/deposit required. lf payment of deposit is not received by the date indicated on the invoice, you will forfeit your
approved date(s) and will be required to submit a new Application to reactivate your eligibility for the use of the
facility and become dependent upon the availability of that date. All remaining fees are due the week prior to the
event.

Add illgna I I nformation.FRoa rd in q Faqilltv Use Perm its :
r Certificates Of lnsurance Required For All Facility Use Permit Applications. All individuals/organizations

subrnitting an Application must provide the City with certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing liability
and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), with
a deductible of no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), and which shall specify the City and the applicant as
named insured. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be filed with the City upon approval of the
Application.

. lf Alcoholic Beverages Are To Be Served/Sold: You will be required to obtain a license from the California
Departmeht of Alcoholic Beverage Control. Please submit an original license application to City Hall to obtain City
approval as required by the Application. Once you receive the official license from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control, you must submit a copy to City Hall as part of the conditions of approval. You will
also be required to contract security services as required by the Mendota Police Department.

. lf Businesses Will Be Contracted To Present, Produce, Or Othenrvise Be lnvolved ln The Event, Activity Or
Entertainrnent: Any businesses (including promoters, food/item vendors, live bands/DJs, etc.)that are contracted
for any and all portions of the event, must obtain a City business license in accordance with Title 5 of the MMC.
For information regarding the business license process and fees, contact City Hall at (559) 655-3291.

o lf The Event Will lnclude A Live Band, DJ, Other Purveyor Of Music, And/Or Amplified Sound Equipment:
You will be required to obtain a City l,loise Permit and to comply with all requirements contained in Chapter 9.05
of the MMC. The fee for a noise permit is $5 per day.

o Additional Gonditions of Approval: The City will provide you with additional conditions of approval that are
specific to your event once your application is approved. lt is required that you also satisfy and comply with all
conditions of approval. Failure to meet the conditions will result in immediate and automatic termination of

NO 
ZV 51o

',t

..,.f,

I

permit.

Applicant lnitial:

t



t
2

City of Mendota
Facility Use Application

643 Quince Street
[Iendota, California 93640

Phone: (559) 655-3291 + Fax: (559) 655-4A64

d. M k.'

lf applicable, is the $ponsoring Organization a registered non-profit organization"/ O No O Yes

Email: ol:,org - .

Sponsoring Organization (if applicable)

Applicant Name: Mendota Unified School District Preschool

  Address

Telephone   

FAGILITY REQUE$T INFORMATISN

Rojas-Pierce Park
E hlain Pavilion
C Concession Stand
C Dining Area
C Picnic Area(s)
C Group BBQ Area
O Other.

Other Parks & Facilities
O Lindgren-Lozano Park
O Veterans Park
C La Colonia Park
C Pool Park
o Jther: nr i,fttrr, ,ffituffi.------

Rojas-Pierce Park Sport Fields
C Benny Nlares Sr. Baseball Field
C New Baseball Field
C Danny Trejo Soccer Field
O Daniel "Gordo" Porras Youth Soccer

Field
O Eddie Porras Basketbatl Court(s)
C David Daniel Skate Park
C Baseball Field Concession Stand

Facility( ies) Requested (Check all applicable boxesf :

EVENT NHTAILS

Will there be an admission fee forthe event? 6 No O Yes lf yes,listthe amountandthereasonforthisfee:

Will there be a live band, DJ, other purveyor of music, and/or amplified sound equipment'i
6 No O Yes lf yes, p/ease see instructlons page for requirements regarding noise.

Will any businesses be contracted to present, produce, or otherwise be involved in the event, activity, or

the event? CI NO O Yes lf yes, please see rnslruclions pagefor requirements regardingbusinesses.

Preschool g rad uation ceremony

BAM-I PMTirne(s)lVrav 31 .2023

Will alcoholic beverages be soldlserved at the event?

60

entertainment during

Estimated Number of Attendees:

6No OYes
/f yes, please see instructions page for requirements regarding alcohol,

Purpose

Date(s):

Does the event have a Promoter? 6 No O Yes
Ifyes, Iistthename,telephone andaddress of theprcmoteronthelinebelow and seeinstructions pageforreguirementsregarding businesses.

Will the event generate proceeds/revenue or serve as a fundraiser? 6 No O Yes
lf yes, ist the individual(s)lorganization(s) that will receive proceeds and how they will be divided:

2

,
f-qfl

APPLICANT INFORMATION



Describe how the event will benefit the community of Mendota.

Provide a description of the event, including but not limited to: 1) All entertainment and activities that will occur,
2) Any equipmenVvehicles that will be used and the nature and times of use of such equipment, 3) the nature
and duration of the use of any amplified sound equipment, and 4) Any additional information that will assist
the City of Mendota in considering the application.
Items that are not mentioned below will not be permifted. You may add additional pages, if necessary.

W rs an e cerernon

AGREEHIENT AND RELEASE OF

The Applicant has read the Facility Use Application lnstructions Page and has been instructed to review all regulations
and requirernents for events contained in City of Mendota ("City") Administrative Policies, forms, and in the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"). The Appiicant understands and agrees to comply with all Local, State, and Federal
requirements, regulations, and conditions for conducting the event on any facilities owned by the City. The Applicant also
understandsthatfailureto complywith.all Local, State, and Federalrequirements, regulations, and conditionswillresult
in the forfeiture of any deposits paid related to the event and possible denial of future applications
The Applicant agrees to indemnify the City and its agents, employees, and officers against any and all liability, losses,
claiffis, damages, fees of attorneys, and other expenses which the City or its agents, ernployees, or officers, may sustain
or incur in consequence of the use by Applicant of the facilities or arising out of any act or activity conducted by the
Applicant on facilities owned by the City, including, but not limited to, sums paid or incurred in connection with claiffis,
suits, or judgment or paid or incurred in attempting to procure release from liability for any person in;ured as a result of
the activitie$ referred to herein. ln additio n, Applicant agrees to defend and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents,
and officers against any and all claim, loss, damage, or liability arising out of any conduct by nt on the facilities
owned by the City

Dated : 211123 Araceli Perez

Print Name

For City of Mendota Staff Use Only

Application Status: O Approved
Conditions of Approval :

O Denied Permit No.

Dated:
Staff Name Staff Signature

Police Conditions
Secu rity/Safety Conditions of Approval (if applicable):

Dated:
Staff Narne Staff Sig rature

aJ



ru& No zT-c7
City of Mendota

Facility Use Application Instructions
643 Quince Street

Mendota, California 93640
Phone: (559) 655-3291 I Fax: (559) 655-4064

A Facility Use Permit is required for use of any facilities owned by the City of Mendota ("City") for any
pre-advertised assembly or by groups of 25 or more people. Rates and fees are subiect to change upon
City Council approval. Gity sponsored/co-sponsored events will take precedence and may bump other
reseryed events. To obtain copies of fee schedules, forms, and policies and to view the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"), please contact Mendota Gity Hall ("City Hall") at (559) 655-3291 or visit the
City's website at ci.mendota.ca.us.

Process for Gomoletinq the Facilitv Use Application:
1. Fill Out Facility Use Application And Sign lt: Fill out the application as completely as possible and read the

"Agreement and Release of Liability" section on the last page of the application and sign it. You will also need to
initialthe bottom of this Application lnstructions Page. lf you have any questions regarding the application, contact
City Hall at (559) 655-3291. For additional information regarding the Facility Use Application ("Application")
process, including the annual exclusive use process, please refer to MMC Chapter 12.20.

2. Turn ln Facility Use Application To City Hall: Once the Application has been completed it must be turned in to
City Hall, 643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640. lf you would prefer to submit the Application electronically,
please call City Hallto obtain the e-mail address to send the application to.

3. Gefting Facility Use Application Approved: Within 10 working days, unless otherwise noted, of the date all
applicable papenarork has been turned in to City Hall, you will be notified via mail (and e-mail, if applicable) of the
status of your application. lf your application is approved, you will be provided a copy of the Application (which
contains the conditions of approval), any other required permiUlicense applications, and an invoice for the
fee/deposit required. lf payment of deposit is not received by the date indicated on the invoice, you will forfeit your
approved date(s) and will be required to submit a new Application to reactivate your eligibility for the use of the
facility and become dependent upon the availability of that date. All remaining fees are due the week prior to the
event.

Additional lnformation Reqardinq Facilitv Use Permits:
o Certificates Of lnsurance Required For All Facility Use Permit Applications. All individuals/organizations

submitting an Application must provide the Citywith certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing liability
and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), with
a deductible of no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), and which shall specify the City and the applicant as
named insured. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be filed with the City upon approval of the
Application.

. lf Alcoholic Beverages Are To Be Served/Sold: You will be required to obtain a license from the California
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control. Please submit an original license application to City Hallto obtain Cig
approval as required by the Application. Once you receive the official license from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control, you must submit a copy to City Hall as part of the conditions of approval. You will
also be required to contract security services as required by the Mendota Police Department.

. lf Businesses Will Be Contracted To Present, Produce, Or Otherwise Be lnvolved !n The Event, Activity Or
Entertainment: Any businesses (including promoters, food/item vendors, live bands/DJs, etc.) that are contracted
for any and all portions of the event, must obtain a City business license in accordance with Title 5 of the MMC.
For information regarding the business license process and fees, contact City Hall at (559) 655-3291.

. lf The Event Will lnclude A Live Band, DJ, Other Purveyor Of Music, And/Or Amplified Sound Equipment:
You will be required to obtain a City Noise Permit and to comply with all requirements contained in Chapter 9.05
of the MMC. The fee for a noise permit is $5 per day.

. Additional Conditions of Approval: The City will provide you with additional conditions of approval that are
specific to your event once your application is approved. lt is required that you also satisff and comply with all
conditions of approval. Failure to meet the conditions will result in immediate and automatic termination of the

1,

permit.

Applicant lnitial

-



a

City of Mendota
Facility Use Application

643 Quince Street
Mendota, California 93640

Phone: (559) 655-3291 I Fax: (559) 655-4064

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Applicant Name:

Address.

Sponsoring Organization (if applicable):

Telephone

lf applicable, is the Sponsoring Organization a registered non-profit organization? O No O Yes

Email:

FACILITY REQUEST INFORMATION

Facility(ies) Requested (Check all applicable boxes):

Rojas-Pierce Park Sport Fields
O Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field
O New Baseball Field
O Danny Trejo Soccer Field
O Daniel "Gordo" Porras Youth Soccer

Field
O Eddie Porras Basketball Court(s)
O David Daniel Skate Park
O Baseball Field Concession Stand

Roias-Pierce Park
F Main Pavilion

P Concession Stand
O Dining Area
O Picnic Area(s)
O Group BBQ Area
O Other:

Other Parks & Facilities
O Lindgren-Lozano Park
O Veterans Park
O La Colonia Park
O Pool Park
O Other:

EVENT DETAILS

Purpose

Date(s):

Estimated Number of Attendees: t m)
Will there be an admission fee for the event? ,9 No O Yes /fyes, /rsf the amountandthereasonforthisfee:

\Mll alcoholic beverages be sold/served at the event? O No p Yes
/fyes, p/ealse see instructions page for requirements regarding alcohol.

Willthere be a live band, DJ, other purveyor of music, and/or amplified sound equipment?
O NO @ YeS /f yes, p/ease see rnstru ctions page for requirements regarding noise.

Will any businesses be contracted to present, produce, or othenrise be involved in the event, activity, or
entertainment during the event? O No I Yes lf yes, p/ease see lnstructlons pa ge for requirements regardingbustnesses.

Does the event have a Promoter? p No O Yes
lf yes, list the name, telephone and addless of the promoter on the line below and see instructions page for requirements regarding busrnesses.

Will the event generate proceeds/revenue or serve as a fund Yes
divided:/f yes, /rsf fhe individudk)/oroanizationk) thatwill receive' 

ll1 d,rt rl ,n&' \Al-l;' 'l?or**-^

2

JJ ( rf e r, 7^?3'*J 1!t y'te.l, 
"'riatimelsl: 

b'ro l-,^, .ia 12] a) rn.J



Describe how the event will benefit the commu of Mendota.nity
+

Provide a description of the event, including but not limited to: 1) All entertainment and activities that will occur,
2) Any equipmenUvehicles that will be used and the nature and times of use of such equipment, 3) the nature
and duration of the use of any amplified sound equipment, and 4) Any additional information that will assist
the City of Mendota in considering the application.
Items that are not mentioned below will not be permitted. You may add additional pages, if necessary.

ci,

AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY

The Applicant has read the Facility Use Application lnstructions Page and has been instructed to review all regulations
and requirements for events contained in City of Mendota ('City') Administrative Policies, forms, and in the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"). The Applicant understands and agrees to comply with all Local, State, and Federal
requirements, regulations, and conditions for conducting the event on any facilities owned by the City. The Applicant also
understands that failure to comply with all Local, State, and Federal requirements, regulations, and conditions will result
in the forfeiture of any deposits paid related to the event and possible denial of future applications.
The Applicant agrees to indemnify the City and its agents, employees, and officers against any and all liability, losses,
claims, damages, fees of attorneys, and other expenses which the City or its agents, employees, or officers, may sustain
or incur in consequence of the use by Applicant of the facilities or arising out of any act or activity conducted by the
Applicant on facilities owned by the City, including, but not limited to, sums paid or incurred in connection with claims,
suits, or judgment or paid or incurred in attempting to procure release from liability for any person injured as a result of
the activities referred to herein. ln addition, Applicant agrees to defend and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents,
and officers against any and all claim, loss, damage, or liability arising out of any conduct by Applicant on the facilities
owned by the City.

Dated. J-Ji -)oJ? Aew*,D \\aldt?
Print Narde S

For City of Mendota Staff Use Only

Application Status:
Conditions of Approval

O Approved O Denied Permit No.

Dated:
Staff Name Staff Signature

Police Department Conditions
Security/Safety Conditions of Approval (if applicable):

Dated:
Staff Name Staff Signature

3



7 FtrA No 2Ta8
City of Mendota

Facility Use Application lnstructions
643 Quince Street

Mendota, California 93640
Phone: (559) 655-3291 I Fax: (559) 655-4064

A Facility Use Permit is required for use of any facilities owned by the City of Mendota ("City") for any
pre-advertised assembly or by groups of 25 or more people. Rates and fees are subiect to change upon
City Council approval. City sponsored/co-sponsored events will take precedence and may bump other
reserved events. To obtain copies of fee schedules, foms, and policies and to view the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"), please contact Mendota City Hall ("City Hall") at (559) 655-3291 or visit the
City's website at ci.mendota.ca.us.

Process for Gompletinq the Facilitv Use Application:
1. Fi!! Out Facility Use Application And Sign lt: Fill out the application as completely as possible and read the

"Agreement and Release of Liability" section on the last page of the application and sign it. You will also need to
initial the bottom of this Application lnstructions Page. lf you have any questions regarding the application, contact
City Hall at (559) 655-3291. For additional information regarding the Facility Use Application ("Application")
process, including the annual exclusive use process, please refer to MMC Chapter 12.20.

2. Turn ln Facility Use Application To City Ha!!: Once the Application has been completed it must be turned in to
City Hall, 643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640. lf you would prefer to submit the Application electronically,
please call City Hallto obtain the e-mail address to send the application to.

3. Getting Facility Use Application Approved: \Mthin 10 working days, unless otherwise noted, of the date all
applicable paperwork has been turned in to City Hall, you will be notified via mail (and e-mail, if applicable) of the
status of your application. lf your application is approved, you will be provided a copy of the Application (which
contains the conditions of approval), any other required permiUlicense applications, and an invoice for the
fee/deposit required. lf payment of deposit is not received by the date indicated on the invoice, you will forfeit your
approved date(s) and will be required to submit a new Application to reactivate your eligibility for the use of the
facility and become dependent upon the availability of that date. All remaining fees are due the week prior to the
event.

Additional lnformation Reoardinq Facilitv Use Permits:
o Gertificates Of lnsurance Required For All Facility Use Permit Applications. All individuals/organizations

submitting an Application must provide the City with certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing liability
and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), with
a deductible of no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), and which shallspeciff the City and the applicant as
named insured. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be filed with the City upon approval of the
Application.

o If Alcoholic Beverages Are To Be Served/Sold: You will be required to obtain a license from the California
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control. Please submit an original license application to City Hallto obtain City
approval as required by the Application. Once you receive the official license from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control, you must submit a copy to City Hall as part of the conditions of approval. You will
also be required to contract security services as required by the Mendota Police Department.

o lf Businesses Will Be Gontracted To Present, Produce, Or Otheruvise Be lnvolved ln The Event, Activity Or
Entertainment: Any businesses (including promoters, food/item vendors, live bands/DJs, etc.) that are contracted
for any and all portions of the event, must obtain a City business license in accordance with Title 5 of the MMC.
For information regarding the business license process and fees, contact City Hall at (559) 655-3291.

o lf The Event Will lnclude A Live Band, DJ, Other Purveyor Of Music, And/Or Amplified Sound Equipment:
You will be required to obtain a City Noise Permit and to comply with all requirements contained in Chapter 9.05
of the MMC. The fee for a noise permit is $5 per day.

o Additiona! Gonditions of Approval: The City will provide you with additional conditions of approval that are
specific to your event once your application is approved. lt is required that you also satisff and comply with all
conditions of approval. Failure to meet the conditions will result in immediate and automatic termination of the
permit.

1

Applicant !nitial:

f



City of Mendota
Facility Use Application

643 Quince Street
Mendota, California 93640

Phone: (559) 655-3291 I Fax: (559) 655-4064

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Name PftApplicant

Address:

Sponsoring Organization (if applicable):

Telepho

lf applicable, is the Sponsoring Organization a registered non-profit organization? O No O Yes

ne:   Email:

FACILITY REQUEST INFORMATION

Facility(ies) Requested (Check all applicable boxes):

Rojas-Pierce Park Sport Fields
O Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field
O New Baseball Field
O Danny Trejo Soccer Fleld
O Daniel "Gordo" Porras Youth Soccer

Field
O Eddie Porras Basketball Court(s)
O David Daniel Skate Park
O Baseball Field Concession Stand

Rojas-Pierce Park
O Main Pavilion
O Concession Stand
O Dining Area
O Picnic Area(s)
O Group
6 other: l-o*

Other Parks & Facilities
O Lindgren-Lozano Park
O Veterans Park
O La Colonia Park
O Pool Park
O Other:

EVENT DETAILS

Purpose: 4,, Cr{

Date(s) Time(s C,, tr4 (/. q)
Estimated Number of Attendees 9e
Will there be an admission fee for the event? ,D No O Yes ffyes,listtheamountandthereasonforthisfee:/

Will alcoholic beverages be sold/served at the event? ,,p No O Yes
f yes, p/ease see lnstructions page for requirements regarding atcohot.

Wll there be a live band, DJ, other purveyor of music, and/or amplified sound equipment?

P UO O YeS /fyes,pleaseseeinstructionspageforrequiementsregardingnoise.

Will any businesses be contracted to present, produce, or othenrise be involved in the event, activity, or
entertainment during the event? O No p Yes /fyes, p/easeseeinstrucfionspageforrequirementsregardingbusrnesses.

Does the event have a Promoter? p No O Yes
tf yes, list the name, telephone and address of the promoter on the line below and see instructions page for requirements regarding br.rsrnesses.

\Mllthe event generate proceeds/revenue or serve as a fundraiser? )O No O Yes
lf yes, /isf fhe individual(s)/organization(s) that will receive proceeds and how they will be divided:

2



Descri how ll benefit the comm unity of

Provide a description of the event, including but not limited to: 1) All entertainment and activities that will occur,
2) Any equipmenUvehicles that will be used and the nature and times of use of such equipment, 3) the nature
and duration of the use of any amplified sound equipment, and 4) Any additional information that will assist
the City of Mendota in considering the application.
Items that are.not mentioned below will not be permitted. You may add additional pages, if necerpary.

r@^ = )no$"ls Q n) rrt C+>yrrril" -.-,*/ itoalr, * b tt f,i; -

AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY

The Applicant has read the Facility Use Application lnstructions Page and has been instructed to review all regulations
and requirements for events contained in City of Mendota ('City') Administrative Policies, forms, and in the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"). The Applicant understands and agrees to comply with all Local, State, and Federal
requirements, regulations, and conditions for conducting the event on any facilities owned by the City. The Applicant also
understands that failure to comply with all Local, State, and Federal requirements, regulations, and conditions will result
in the forfeiture of any deposits paid related to the event and possible denial of future applications.
The Applicant agrees to indemniff the City and its agents, employees, and officers against any and all liability, losses,
claims, damages, fees of attorneys, and other expenses which the City or its agents, employees, or officers, may sustain
or incur in consequence of the use by Applicant of the facilities or arising out of any act or activity conducted by the
Applicant on facilities owned by the City, including, but not limited to, sums paid or incurred in connection with claims,
suits, or judgment or paid or incurred in attempting to procure release from liability for any person injured as a result of
the activities referred to herein. ln addition, Applicant agrees to defend and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents,
and officers against any and all claim, loss, damage, or liability arising out of any conduct by Applicant on the facilities
owned by the City

Dated: e' 4r ,,?',a} 5
Print N

For City of Mendota Staff Use Only

Application Status:
Conditions of Approva!

O Approved O Denied Permit No

Dated
Staff Name Staff Signature

Police Department Conditions
Security/Safety Conditions of Approval (if applicable)

Dated
Staff Name Staff Signature

3



7 FuA N0 LTE

City of Mendota
Facility Use Application lnstructions

643 Quince Street
Mendota, California 93640

Phone: (559) 655-3291 t Fax: (559) 655-4064

A Facility Use Permit is required for use of any facilities owned by the City of Mendota ("City") for any
pre-advertised assembly or by groups of 25 or more people. Rates and fees are subject to change upon
City Council approval. City sponsored/co-sponsored events will take precedence and may bump other
reseryed events. To obtain copies of fee schedules, forms, and policies and to view the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"), please contact Mendota Gity Hall ("City Hall") at (559) 655-3291 or visit the
City's website at ci.mendota.ca. us.

Process for Completino the Facilitv Use Application:
1. Fill Out Facility Use Application And Sign lt: Fill out the application as completely as possible and read the

"Agreement and Release of Liability" section on the last page of the application and sign it. You will also need to
initial the bottom of this Application lnstructions Page. lf you have any questions regarding the application, contact
City Hall at (559) 655-3291. For additional information regarding the Facility Use Application ("Application")
process, including the annual exclusive use process, please refer to MMC Chapter 12.20.

2. Turn ln Facility Use Application To City Hall: Once the Application has been completed it must be turned in to
City Hall, 643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640. lf you would prefer to submit the Application electronically,
please call City Hallto obtain the e-mail address to send the application to.

3. Getting Facility Use Application Approved: \Mthin 10 working days, unless otherwise noted, of the date all
applicable paperwork has been turned in to City Hall, you will be notified via mail (and e-mail, if applicable) of the
status of your application. lf your application is approved, you will be provided a copy of the Application (which
contains the conditions of approval), any other required permiUlicense applications, and an invoice for the
fee/deposit required. lf payment of deposit is not received by the date indicated on the invoice, you will forfeit your
approved date(s) and will be required to submit a new Application to reactivate your eligibility for the use of the
facility and become dependent upon the availability of that date. All remaining fees are due the week prior to the
event.

Additional lnformation Reqardinq Facilitv Use Permits:
o Certificates Of lnsurance Required For All Facility Use Permit Applications. All individuals/organizations

submitting an Application must provide the City with certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing liability
and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), with
a deductible of no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), and which shall specify the City and the applicant as
named insured. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be filed with the City upon approval of the
Application.

. If Alcoholic Beverages Are To Be Served/Sold: You will be required to obtain a license from the California
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control. Please submit an original license application to City Hallto obtain City
approval as required by the Application. Once you receive the official license from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control, you must submit a copy to City Hall as part of the conditions of approval. You will
also be required to contract security seruices as required by the Mendota Police Department.

. lf Businesses Wil! Be Gontracted To Present, Produce, Or Otherwise Be lnvolved ln The Event, Activity Or
Entertainment: Any businesses (including promoters, food/item vendors, live bands/DJs, etc.) that are contracted
for any and all portions of the event, must obtain a City business license in accordance with Title 5 of the MMC.
For information regarding the business license proc€ss and fees, contact City Hall at (559) 655-3291.

. !f The Event Wil! lnclude A Live Band, DJ, Other Purveyor Of Music, And/Or Amplified Sound Equipment:
You will be required to obtain a City Noise Permit and to comply with all requirements contained in Chapter 9.05
of the MMC. The fee for a noise permit is $5 per day.

o Additional Conditions of Approval: The City will provide you with additional conditions of approval that are
specific to your event once your application is approved. lt is required that you also satisfy and comply with all
conditions of approval. Failure to meet the conditions will result in immediate and automatic termination of the

1,

permit.

Applicant Initial:



City of Mendota
Facility Use Application

643 Quince Street
Mendota, California 93640

Phone: (559) 655-3291 r Fax: (559) 655-4064

APPLICANT INFORMATION

lf applicable, is the Sponsoring Organization a registered non-profit organization? O No O Yes

Email:Telephone:

Sponsoring Organization (if applicable)

NameApplicant

Address:

FACILITY REQUEST INFORMATION

Facility(ies) Requested (Check all applicable boxes)=

Roias-Pierce Park Sport Fields
p Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field
O New Baseball Field
O Danny Trejo Soccer Field
O Daniel "Gordo" Porras Youth Soccer

Field
O Eddie Porras Basketball Court(s)
O David Daniel Skate Park
O Baseball Field Concession Stand

Roias-Pierce Park
P Main Pavilion

P Concession Stand
O Dining Area
O Picnic Area(s)
O Group BBQ Area
O Other:

Other Parks & Facilities
O Lindgren-Lozano Park
O Veterans Park
O La Colonia Park
O Pool Park
O Other:

EVENT DETAILS

Time(s):

t
Purpose:

Date(s):

Estimated Number of Attendees: I(IrT)
Will there be an admission fee for the event? F NO O YeS ff yes, tist the amount and the reason for this fee:

Will alcoholic beverages be sold/served at the event? O No p Yes
/fyes, p/edse see instrudions page for requiements regarding alcohol.

Willthere be a live band, DJ, other purveyor of music, and/or amplified sound equipment?
O NO p YeS /f yes, please see insfructions page for requirements regarding noise.

Will any businesses be contracted to present, produce, or othenrvise be involved in the event, activity, or
entertainment during the event? O No YeS lf yes, p/ease see insfrucfions page for requiremenfs regarding businesses.

Does the event have a Promoter?
lf yes, /isf fhe name, telephone and

9uo
ad(ress of the promoter on the line below and see insfrucfrons page for requiremenfs regarding busrnesses.

O Yes

Will the event generate proceeds/revenue or serve as a fundra
willlf yes,

2

-/*



Describe h will of Mendota.the the mu

I

Provide a description of the event, including but not limited to: 1) All entertainment and activities that will occur,
2) Any equipmenUvehicles that will be used and the nature and times of use of such equipment, 3) the nature
and duration of the use of any amplified sound equipment, and 4) Any additional information that will assist
the City of Mendota in considering the application.
Items that are not mentioned below will not be permitted. You may add additional pages, if necessary.

)^ )rL?)!pPr

AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY

The Applicant has read the Facility Use Application lnstructions Page and has been instructed to review all regulations
and requirements for events contained in City of Mendota ('City') Administrative Policies, forms, and in the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"). The Applicant understands and agrees to comply with all Local, State, and Federal
requirements, regulations, and conditions for conducting the event on any facilities owned by the City. The Applicant also
understands that failure to comply with all Local, State, and Federal requirements, regulations, and conditions will result
in the forfeiture of any deposits paid related to the event and possible denial of future applications.
The Applicant agrees to indemniff the City and its agents, employees, and officers against any and all liability, losses,
claims, damages, fees of attorneys, and other expenses which the City or its agents, employees, or officers, may sustain
or incur in consequence of the use by Applicant of the facilities or arising out of any act or activity conducted by the
Applicant on facilities owned by the City, including, but not limited to, sums paid or incurred in connection with claims,
suits, or judgment or paid or incurred in attempting to procure release from liability for any person injured as a result of
the activities referred to herein. ln addition, Applicant agrees to defend and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents,
and officers against any and all claim, loss, damage, or liability arising out of any conduct by Applicant on the facilities

tnfrDated

owned by the City

For Gitv of Mendota Staff Use Only

Application Status: O Approved
Conditions of Approval:

O Denied Permit No

Dated
Staff Name Staff Signature

Police Department Conditions
Security/Safety Conditions of Approval (if applicable):

Dated
Staff Name Staff Signature

aJ



Ftln No 17-to
City of Mendota

Facility Use Application lnstructions
643 Quince Street

Mendota, California 93640
Phone: (559) 655-3291 r Fax: (559) 655-4064

A Facility Use Permit is required for use of any facilities owned by the City of Mendota ("City") for any
pre-advertised assembly or by groups of 25 or more people. Rates and fees are subiect to change upon
Gity Council approval. Gity sponsored/co-sponsored events will take precedence and may bump other
reserved events. To obtain copies of fee schedules, forms, and policies and to view the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"), please contact Mendota City Hall ("City Hall") at (559) 655-3291 or visit the
Gity's website at ci.mendota.ca. us.

Process for Completinq the Facilitv Use Application:
1. Fill Out Facility Use Application And Sign lt: Fill out the application as completely as possible and read the

"Agreement and Release of Liability" section on the last page of the application and sign it. You will also need to
initial the bottom of this Application lnstructions Page. lf you have any questions regarding the application, contact
City Hall at (559) 655-3291. For additional information regarding the Facility Use Application ("Application")
process, including the annual exclusive use process, please refer to MMC Chapter 12.20.

2. Turn ln Facility Use Application To Gity Hall: Once the Application has been completed it must be turned in to
City Hall, 643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640. lf you would prefer to submit the Application electronically,
please call City Hallto obtain the e-mail address to send the application to.

3. Getting Facility Use Application Approved: \Mthin 10 working days, unless otherwise noted, of the date all
applicable paperwork has been turned in to City Hall, you will be notified via mail (and e-mail, if applicable) of the
status of your application. lf your application is approved, you will be provided a copy of the Application (which
contains the conditions of approval), any other required permiUlicense applications, and an invoice for the
fee/deposit required. lf payment of deposit is not received by the date indicated on the invoice, you will forfeit your
approved date(s) and will be required to submit a new Application to reactivate your eligibility for the use of the
facility and become dependent upon the availability of that date. All remaining fees are due the week prior to the
event.

Additional lnformation Reqardins Facilitv Use Permits:
. Certificates Of lnsurance Required For All Facility Use Permit Applications. All individuals/organizations

submitting an Application must provide the City with certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing liability
and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), with
a deductible of no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), and which shall specifiT the City and the applicant as
named insured. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be filed with the City upon approval of the
Application.

o lf Alcoholic Beverages Are To Be Served/Sold: You will be required to obtain a license from the California
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, Please submit an original license application to City Hallto obtain City
approval as required by the Application. Once you receive the official license from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control, you must submit a copy to City Hall as part of the conditions of approval. You will
also be required to contract security services as required by the Mendota Police Department.

. lf Businesses Wi!! Be Gontracted To Present, Produce, Or Othenrise Be lnvolved !n The Event, Activity Or
Entertainment: Any businesses (including promoters, food/item vendors, live bands/DJs, etc.) that are contracted
for any and all portions of the event, must obtain a City business license in accordance with Title 5 of the MMC.
For information regarding the business license process and fees, contact City Hall at (559) 655-3291.

o lf The Event Will lnclude A Live Band, DJ, Other Purveyor Of Music, And/Or Amplified Sound Equipment:
You will be required to obtain a City Noise Permit and to comply with all requirements contained in Chapter 9.05
of the MMC. The fee for a noise permit is $5 per day.

. Additional Gonditions of Approval: The City will provide you with additional conditions of approval that are
specific to your event once your application is approved. lt is required that you also satisff and comply with all
conditions of approval. Failure to meet the conditions will result in immediate and automatic termination of the
permit.

Applicant lnitial:

1,



City of Mendota
Facility Use Application

643 Quince Street
Mendota, California 93640

Phone: (559) 655-3291 I Fax: (559) 655-4064

APPLICANT INFORMATION

{nen cb'h Yowln D" c\<e{,,n-,Applicant

Address:

lf applicable, is the Sponsoring Organization a registered non-profit organization? O No O Yes

Telephone Email

Sponsoring Organization (if applicable ):

ACILITY REQUEST INFORMATION

Facility(ies) Requested (Check all applicable boxes):

Rojas-Pierce Park Sport Fields
O Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field
O New Baseball Field
O Danny Trejo Soccer Field
O Daniel "Gordo" Porras Youth Soccer

Field
O Eddie Porras Basketball Court(s)
O David Daniel Skate Park
O Basebal! Field Concession Stand

Rojas-Pierce Park
O Main Pavilion
O Concession Stand
O Dining Area
O Picnic Area(s)
O Group

W other:
BBQ Area

iiriki,i t'r

Other Parks & Facilities
O Lindgren-Lozano Park
O Veterans Park
O La Colonia Park
O Pool Park
O Other:

EVENT DETAILS

Purpose:

Date(s): @c* flq za e> Time(s) oo1

e,/
Estimated Number of Attendees w'
Willthere be an admission fee forthe event? DNo O Yes ffyes,tisttheamountandthereasonforthrsfee;

/
Will alcoholic beverages be sold/served at the event? F No O Yes

l/yes, please se e instructions page for requirements regarding alcohot.

Will there be a live band, DJ, other purveyor of music, and/or amplified sound equipment?
pNO O YeS /fyes, p/ease see instructions page for requirements regarding noise.

Will any businesses be contracted to present, produce, or otherwise be involved in the event, activity, or
entertainment during the event? O No pYeS If yes, please see instrucfions page for requirements regarding busrnesses,

Does the event have a Promoter? flNo O Yes
lf yes, list the name, telephone and addftss of fh e promoter on the line below and see rnstrucfion s page for requirements regarding businesses.

Willthe event generate proceeds/revenue or serve as a fundraiser? p No O Yes
lf yes, list the individual(s)/organiation(s) that will receive proceeds and hofi they will be divided:

2

)



Describe the nt will benefit the commun ity of

Provide a description of the event, including but not limited to: 1) All entertainment and activities that will occur,
2) Any equipmenUvehicles that will be used and the nature and times of use of such equipment, 3) the nature
and duration of the use of any amplified sound equipment, and 4) Any additional information that will assist
the City of Mendota in considering the application.
Items are not below will not be permitted. You may additional pages, if necessa4f.

LJ

AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY

The Applicant has read the Facility Use Application lnstructions Page and has been instructed to review all regulations
and requirements for events contained in City of Mendota ("City') Administrative Policies, forms, and in the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"). The Applicant understands and agrees to comply with all Local, State, and Federal
requirements, regulations, and conditions for conducting the event on any facilities owned by the Cig. The Applicant also
understbnds that failure to comply with all Local, State, and Federal requirements, regulations, and conditions will result
in the forfeiture of any deposits paid related to the event and possible denial of future applications.
The Applicant agrees to indemnify the Ci$ and its agents, employees, and officers against any and all liability, losses,
claims, damages, fees of attorneys, and other expenses which the City or its agents, employees, or officers, may sustain
or incur in consequence of the use by Applicant of the facilities or arising out of any act or activity conducted by the
Applicant on facilities owned by the City, including, but not limited to, sums paid or incurred in connection with claims,
suits, or judgment or paid or incurred in attempting to procure release from liability for any person injured as a result of
the activities referred to herein. ln addition, Applicant agrees to defend and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents,
and officers against any and all claim, loss, damage, or liability arising out of any conduct by Applicant on the facilities
owned by the City

Dated: gl!t 3 -, \, rh*ffi T

For City of Mendota Staff Use Only

Application Status:
Conditions of Approval

O Approved O Denied Permit No.

Dated:
Staff Name Staff Signature

Police Department Gonditions
Security/Safety Conditions of Approval (if applicable):

Dated
Staff Name Staff Signature

a
3



- Fu,\ No Z1-1r
City of Mendota

Facility Use Application lnstructions
643 Quince Street

Mendota, California 93640
Phone: (559) 655-3291 r Fax: (559) 655-4064

A Facility Use Permit is required for use of any facilities owned by the Gity of Mendota ("City") for any
pre-advertised assembly or by groups of 25 or more people. Rates and fees are subject to change upon
City Council approval. City sponsored/co-sponsored events will take precedence and may bump other
reserved events. To obtain copies of fee schedules, foms, and policies and to view the Mendota
Municipal Code ("ll,lMG"), please contact Mendota City Hall ("City Hall") at (559) 655-3291 or visit the
City's website at ci.mendota.ca. us.

Process for Completinq the Facilitv Use Application:
1. Fill Out Facility Use Application And Sign lt: Fill out the application as completely as possible and read the

"Agreement and Release of Liability" section on the last page of the application and sign it. You will also need to
initial the bottom of this Application lnstructions Page. lf you have any questions regarding the application, contact
City Hall at (559) 655-3291. For additional information regarding the Facility Use Application ("Application")
process, including the annual exclusive use process, please refer to MMC Chapter 12.20.

2. Turn !n Facility Use Application To City Hall: Once the Application has been completed it must be turned in to
City Hall, 643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640. lf you would prefer to submit the Application electronically,
please call City Hallto obtain the e-mail address to send the application to.

3. Gefting Facility Use Application Approved: Within 10 working days, unless otherwise noted, of the date all
applicable paperwork has been turned in to City Hall, you will be notified via mail (and e-mail, if applicable) of the
status of your application. lf your application is approved, you will be provided a copy of the Application (which
contains the conditions of approval), any other required permiUlicense applications, and an invoice for the
fee/deposit required. lf payment of deposit is not received by the date indicated on the invoice, you will forfeit your
approved date(s) and will be required to submit a new Application to reactivate your eligibility for the use of the
facility and become dependent upon the availability of that date. All remaining fees are due the week prior to the
event.

Additional Information Reoardino Facilitv Use Permits:
o Certificates Of lnsurance Required For All Facility Use Permit Applications. All individuals/organizations

submitting an Application must provide the City with certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing liability
and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), with
a deductible of no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), and which shall specify the City and the applicant as
named insured. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be filed with the City upon approval of the
Application.

. lf Alcoholic Beverages Are To Be Served/Sold: You will be required to obtain a license from the California
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control. Please submit an original license application to City Hallto obtain City
approval as required by the Application. Once you receive the official license from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control, you must submit a copy to City Hall as part of the conditions of approval. You will
also be required to contract security services as required by the Mendota Police Department.

. lf Businesses Wi!! Be Contracted To Present, Produce, Or Otheruvise Be lnvolved ln The Event, Activity Or
Entertainment: Any businesses (including promoters, food/item vendors, live bands/DJs, etc.) that are contracted
for any and all portions of the event, must obtain a City business license in accordance with Title 5 of the MMC.
For information regarding the business license process and fees, contact City Hall at (559) 655-3291.

o If The Event Will lnclude A Live Band, DJ, Other Purveyor Of Music, And/Or Amplified Sound Equipment:
You will be required to obtain a City Noise Permit and to comply with all requirements contained in Chapter 9.05
of the MMC. The fee for a noise permit is $5 per day.

. Additional Conditions of Approva!: The City will provide you with additional conditions of approval that are
specific to your event once your application is approved. lt is required that you also satisty and comply with all
conditions of approval. Failure to meet the conditions will result in immediate and automatic termination of the

1,

permit.

Applicant lnitial



?
'( I

City of Mendota
Facility Use Application

643 Quince Street
Mendota, California 93640

Phone: (559) 655-3291 I Fax: (559) 655-4064

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Applicant Name

Address

Sponsoring Organization (if appl )

Telephone

lf applicable, is the Sponsoring Organization a registered non-profit organization? O No O Yes

Email:

FACILITY REQUEST INFORMATION

Facility(ies) Requested (Check all applicable boxes)=

Rojas-Pierce Park Sport Fields
O Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field
O New Baseball Field
O Danny Trejo Soccer Field
O Daniel "Gordo" Porras Youth Soccer

Field
O Eddie Porras Basketball Court(s)
O David Daniel Skate Park
O Baseball Field Concession Stand

Rojas-Pierce Park
O Main Pavilion
O Concession Stand
O Dining Area
O Picnic Area(s)
O Group BBQ Area
O Other:

Other Parks & Facilities
O Lindgren-Lozano Park
O Veterans Park
O La Colonia Park
O Pool Park
p Other:

(r,'Tl,^ -1W grattsv 
0t/rh {v

EVENT DETAILS

Purpose

Date(s): Time(s)

Estimated Number of Attendees:

-

Will there be an admission fee for the event? ,9 No O Yes tf yes, tistthe amount andthe reasonforthisfee:

Will alcoholic beverages be sold/served at the event, 
,,Hr,

No O Yes
p/ease see insfrucfions page for requiremenfs regarding alcohol.

Will there be a live band, DJ, other purveyor of music, and/or amplified sound equipment?
ONo YeS lf yes, p/ease see rnsfrucfions page for requiremenfs regarding norse,

Will any businesses be contracted to present, produce, or otherwise be involved in the event, activity, or
entertainment during the event? O No YeS ff yes, p/ease see rnsfrucfions page for requiremenfs regarding busrnesses.

Does the event have a Promoter? D No O Yes
tf yes, list the name, telephone and address of the promoter on the tine below and see instructions page for requirements regarding bgsrnesses.

Will the event generate proceeds/revenue or serve as a fundraiser? p4rlo O Yes
lf yes, list the individual(s)/organization(s) that will rxeive proceeds and ho{ they witl be dMded:

2

8at



Describe how the event will benefit the of ndota
+

Provide a description of the event, including but not limited to: 1) All entertainment and activities that will occur,
2) Any equipmenUvehicles that will be used and the nature and times of use of such equipment, 3) the nature
and duration of the use of any amplified sound equipment, and 4) Any additional information that will assist
the City of Mendota in considering the application.
Items that are not mentioned below will not be permitted. You may add additional pages, if

E\
T

AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY
The Applicant has read the Facility Use Application lnstructions Page and has been instructed to review all regulations
and requirements for events contained in City of Mendota ('City') Administrative Policies, forms, and in the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"). The Applicant understands and agrees to comply with all Local, State, and Federal
requirements, regulations, and conditions for conducting the event on any facilities owned by the City. The Applicant also
understands that failure to comply with all Local, State, and Federal requirements, regulations, and conditions will result
in the forfeiture of any deposits paid related to the event and possible denial of future applications.
The Applicant agrees to indemniiT the City and its agents, employees, and officers against any and all liability, losses,
claims, damages, fees of attorneys, and other expenses which the City or its agents, employees, or officers, may sustain
or incur in consequence of the use by Applicant of the facilities or arising out of any act or activity conducted by the
Applicant on facilities owned by the City, including, but not limited to, sums paid or incurred in connection with claims,
suits, or judgment or paid or incurred in attempting to procure release from liability for any person injured as a result of
the activities referred to herein. ln addition, Applicant agrees to defend and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents,
and officers against any and all claim, loss, damage, or liability arising out of any conduct by Applicant on the facilities
owned by the City

Dated t.2l)Z
Print

For City of Mendota Staff Use Only

O Denied Permit No

Dated
Staff Name Staff Signature

Police Department Gonditions
Security/Safety Conditions of Approval (if applicable):

Dated

Staff Name Staff Signature

3

!

.a
a

a'

Application Status: O Approved
Conditions of Approval:



A Facility Use Permit is

FuA No Zl- lZ
City of Mendota

Fac i I i tv' 
"".AoJ,:Lxt'1fl Jl 

stru cti o n s

Mendota, California 93640
Phone: (5se) 65s-3 2e1 t Fax: (55e) 655-4064 EB f I m -,P

required for use of any facilities owned by the City of Mendota ("Caty") for {ny
pre-advertised assembly or by groups of 25 or more people. Rates and fees are subiect to change upon
City Council approval. Gity sponsored/co-sponsored events will take precedence and may bump other
reserved events. To obtain copies of fee schedules, forms, and policies and to view the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"), please contact Mendota Gity Hall ("City Hall") at (559) 655-3291 or visit the
Gity's website at ci.mendota.ca. us.

Process for Completinq the Facilitv Use Application:
1. Fill Out Facility Use Application And Sign lt: Fill out the application as completely as possible and read the

"Agreement and Release of Liability" section on the last page of the applic"'.on and sign it. You will also need to
initial the bottom of this Application lnstructions Page. lf you have any qr'" ,ns regarding the application, contact
City Hall at (559) 655-3291. For additional information regarding t' acility Use Application ("Application")
process, including the annual exclusive use process, .,ease refe. .,rMC Chapter 12.20.

2. Turn ln Facility Use Application To City Hal!: Onc: the Applic ron has been completed it must be turned in to
City Hall, 643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640. lf you would prefer to submit the Application electronically,
please call City Hall to obtain the e-mail address to send the application to.

3. Getting Facility Use Application Approved: Within 10 working days, unless otherwise noted, of the date all
applicable paperwork has been turned in to City Hall, you will be notified via mail (and e-mail, if applicable) of the
status of your application. lf your application is approved, you will be provided a copy of the Application (which
contains the conditions of approval), any other required permiVlicense applications, and an invoice for the
fee/deposit required. lf payment of deposit is not received by the date indicated on the invoice, you will forfeit your
approved date(s) and will be required to submit a new Application to reactivate your eligibility for the use of the
facility and become dependent upon the availability of that date. All remaining fees are due the week prior to the
event.

Additiona! lnformation Reqardinq Facilitv Use Permits:
o Certificates Of lnsurance Required For All Facility Use Permit Applications. All individuals/organizations

submitting an Application must provide the City with certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing liability
and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), with
a deductible of no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), and which shallspecify the City and the applicant as
named insured. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be filed with the City upon approval of the
Application.

o lf Alcoholic Beverages Are To Be Served/Sold: You will be required to obtain a license from the California
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control. Please submit an original license application to City Hallto obtain City
approval as required by the Application. Once you receive the official license from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control, you must submit a copy to City Hall as part of the conditions of approval. You will
also be required to contract security services as required by the Mendota Police Department.

o lf Businesses Will Be Contracted To Present, Produce, Or Otherwise Be Involved ln The Event, Activity Or
Entertainment: Any businesses (including promoters, food/item vendors, live bands/DJs, etc.) that are contracted
for any and all portions of the event, must obtain a City business license in accordance with Title 5 of the MMC.
For information regarding the business license process and fees, contact City Hall at (559) 655-3291.

o lf The Event Will lnclude A Live Band, DJ, Other Purveyor Of Music, And/Or Amplified Sound Equipment:
You will be required to obtain a City Noise Permit and to comply with all requirements contained in Chapter 9.05
of the MMC. The fee for a noise permit is $5 per day.

. Additional Conditions of Approval: The City will provide you with additional conditions of approval that are
specific to your event once your application is approved. lt is required that you also satisff and comply with all
conditions of approval. Failure to meet the conditions will result in immediate and automatic termination of the
permit.

Applicant lnitial: 

1



City of Mendota
Facility Use Application

643 Quince Street
Mendota, California 93640

Phone: (559) 655-3291 I Fax: (559) 655-4064

APPLICANT INFORMATION

lf applicable, is the Sponsoring Organization a registered non-profit organization? O No O Yes

Telepho Email

Address:

Sponsoring Organization (if applicable):

Applicant Name

Facility(ies) Requested (Check all applicable boxes):

Rojas-Pierce Park Sport Fields
O Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field
O New Baseball Field
O Danny Trejo Soccer Field
O Daniel "Gordo" Porras Youth Soccer

Field
O Eddie Porras Basketball Court(s)
O David Danie! Skate Park
O Baseball Field Concession Stand

Time(s):

I (

a

30-,3
Estimated Number of Attendees: 4-

EVENT

Other Parks & Facilities
O Lindgren-Lozano Park
O Veterans Park
O La Colonia Park
O Pool Park
O Other: fl,ro,prl

Rogs-Pierce Park

O Concession Stand
O Dining Area
O Picnic Area(s)
O Group BBQ Area
O Other:

Purpose

Date(s):

Willthere be an admission fee forthe event? ,9t{o O Yes ffyes,listtheamountandthereasonforthisfee:

Will alcoholic beverages be sold/served at the event?dNo O Yes
/fyes, p/ease see instrucfions page for requirements regarding alcohol.

Will there be a live band, DJ, other purveyor of music, and/or amplified sound equipment?

-A NO O YeS lfyes, p/ease see instructions page for rquirements regarding noise.

Will any businesses be contracted to present, produce, or othenrise be involved in the event, activity, or
entertainment during the event? -dNo O YeS /f yes, p/ease see rnstrucfions pa ge for requirements regarding bustnesses.

Does the event have a Promoter? .qNo O Yes
lf yes, list the name, telephone and address of the promoter on the line below and see rnsfructions page for requirements regardrng buslnesses.

\Mll the event generate proceeds/revenue or serve as a fundraiser? ,€ffio O Yes
lf yes, list the individual(s)/organization(s) that will receive proceeds and how they will be divided:

2

FACILITY REQUEST INFORMATION

t
I



Desciibe how will the mu of endota.nity

Provide a description of the event, including but not limited to: 1) All entertainment and activities that will occur,
2) Any equipmenUvehicles that will be used and the nature and times of use of such equipment, 3) the nature
and duration of the use of any amplified sound equipment, and 4) Any additional information that will assist
the City of Mendota in considering the application.
Items that are not mentioned below will not be permitted. You may add additional pages, if necessary.

Can.ef cLs 5.ota11 Zfrri /o r. -ze C 4r c

AND OF

The Applicant has read the Facility Use Application lnstructions Page and has been instructed to review all regulations
and requirements for events contained in Ci$ of Mendota ('City') Administrative Policies, forms, and in the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"). The Applicant understands and agrees to comply with all Local, State, and Federal
requirements, regulations, and conditions for conducting the event on any facilities owned by the City. The Applicant also
understands that failure to comply with all Local, State, and Federal requirements, regulations, and conditions will result
in the forfeiture of any deposits paid related to the event and possible denial of future applications.
The Applicant agrees to indemnify the City and its agents, employees, and officers against any and all liability, losses,
claims, damages, fees of attorneys, and other expenses which the City or its agents, employees, or officers, may sustain
or incur in consequence of the use by Applicant of the facilities or arising out of any act or activity conducted by the
Applicant on facilities owned by the City, including, but not limited to, sums paid or incurred in connection with claims,
suits, or judgment or paid or incurred in attempting to procure release from liability for any person injured as a result of
the activities referred to herein. ln addition, Applicant agrees to defend and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents,
and officers against any and all claim, loss, damage, or liability arising out of any conduct by Applicant on the facilities

Prlnt Name
fn rzL 0n,r/,

owned by the City.

Dated g -f,R'gJ

Permit No.

Staff Name
Dated

Conditions

O Approved O DeniedApplication Status:
Conditions of Approval

Security/Safety Conditions of Approval (if applicable)

Staff Name Staff Signature

Dated

3

(

For City of Mendota Staff Use Only



ACORD-
tL./'r-

MUSCDRA{1

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (Mil/DDTYYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLYANDCONFERST{ORTGHTSUFONTHECERNFrcATEHOLDER.THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AilIEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTHEPOUCIES
BELOW. THIS GERTIFICATE OF INSURANGE OOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE |SSU|NG TNSURER(S), AUTHORTZED
REPRESEI{TATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER

IISPORTANT: lf the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL lltlSURED, the poticy(ies) must have ADDmOilAL INSURED provisions or be endorced.
lf SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subiect to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

such endorsement(s).this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of
CONTACT
NAIIE:

ffi8,\=", e'0, (818) 295-2200 [0iI, ror,(81 8) 295-2 201

INSURER(S} AFFORDING GOVERAGE NAIC #

pRoDucE* License # 0252636

United Agencies
100 No. lst Street, Ste. 301
Burbank, CA 91502

IrrtsuRER a , Philadelohia lndemnitv lnsurance Comoanv 1 8058
INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

llluscle Dragger Promotions, LLC
3031 Boulder AYe.
Illadera, CA 93637

INSURED

INSURER F :

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTMTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER D@UMENT wlTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREINISSUBJECTTOALLTHETERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
I TC' TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUTBER

POLICY EFF
,l,ltrnnrYYYv-t

POLICY EXP,ltltrnrrrvwYl LIIIITS

EACH OCCURRFNCF 1,000,000
$

300,000s

MED EXP (Anv one nersonl 1,000s

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY 1,000,000s

GENERAL AGGREGATF 3,ooo,ooos

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG 1,000,000$

A COMMERC1AL GEN ERAL LIiABILITY

xCIAIMS-MADE OCCUR

x

^'ffi':"T'LIMIT

x PRO-
JECT

PHPKz521328 31112023 413012023

s

$

BODILY INJURY (Per oerson) s

BODILY INJURY (Per aerident) $

s

AUTOMOBILE LI,ABILITY

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNED
AUTOS ONLY

$

EACH OCCURRENCE sUIiBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LI,AB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ s
PERqTATI ITtr

OTH.
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s

F I DISFASF . FA FMPI OYFF $

WO RKERS GOf,I PE]II SATIO N
AND EMPLOYERS' LI,ABILITY

ANY PROPRIETORYPARTN ER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERYMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Handatory in NH)
lf yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPER.ATIONS bekcw

fr N'A

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s

OESCRPr|OI OF OPERAIOTS , L(rcATlOl{S / IGEIqLES IACORD tOl, Addi6ond R.marts Schedule, may be attachert if more spae is Equircd}
Certiffcate Holder below ls named as Additiona[ lnsured as respects the operations 6f the Named lnsuied, if requir6d by written contract.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTIGE UvlLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE W]TH THE FOLICY PROVISIONS.Gity of ilendota

643 Quince SL
Mendota, CA 93640

X;&
AUTHORIZED REP RESENTATIVE

4
@ 19E8-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rtghtr reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD

ACORD 25 (2016/0s)

POLICY



M ,ln-v
City of Mendota

Facility Use Application lnstructions
643 Quince Street

Mendota, California 93640
Phone: (559) 655-3291 o Fax: (559) 655-4064

A Facility Use Permit is required for use of any facilities owned by the City of Mendota ("City") for any
pre-advertised assembly or by groups of 25 or more people. Rates and fees are subiect to change upon
City Council approval. City sponsored/co-sponsored events will take precedence and may bump other
reserved events. To obtain copies of fee schedules, forms, and policies and to view the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"), please contact Mendota Gity Hall ("City Hall") at (559) 655-3291 or visit the
City's website at ci.mendota.ca.us.

Process for Gompletinq the Facilitv Use Aoplication:
1. Fill Out Facility Use Application And Sign lt: Fill out the application as completely as possible and read the

"Agreement and Release of Liability" section on the last page of the application and sign it. You will also need to
initialthe bottom of this Application lnstructions Page. lf you have any questions regarding the application, contact
City Hall at (559) 655-3291. For additional information regarding the Facility Use Application ("Application")
process, including the annual exclusive use process, please refer to MMC Chapter 12.20.

2. Turn ln Facility Use Application To City Hall: Once the Application has been completed it must be turned in to
City Hall, 643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640. lf you would prefer to submit the Application electronically,
please call City Hallto obtain the e-mail address to send the application to.

3. Getting Facility Use Application Approved: Within 10 working days, unless otherwise noted, of the date all
applicable paperwork has been turned in to City Hall, you will be notified via mail (and e-mail, if applicable) of the
status of your application. lf your application is approved, you will be provided a copy of the Application (which
contains the conditions of approval), any other required permiUlicense applications, and an invoice for the
fee/deposit required. lf payment of deposit is not received by the date indicated on the invoice, you will forfeit your
approved date(s) and will be required to submit a new Application to reactivate your eligibility for the use of the
facility and become dependent upon the availability of that date. All remaining fees are due the week prior to the
event.

Additiona! lnformation Reqardinq Facilitv Use Permits:
. Certificates Of lnsurance Required For All Facility Use Permit Applications. All individuals/organizations

submitting an Application must provide the City with certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing liability
and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), with
a deductible of no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), and which shall specify the City and the applicant as
named insured. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be filed with the City upon approval of the
Application.

. lf Alcoholic Beverages Are To Be Served/Sold: You will be required to obtain a license from the California
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control. Please submit an originallicense application to City Hallto obtain City
approval as required by the Application. Once you receive the official license from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control, you must submit a copy to City Hall as part of the conditions of approval. You will
also be required to contract security services as required by the Mendota Police Department.

o !f Businesses Wi!! Be Contracted To Present, Produce, Or Otherwise Be lnvolved !n The Event, Activity Or
Entertainment: Any businesses (including promoters, food/item vendors, live bandsiDJs, etc.) that are contracted
for any and all portions of the event, must obtain a City business license in accordance with Title 5 of the MMC.
For information regarding the business license process and fees, contact City Hall at (559) 655-3291.

. lf The Event Will lnclude A Live Band, DJ, Other Purveyor Of Music, And/Or Amplified Sound Equipment:
You will be required to obtain a City Noise Permit and to comply with all requirements contained in Chapter 9.05
of the MMC. The fee for a noise permit is $5 per day.

o Additional Gonditions of Approval: The City will provide you with additional conditions of approval that are
specific to your event once your application is approved. lt is required that you also satisfy and comply with all
conditions of approval. Failure to meet the conditions will result in immediate and automatic termination of the
permit.

1

Applicant Initial:



Yul No 25J3
City of Mendota

Facility Use Application
643 Quince Street

Mendota, California 93640
Phone: (559) 655-3291 r Fax: (559) 655-4064

riizS;il "trt''f,.

fufiF
APPLICANT INFORMATION

he Sponsoring Organization a registered non-profit organization? O No O Yes

Email: Telephone

Applicant Name:

Sponsoring Organization (if applicable)

Address:

FACILITY REQUEST INFORMATION

Rojas-Pierce Park Sport Fields
O Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field
O New Baseball Field
O Danny Trejo Soccer Field
O Daniel "Gordo" Porras Youth Soccer

Field
O Eddie Porras Basketball Court(s)
O David Daniel Skate Park
O Baseball Field Concession Stand

Facility(ies) Requested (Check all applicable boxes):

o
o
o
o
fl Other:o

i. F8,Aff','* \rF

Other Parks & Facilities

Pool

Roias-Pierce Park
O Main Pavilion
O Concession Stand
O Dining Area
O Picnic Area(s)

Group
Other:

Lindgren-Lozano Park
Veterans Park
La Colonia Park

EVENT DETAILS
I

Will there be an admission fee for the event? p NO O YeS tf yes, list the amount and the reason for this fee:

Will alcoholic beverages be sold/served at the event? VNo O Yes
/fyes, p/ease see instructions page for requirements regarding alcohol.

produce, or otherwise be involved in the event, activity, or
O YeS ff yes, please see rnstructions page for requiremenfs regarding businesses.

Does the event have a Promoter? Vruo O Yes
lf yes, listthe name, telephone and address of the promoter on the line below and see instructions page for requirements regarding busrnesses.

Wilt the event generate proceeds/revenue or serve as a fundraiser? O No p Yes

,) \0'
5-

Will there be a live band, DJ, other puryeyor

MYes

eqr3\ -23

tf llst howand will be divided:they

Estimated Number of Attendees:

Time(s

OE,

(5

Will any businesses be contracted to
entertainment during the event?

of music, and/or amplified sound equipment?
lf yes, p/ease see insfrucfions page for requirements regarding noise.

Purpose

Date(s):

Application continues on the next page

2

a

-



how the will benefit the of Mendota
LA

Provide a description of the event, including but not limited to: 1) All entertainment and activities that will occur,
2) Any equipmenUvehicles that will be used and the nature and times of use of such equipment, 3) the nature
and duration of the use of any amplified sound equipment, and 4) Any additional information that will assist
the City of Mendota in considering the application.
Items that are not mentioned below will not be permitted. You may add pages, if necessa4/.

r-t olos\
a[t  rt

AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY

The Applicant has read the Facility Use Application lnstructions Page and has been instructed to review all regulations
and requirements for events contained in City of Mendota ("City") Administrative Policies, forms, and in the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"). The Applicant understands and agrees to comply with all Local, State, and Federal
requirements, regulations, and conditions for conducting the event on any facilities owned by the City. The Applicant also
understands that failure to comply with all Local, State, and Federal requirements, regulations, and conditions will result
in the forfeiture of any deposits paid related to the event and possible denial of future applications.
The Applicant agrees to indemnify the City and its agents, employees, and officers against any and all liability, losses,
claims, damages, fees of attorneys, and other expenses which the City or its agents, employees, or officers, may sustain
or incur in consequence of the use by Applicant of the facilities or arising out of any act or activity conducted by the
Applicant on facilities owned by the City, including, but not limited to, sums paid or incurred in connection with claims,
suits, or judgment or paid or incurred in attempting to procure release from liability for any person injured as a result of
the activities referred to herein. ln addition, Applicant agrees to defend and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents,
and officers against
owned by the City.

any and all claim, loss, damage, or liability arising out of any conduct by icant on the facilities

Dated zfuXfus \\v\D lPe-r"*,
Print Name Signature

For Gity of Mendota Staff Use Only

Application Status: O Approved
Conditions of Approval:

O Denied Permit No.

Dated
Staff Signature

Police Department Conditions
Security/Safety Conditions of Approval (if applicable):

Dated
Staff Name Staff Signature

3

St"dff Name



[uA No n- \'\
City of Mendota

Facility Use Application lnstructions
643 Quince Street

Mendota, California 93640
Phone: (559) 655-3291 I Fax: (559) 655-4064

A Facility Use Permit is required for use of any facilities owned by the Gity of Mendota ("City") for any
pre-advertised assembly or by groups of 25 or more people. Rates and fees are subiect to change upon
City Council approval. City sponsored/co-sponsored events will take precedence and may bump other
reserved events. To obtain copies of fee schedules, forms, and policies and to view the Mendota
Municipal Gode ("MMC"), please contact Mendota City Hall ("City Hall") at (559) 655-3291 or visit the
C ity's website at ci.mendota.ca. us.

Process for Gompletinq the Facilitv Use Application:
1. Fill Out Facility Use Application And Sign lt: Fill out the application as completely as possible and read the

"Agreement and Release of Liability" section on the last page of the application and sign it. You will also need to
initialthe bottom of this Application lnstructions Page. lf you have any questions regarding the application, contact
City Hall at (559) 655-3291. For additional information regarding the Facility Use Application ("Application")
process, including the annual exclusive use process, please refer to MMC Chapter 12.20.

2. Turn ln Facility Use Application To City Hall: Once the Application has been completed it must be turned in to
City Hall, 643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640. lf you would prefer to submit the Application electronically,
please call City Hallto obtain the e-mail address to send the application to.

3. Getting Facility Use Application Approved: Within 10 working days, unless otherwise noted, of the date all
applicable paperwork has been turned in to City Hall, you will be notified via mail (and e-mail, if applicable) of the
status of your application. lf your application is approved, you will be provided a copy of the Application (which
contains the conditions of approval), any other required permiUlicense applications, and an invoice for the
fee/deposit required. lf payment of deposit is not received by the date indicated on the invoice, you will forfeit your
approved date(s) and will be required to submit a new Application to reactivate your eligibility for the use of the
facility and become dependent upon the availability of that date. All remaining fees are due the week prior to the
event.

Additiona! lnformation Reqardinq Facilitv Use Permits:
. Certificates Of lnsurance Required For All Facility Use Permit Applications. All individuals/organizations

submitting an Application must provide the Citywith certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing liability
and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), with
a deductible of no more than five hundred dollars ($500.00), and which shall specifo the City and the applicant as
named insured. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be filed with the City upon approval of the
Application.

. lf Alcoholic Beverages Are To Be Served/Sold: You will be required to obtain a license from the California
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control. Please submit an original license application to City Hallto obtain City
approval as required by the Application. Once you receive the official license from the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control, you must submit a copy to City Hall as part of the conditions of approval. You will
also be required to contract security services as required by the Mendota Police Department.

. lf Businesses Will Be Contracted To Present, Produce, Or Otherwise Be lnvolved ln The Event, Activity Or
Entertainment: Any businesses (including promoters, food/item vendors, live bands/DJs, etc.) that are contracted
for any and all portions of the event, must obtain a City business license in accordance with Title 5 of the MMC.
For information regarding the business license process and fees, contact City Hall at (559) 655-3291.

. lf The Event Wi!! lnclude A Live Band, DJ, Other Purveyor Of Music, And/Or Amplified Sound Equipment:
You will be required to obtain a City Noise Permit and to comply with alt requirements contained in Chapter 9.05
of the MMC. The fee for a noise permit is $5 per day.

o Additiona! Conditions of Approval: The City will provide you with additional conditions of approval that are
specific to your event once your application is approved. lt is required that you also satisfy and comply with all
conditions of approval. Failure to meet the conditions will result in immediate and automatic termination of the

1

permit.

Applicant lnitial



City of Mendota
Facility Use Application

643 Quince Street
Mendota, California 93640

Phone: (559) 655-3291 t Fax: (559) 655-4064

APPLICANT INFORMATION

ONo OYesIf applicable, is the Sponsoring O

Applica

n a registered

Address:

Sponsoring Organization (if applicable):

Telephon  Email

V'o

nt Name, 5 e

FACILITY REQUEST INFORMATION

Facility(ies) Requested (Check all applicable boxes)=

Rojas-Pierce Park Sport Fields
P Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field

fr New Baseball Field
O Danny Trejo Soccer Field
O Daniel "Gordo" Porras Youth Soccer

Field
O Eddie Porras Basketball Court(s)
O David Daniel Skate Park
O Baseball Field Concession Stand

Rojas-Pierce Park
O Main Pavilion
O Concession Stand
O Dining Area
O Picnic Area(s)
O Group BBQ Area
O Other:

Other Parks & Facilities
O Lindgren-Lozano Park
O Veterans Park
O La Colonia Park
O Pool Park
O Other:

EVENT DETAILS

fY\ftvrrt il g , 
*c --) -3ct)n, {or'z?1' Time(s)

TU <-"

: C)oo*. )rn, F

G
Q: l,.r-, + l-t ovqDate(s)

Purpose:

Estimated Number of Attendees: /OO
Will there be an admission fee for the event? B NO O YeS ff yes, list the amount and the reason for this fee:

Will alcoholic beverages be sold/served at the event, 
,,Pr,

No O Yes
p/ease see insfrucfions page for requiremenfs regarding alcohol.

Will there be a live band, DJ, other purveyor of music, and/or amplified sound equipment?

|NO O YeS /f yes, please se e instructions pqe for requirements regarding noise.

\Mll any businesses be contracted to present, produce, or otherwise be involved in the event, activity, or
entertainment during the event? NO O YeS /f yes, please see rnsfructions pa ge for requirements regarding businesses,

Does the event have a Promoter?
lf yes, list the name, telephone and

QNo OYes
address of the promoter on the line below and see instructions page for requirements regarding buslnesses.

Will the event generate proceeds/revenue or serve as a fundraiser? O No F
0elf yes, will and how they will

Yes
divided:

2

/,sf



Describe how the event will the commu of Mendota.

Provide a description of the event, including but not limited to: 1) All entertainment and activities that will occur,
2) Any equipmenUvehicles that will be used and the nature and times of use of such equipment, 3) the nature
and duration of the use of any amplified sound equipment, and 4) Any additional information that will assist
the City of Mendota in considering the application.
Items that are not mentioned below will not be permitted. You may add additional pages, if necessary.

\

AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY
The Applicant has read the Facility Use Application lnstructions Page and has been instructed to review all regulations
and requirements for events contained in City of Mendota ('City') Administrative Policies, forms, and in the Mendota
Municipal Code ("MMC"). The Applicant understands and agrees to comply with all Local, State, and Federal
requirements, regulations, and conditions for conducting the event on any facilities owned by the City. The Applicant also
understands that failure to comply with all Local, State, and Federal requirements, regulations, and conditions will result
in the forfeiture of any deposits paid related to the event and possible denial of future applications.
The Applicant agrees to indemnifiT the City and its agents, employees, and officers against any and all liability, losses,
claims, damages, fees of attorneys, and other expenses which the City or its agents, employees, or officers, may sustain
or incur in consequence of the use by Applicant of the facilities or arising out of any act or activity conducted by the
Applicant on facilities owned by the City, including, but not limited to, sums paid or incurred in connection with claims,
suits, or judgment or paid or incurred in attempting to procure release from liability for any person injured as a result of
the activities referred to herein. ln addition, Applicant agrees to defend and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents,
and officers against any and all claim, loss, damage, or liability arising out of any conduct by Applicant on the facilities
owned by the City

Dated 3-r- zD$

For City of Mendota Staff Use Only

Application Status: O Approved
Conditions of Approval.

O Denied Permit No

Dated.
Staff Name Staff Signature

Police Department Conditions
Security/Safety Conditions of Approval (if applicable):

Dated

Staff Name Staff Signature

3

,/



ACQED'"

COVERAGES

CERTI FICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

DATE (MM/DDTYYYY)

2t2512023
THtscERTlFlcATElSlssUEDAsAMATTERoFlNFoRMATloNoNLYANDcoNFERsN
CERTIFIGATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDEO BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSU|NG TNSURER(S), AUTHORTZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,
IMPORTANT: lf the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies)
lf SUBROGATION lS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy,

must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER

K&K INSURANCE GROUP, INC.
1712 MAGNAVOX WAY
PO BOX 2338
FORT WAYNE IN 46801

Nick Davey

PHONE
(NC, No. Ext): 800-736-7358 FAX

(AlC. No): 847-953-2873

N ic k. Davey@ka nd ki ns u rance.com

MEMBER NO:

MENDOTA YOUTH BASEBALL PROGRATVI
DBA: lrene Barajas
372 Pucheu Street
Mendota, CA, 93640

INSURER(S} AFFORDING CO AGE

INSURER A; New Hampshire lnsuranco Company 23841

INSURER B: National Union Fire lns Co of Pittsburgh 19M5
INSURER G:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

INSD wvD POLIGY NUMBER POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYN

POLICY EXP
(MM/DDTYYYN LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

$ 300,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,ooo

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GENERAL AGGREGATE $5,000,000

PRODUCTS.COMP/OP AGG $1,000,000

A

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

X

X

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

PROJECT LOCPOLICY

OTHER:

Y 4tL0003450194701
0212512023

12:01 AM
0?101t2024

12:01 AM

PARTICI PANT LEGAL LIABILITY $1,000,000

$1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

A

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

X X

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

41L0003450194701
02t25t2023

12:01 AM
02101t2024
12:01 AM

# EACH OCCURRENCEUMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB #
OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGA'TE

DED RETENTION

ll'tsK
I srnruru OTHER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE _ EA EMPLOYEE

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRIETOFYPARTNERYEXECUT IVE
O FF ICERYMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
lf yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N

N/A

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

Excess Medical $250,000
B PARTICIPANT ACCIDENT AtD0003450195201

02t25t2023
12:01 AM

0210112024
12:01 AM

AD&D $ 15,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS , LOCATIONS, VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Romarks Schodule, may bo attachad if morc spa@ is roquircd)

THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER IS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED, BUT SOLELY WITH RESPECT TO THE OPERANONS OF THE NAMED INSURED.

Owner, managar or lessor of the premises where you conduct practicos or games

SEXUAL ABUSBMOLESTATION: 11,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE/$2,000,000 AGGREGATE

HOLDER CANCELLATION

City of Mendota

643 Quince St.

Mendota, CA 93640

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
AGCORDANCE WITH THE POLIGY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REP RESENTATIVE

M
@ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserye(

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
ACORD 25 (2016/03)

D



EXHIBIT B 



 2023 Facility Use Permit Applications Overview

FACILITY USE 
APPLICATION 

NUMBER
ORGANIZATION EVENT 

NAME/PURPOSE DATE/TIME

TOTAL 
NUMBER OF 

DAYS/EVENTS 
REQUESTED

FACILITY(IES)
REQUESTED EVENT DETAILS

PROPOSED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Additional conditions may be added as deemed necessary by staff to ensure 

protection of City facility(ies) and the safety of participants/community

TOTAL FEES 
& APPLICABLE

POLICIES

FUA 23-01

Central California 
Food Bank
(Non-Profit 

Organization)

Food Distribution 
Event

2nd and 4th Thursday 
of each month 

8am-12pm

19 Days Rojas-Pierce Park 
Parking Lot  

Number of attendees: 150-
200 families
Admission fee: None
Alcoholic beverages: None
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound equipment: None
Businesses involved: None
Promoter involved: None 
Is the event a fundraiser? 
No

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A".
Applicant will ensure that those attending the event do not encroach on sidewalks and 
driveways, and will comply with an additional encroachment conditions as required by the 
City.

TOTAL FEES DUE: $0.00

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $0.00

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
None

FUA 23-03

Jose D. Pineda 
Mendota Super 

League

Soccer 2/11/23-10/29/23
Saturdays: 3pm-5pm
Sundays: 9am-5pm

66 Days Rojas-Pierce Park 
Soccer Field

Number of attendees: 50 or 
more
Admission fee: None
Alcoholic beverages: None
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound equipment: None
Businesses involved: None
Promoter involved: None
Is the event a fundraiser? 
No

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A".
Applicant (and those participating in the event held by the Applicant) are not permitted to 
use cleats with metal spikes on the field.
Applicant (and those participating in the event held by the Applicant) are not permitted to 
use the field when it is wet or if it is raining.

TOTAL FEES DUE: $200.00 
(paid on 2/6/23)

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $250.00 
(paid on 2/6/23)

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
None

FUA 23-05

Mendota Unified 
School District 

Preschool
(Non-Profit 

Organization)

Preschool graduation 
ceremony

5/31/23
8am-1pm

1 Day Rojas-Pierce Park 
Main Pavillion 

Number of attendees: 60
Admission fee: None
Alcoholic beverages: None
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound equipment:  None
Businesses involved: None
Promoter involved: None
Is the event a Fundraiser? 
No

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A".

TOTAL FEES DUE: $0.00

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $0.00

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
None

FUA 23-07

Mendota Youth 
Recreation
(Non-Profit 

Organization)

Carnival 6/1/23-6/4/23
6pm-12am

4 Days Rojas-Pierce Park 
Main Pavillion and 
Concession Stand 

Number of attendees: 1000
Admission fee: None
Alcoholic beverages: Yes
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound equipment: Yes
Businesses involved: Yes
Promoter involved: None
Is the event a fundraiser? 
Yes. All proceeds benefit 
Mendota Youth Recreation

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A".
Applicant must provide a detailed scheduled of the event.
Applicant is permitted sell alcoholic beverages during the event, and the consumption of 
alcohol is permitted during the event. All sales and consumption of alcohol must be within 
a desginted area. The Applicant must obtain a license from the State of California 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control and provide a copy of said license to the City.
Applicant must contract security services as required by the Chief of Police, or their 
designee, and in accordance with the City's requirements for contracting security services. 
Applicant must obtain a City Noise Permit.
Applicant must contract for trash services.
Applicant must provide portable restrooms.
Applicant must obtain a City Entertainment Encroachment Permit.
Applicant shall ensure that all vendors and businesses (including but not limited to the 
carnival operator) participating in the event obtain a City business license and that said 
vendors and businesses maintain their business license with them during the event.
Applicant must not charge an admission fee to individuals who wish to utilize the park area 
for recreation purposes.

TOTAL FEES DUE:
$0.00  Fees Waived 100%

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $500.00
RPP Pavillion: $300.00
RPP Concession Stand: $150.00
Key Deposit: $50.00

Total Fees Waived: $2,120.00
RPP Pavillion Rental Fee: $350/dayX 4 
days= $1,400.00
RPP Concession Stand Rental Fee: 
$175/dayX 4 days=$700.00
Noise Permit: $5/day X 4 days= $20.00

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
City Participation in Community Events 
(Exhibit "D")



 2023 Facility Use Permit Applications Overview

FACILITY USE 
APPLICATION 

NUMBER
ORGANIZATION EVENT 

NAME/PURPOSE DATE/TIME

TOTAL 
NUMBER OF 

DAYS/EVENTS 
REQUESTED

FACILITY(IES)
REQUESTED EVENT DETAILS

PROPOSED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Additional conditions may be added as deemed necessary by staff to ensure 

protection of City facility(ies) and the safety of participants/community

TOTAL FEES 
& APPLICABLE

POLICIES

FUA 23-08

Mendota Youth 
Recreation
(Non-Profit 

Organization)

Annual Backpack 
Giveaway

7/30/23
10am-4pm

1 Day Rojas-Pierce Park 
Parking Lot  

Number of attendees: 400
Admission fee: None 
Alcoholic beverages: None
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound equipment: None
Businesses involved: Yes
Promoter involved: None
Is the event a Fundraiser? 
No

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A". 

TOTAL FEES DUE: $0.00

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $0.00

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
None

FUA 23-09

Mendota Youth 
Recreation
(Non-Profit 

Organization)

End of Summer 
Carnival 

9/21/23-9/24/23
6pm-12am

4 Days Benny Mares Sr. 
Baseball Field; 

Rojas-Pierce Park 
Main Pavillion and 
Concession Stand 

Number of attendees: 1000
Admission fee: None
Alcoholic beverages: Yes
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound equipment: Yes
Businesses involved: Yes
Promoter involved: None
Is the event a Fundraiser? 
Yes, all proceeds benefit 
Mendota Youth Recreation

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A".
Applicant must provide a detailed scheduled of the event.
Applicant is permitted sell alcoholic beverages during the event, and the consumption of 
alcohol is permitted during the event. All sales and consumption of alcohol must be within 
a desginted area. The Applicant must obtain a license from the State of California 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control and provide a copy of said license to the City.
Applicant must contract security services as required by the Chief of Police, or their 
designee, and in accordance with the City's requirements for contracting security services. 
Applicant must obtain a City Noise Permit.
Applicant must contract for trash services.
Applicant must provide portable restrooms.
Applicant must obtain a City Entertainment Encroachment Permit.
Applicant shall ensure that all vendors and businesses (including but not limited to the 
carnival operator) participating in the event obtain a City business license and that said 
vendors and businesses maintain their business license with them during the event.
Applicant must not charge an admission fee to individuals who wish to utilize the park area 
for recreation purposes.

TOTAL FEES DUE:
$895.00 (First day event fees waived 
100%, all days after fees waived 50%)

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $750.00
RPP Pavillion: $300.00
RPP Concession Stand: $150.00
Key Deposit: $50.00
Sports Field Deposit: $250.00

Total Fees Waived: $1,425.00
RPP Pavillion Rental Fee: $350/dayX 4 
days= $1,400.00
RPP Concession Stand Rental Fee: 
$175/dayX 4 days=$700.00
Sports Field Fee: $200.00
Noise Permit: $5/day X 4 days= $20.00

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
Event Permit for Non-Profit Organizations 
(Exhibit "C")

FUA 23-10

Mendota Youth 
Recreation
(Non-Profit 

Organization)

Red Ribbon Trunk & 
Treat

10/29/23      
10am-8pm

1 Day Rojas-Pierce Park 
Parking Lot  

Number of attendees: 400
Admission fee: None
Alcoholic beverages: None
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound equipment: None
Businesses involved: Yes
Promoter involved: None
Is the event a Fundraiser? 
No

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A".
Applicant must obtain a City Noise Permit.
Applicant must ensure that all vendors participating in the event obtain a City business 
license and that said vendors maintain their business license with them during the event.

TOTAL FEES DUE: $0.00

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $0.00

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
None

FUA 23-11

Mendota Youth 
Recreation
(Non-Profit 

Organization)

Annual Christmas 
Parade

12/16/23                                                
12pm-9pm

1 Day City Streets (6th, 
7th and Pucheu 

Streets)

Number of attendees: 900
Admission fee: None 
Alcoholic beverages: None
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound equipment:  Yes
Businesses involved: Yes
Promoter involved: None
Is the event a Fundraiser?  
No

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A".
Applicant must obtain a City Noise Permit.
Applicant must contract for trash services.
Applicant must provide portable restrooms.
Applicant must obtain a City Entertainment Encroachment Permit.
Applicant shall ensure that all vendors participating in the event obtain a City business 
license and that said vendors maintain their business license with them during the event.

TOTAL FEES DUE:
$0.00  Fees Waived 100%

Total Fees Waived: $80.00
Noise Permit: $5/dayX 1 Day=$5.00
Entertainment Encroachment Permit: 
$75/dayX 1 Day=$75.00

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $0.00

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
City Participation in Community Events 
(Exhibit "D")



 2023 Facility Use Permit Applications Overview

FACILITY USE 
APPLICATION 

NUMBER
ORGANIZATION EVENT 

NAME/PURPOSE DATE/TIME

TOTAL 
NUMBER OF 

DAYS/EVENTS 
REQUESTED

FACILITY(IES)
REQUESTED EVENT DETAILS

PROPOSED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Additional conditions may be added as deemed necessary by staff to ensure 

protection of City facility(ies) and the safety of participants/community

TOTAL FEES 
& APPLICABLE

POLICIES

FUA 23-12

Muscle Dragger 
Promotions

Movie Filming 3/15/23-10/2723
Exact Dates TBD

Exact number of 
days TBD

William Robert 
Johnston 

Municipal Airport 

Number of attendees: 15
Admission fee: None
Alcoholic beverages: None
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound equipment:  None
Businesses involved:  None
Promoter involved: None
Is the event a Fundraiser?  
No

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A".

TOTAL FEES DUE: $0.00

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $0.00

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
None

FUA 23-13

Westside Youth
(Non-Profit 

Organization) 

Open Market
(Non-Profit 

Organization)

3/15/23-12/31/23
Every Wednesday

3pm-10:30pm

42 Days Rojas- Pierce Park 
Parking Lot and 
part of Smoot 

Street 

Number of attendees: 75-
300
Admission fee: None 
Alcoholic beverage: None
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound equipment: Yes
Business involved: None
Promoter involved: None
Is the event a Fundraiser?  
Yes, all proceeds benefit 
Westside Youth, Inc. 

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A".
Applicant must contract security services as required by the Chief of Police, or their 
designee, and in accordance with the City's requirements for contracting security services. 
Applicant must obtain a City Noise Permit.
Applicant must contract for trash services.
Applicant must provide portable restrooms.
Applicant must obtain a City Entertainment Encroachment Permit.
Applicant will not encroach on sidewalks and driveways, and will comply with an 
additional encroachment conditions as required by the City.
Applicant shall ensure that all vendors and businesses participating in the event obtain a 
City business license and that said vendors and businesses maintain their business license 
with them during the event.

TOTAL FEES DUE:
$1,640.00 (First day event fees waived 
100%, all days after fees waived 50%)

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $0.00

Total Fees Waived: $1,720.00
Entertainment Encroachment Permit:
$75dayX 42 days: $3,150.00
Noise Permit: $5/day X 42 days= $210.00

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
Event Permit for Non-Profit Organizations 
(Exhibit "C")

FUA 23-14

Mendota Youth 
Baseball

(Body within 
Mendota Youth 

Recreation, a non-
profit organization)

Baseball Games 3/20/23-7/6/23 
Tuesdays and 

Thursdays from 6pm-
9pm;

Saturdays
Time TBD                                         

Exact number of 
days TBD 

(Dependent on 
number of 
Saturdays)

Benny Mares Sr. 
Baseball Field and 

New Baseball 
Field

Number of attendees: 100
Admission fee: None
Alcoholic beverages: None
Live band, DJ, music, or 
sound: None
Business involved: None
Promoter involved: None
Is the event a Fundraiser?  
Yes, all proceeds benefit 
Mendota Youth Baseball

Applicant must comply with all City General Conditions of Approval as listed in Exhibit 
"A".
Applicant (and those participating in the event held by the Applicant) are not permitted to 
use cleats with metal spikes on the field.
Applicant (and those participating in the event held by the Applicant) are not permitted to 
use the field when it is wet or if it is raining.

TOTAL FEES DUE: $0.00 

TOTAL DEPOSITS DUE: $250.00 

Applicable Administrative Policy: 
None



EXHIBIT A 



CITY OF MENDOTA GENERAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
-Applicant must obtain and provide the City with certificates of insurance evidencing liability and property damage limits with a 
combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), and which shall specify the city and the applicant as named 
insured, in accordance with Mendota Municipal Code Section 12.20.110. It is the responsibility of the Applicant to ensure that the 
insurance coverage covers the time period that the Applicant is utilizing the City facility(ies). 
-Applicant must complete the key-check out form (if applicable) prior to checking out the key to the facility and abide by its terms 
and conditions. The key to the facility will be provided to the applicant on the dates listed in the final Facility Use Permit 
Application approval letter. 
-Applicant will work with the City and any additional organizations that may need to use the facility(ies) on the days and times (for 
short period events/reasons) that it is being used by the Applicant. 
-Applicant will utilize the facility(ies) only on the times and days that have been outlined above, must notify the city two (2) days in 
advance or as soon as possible if the facility will not be occupied during a specific day/time, and will provide the City with any updates 
to its schedule, including any changes that cause the field to be unused when it was previously declared to be used. 
-Applicant must obtain all necessary permits and licenses (included but not limited to permits and licenses required by the County of 
Fresno and the City of Mendota, and any additional required by local and state law) to sell food and non-food products for any and 
all vendors. Said permits and licenses must remain on the premises and accessible for inspection during the sale of such products. 
-Applicant must maintain the facility(ies) based on their use (including picking up trash, cleaning the area, etc.) and immediately 
report any observed problems, whether or not caused directly by their use, to Mendota City Hall or the City’s designated employee. 
-Applicant will not permit the sale or consumption of alcohol on the facility(ies) unless previously approved by the City. 

 



EXHIBIT C 



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 
NUMBER 2004.01 

(amended January 28, 2014) 

EVENT PERMIT FORNON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS 

I. PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY FOR POLICY

The purpose for this Administrative Policy ("Policy") is intended to promote the full use 
of City streets, parks and recreation areas and facilities by Non-Profit organizations to 
provide a benefit to the community. 

II. DEFINITIONS

"Building" means a structure under the ownership or supervision of the City established 
as a community center, senior-center or recreational facility. 

"City Sponsored" means an event which the City of Mendota is sponsoring on behalf of 
a non-profit organization and has made no direct financial contribution to the event. 

"Community Event" is an event open to the general public authorized by the City for 
the use of a park, recreational area or building that promotes civic betterment, family 
entertainment and recreational activities for the community. 

"StreefFair" is a function in which it becomes necessary to place barricades blocking 
off the flow of normal traffic in a designated area of public streets. 

"Non-Profit Organization" means any non-profit association or corporation organized 
primarily for civic betterment, family ente1iainment, and/or recreational activities. 

"Park" or "Recreation Area" means City-owned grounds, parks and public areas 
devoted to park or recreational purposes. 

"Permit" means a written authorization issued by the City for the use of a park area or 
building as provided by this policy. 

III. POLICY

A. Mendota based Non-Profit organizations will have the payment for one Community
Event or Street Fair permit waived in any given calendar year.

B. Mendota based Non-Profit organizations will receive a 50% discount for all other
Community Event and Street-Fair permits requested in the same calendar year.

C. All Non-Profit organizations must have a current business license with the City of
Mendota.

Celeste
Typewritten Text

Celeste
Typewritten Text

Celeste
Typewritten Text





EXHIBIT D 



City of Mendota 

Administrative Policy 

City Participation in Community Events 

INTRODUCTION: 

PURPOSE: 

DEFINITIONS: 

In light of the new administrative policy regarding the lending of City equipment 
to only events that are City sponsored, staff has recently reviewed the 
administrative policy regarding which events are considered to be City hosted. 
After reviewing it, we realized that there are some events that are no longer 
being held on a regular basis, and some events that are common but not 
included. As such, this administrative policy is Intended to clarify and replace the 
old administrative policy regarding City participation in community events. 

The purpose of this Administrative Regulation ("Regulation") is intended to 
clarify and establish the role of the City of community events hosted by the City 
to promote recreational activitres that provide·a· benefit to the·community:· 

"City Hosted" means an event in which the City of Mendota is the host on behalf 
of non-profit organization(s) and has no dire.ct financial contribution to the 
event. 

"Community Event" is an event open to the general public authorized by the City 
for the use of a park, recreational area or building that promotes family 
entertainment and recreational activities for the community. 

"City Liaison" means a city employee working with the non-profit organizatlon(s) 
on behalf of the City, but Is not responsible for coordinating the event. 

Enacted on: 1/25/2011 Enacted by: The Office of the City Manager 

Celeste
Typewritten Text





 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 23-16 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT 
CONTRACT OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
 WHEREAS, Cristian Gonzalez is the appointed City Manager of the City of 
Mendota (“City”) and serves under an employment agreement between himself and the 
City, dated December 9, 2020; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City and Mr. Gonzalez wish to execute a revised agreement to 
extend Mr. Gonzalez’s term of employment for an additional three years; and  

 
WHEREAS, per the parties’ prior negotiations, the City Council intends to revisit 

the subject of Mr. Gonzalez’s compensation and engage in additional discussions to 
that end as part of the forthcoming City Management Group negotiations scheduled in 
July 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has prepared a revised employment agreement, which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, reflecting the 
parties’ agreement regarding Mr. Gonzalez’s continued employment with the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the City Council of the City of Mendota hereby resolves as follows:  
 

SECTION 1.  Resolution No. 23-16 is hereby adopted to approve and 
incorporate the revised employment agreement containing the terms and conditions of 
the City Manager’s continued employment, as reflected in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 
SECTION 2.  The employment agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A” shall be 

effective as of March 14, 2023, unless otherwise specifically indicated within Exhibit “A”.    
 

 
       ______________________________ 
       Victor Martinez, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 14th day of March, 
2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A 



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 1 
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

AN AGREEMENT MADE AND ENTERED INTO BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
MENDOTA (HEREINAFTER CALLED “CITY”) AND CRISTIAN GONZALEZ 

(HEREINAFTER CALLED “EMPLOYEE”) 

 WHEREAS, Cristian Gonzalez (“EMPLOYEE”) is currently employed by the City of 

Mendota (the “CITY”) as its City Manager; and 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to extend a three (3) year employment contract to 

EMPLOYEE; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the CITY to provide certain benefits, establish certain 

conditions of employment, and to set working conditions of said EMPLOYEE. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, 

effective March 14, 2023, the parties agree as follows:  

Section 1. DUTIES 

A.   CITY hereby agrees to designate EMPLOYEE (Cristian Gonzalez) as City 

Manager of the City of Mendota to perform the functions and duties specified in applicable City 

ordinances, applicable law, and current job description as the same presently exist or may 

hereinafter be amended, and to perform other legally permissible and proper duties and functions 

consistent with the position of City Manager and which the City Council may from time to time 

assign at City Council meetings.  EMPLOYEE shall continue to perform his duties as the 

CITY’S Director of Public Works and Planning.  In addition, EMPLOYEE shall perform the 

duties of Economic Development Director and Building Official.  

B.    The City Council retains ultimate authority over all decisions respecting the 

CITY, but has delegated authority to the City Manager as the operational chief of the CITY, and 

all employees, both regular and contract, report directly to him, excepting only the City Attorney.  

This operational authority extends to all areas of assignments, duties, reporting, discipline, 

evaluation, and termination.  In keeping with the duties delegated to the City Manager, all 



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 2 
 

directives of the City Council to CITY’s Department Heads and their departments shall be made 

through the City Manager. 

C.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City Manager shall use his best efforts to 

comply with the legal directives enacted by a majority of a quorum of the City Council, and to 

implement such directives and other CITY policies according to prevailing professional 

standards.  It is understood by both parties that pursuant to the CITY’S Ordinance Code and 

applicable law, the EMPLOYEE reports to the entire City Council and not a single Council 

Member and from time to time may render decisions and make recommendations that the 

EMPLOYEE believes serve the best interests of the CITY, even though such decisions or 

recommendations may conflict with the preferences of individual members of the City Council 

or the Mayor.  The City Council recognizes that these conflicts may arise and will endeavor to 

evaluate the performance of the City Manager solely on professional criteria as to what is the 

best in terms of the City of Mendota as a whole.  

Section 2. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF SERVICE 

A.   Compensation.  EMPLOYEE’S annual salary shall be in the amount of one 

hundred seventy thousand dollars ($170,000) per year from and after the Effective Date.  The 

City Council will evaluate the EMPLOYEE every twelve (12) months after the Effective Date to 

conduct a performance evaluation of EMPLOYEE.  The evaluation shall include consideration 

of the EMPLOYEE’s performance of his duties as City Manager, Director of Public Works, 

Director of Planning, Economic Development Director, and Building Official.  If the annual 

evaluations of EMPLOYEE are deemed satisfactory by the City Council, CITY shall adjust the 

annual salary in the amount that is determined appropriate during the evaluation.  The City 

Council may evaluate EMPLOYEE more frequently than provided herein if a majority of the 

City Council wish to do so.   



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 3 
 

B. Benefits.  Except as otherwise provided herein, EMPLOYEE will retain his 

existing benefits as set forth in Resolution No. 19-43, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

incorporated herein by this reference, and any amendments thereto, which remain unchanged.   

C. Professional Development Activities.  Subject to review and approval by the 

City Council and CITY budget limitations, CITY may pay the registration, enrollment, and/or 

other related expenses incurred by EMPLOYEE for professional and official travel, meetings, 

and occasions useful to the continued professional development of EMPLOYEE and to 

adequately pursue necessary, official, and other related functions for CITY.  Provided that 

necessary funds are appropriated, EMPLOYEE may make use of educational programs provided 

by organizations such as the California League of Cities or the International City/County 

Management Association ("ICMA").  Membership in ICMA shall be paid by the CITY for the 

benefit of EMPLOYEE, who shall conform his conduct to the ICMA. 

 D. Evaluation.  If, after an evaluation of the EMPLOYEE’s performance of his 

duties, the City Council determines that EMPLOYEE is not satisfactorily performing his duties 

as specified herein and that it is in the best interests of the CITY, the City Council may vote to 

remove EMPLOYEE from his role as City Manager.   

 E. Severance Benefits.  If the EMPLOYEE’s employment with the CITY ends prior 

to the expiration of three (3) years, pursuant to an involuntary separation from employment, 

EMPLOYEE shall receive an aggregate severance payment in the amount of six (6) times the 

total monthly value of his salary, health insurance, and retirement benefits which EMPLOYEE is 

receiving on the last day of actual employment according to the provisions of Section 2.A.  The 

severance payment shall be made in installments on a schedule similar to the CITY’s then-

existing payroll schedule.  No severance payment shall be due or owing unless the EMPLOYEE 

has signed a separation agreement which shall include a statement that the severance payment 



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 4 
 

resolves all issues or claims, known or unknown, relating to the employment relationship and 

this Agreement.  Any and all amounts paid pursuant to Section 2.E shall be fully reimbursed by 

EMPLOYEE to CITY if EMPLOYEE is convicted of a crime involving abuse of his office or 

position as required by Government Code Section 53243.2.   

For the purposes of this Section 2:  

1.   “last day of employment” means a day in which the EMPLOYEE is 

performing the services or functions of his office, and does not include a vacation day, holiday, 

administrative leave day or other paid or unpaid day off. 

2.  “total monthly value of base salary, health insurance, and retirement 

benefits” does not include vacation, sick leave, or other accrual of paid time off.  

3.  “involuntary separation” shall mean discharge or dismissal by the City 

Council or the EMPLOYEE’s resignation following a salary reduction greater in percentage than 

an across-the-board reduction for all employees, or his resignation following a witnessed or 

written suggestion to him, by the City Council, that he resign.  Involuntary separation does not 

include termination for a cause for discipline, or a resignation under circumstances other than 

those described above. 

F.  Acknowledgment of “At Will” Nature of Employment; Notice of 

Termination.  This Agreement creates a mutually binding “at will” employment 

relationship which may be terminated by either party without advance notice or cause, 

subject to the provisions herein.  Before voluntarily resigning his position, EMPLOYEE agrees 

to give City Council at least four (4) weeks’ notice in writing of his intention to resign, stating 

the reasons therefore and the effective date thereof.  CITY, with EMPLOYEE’s concurrence, 

may waive notice and permit resignation to take immediate effect.  



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 5 
 

G.   Rights in Connection with Separation or Termination.  The parties agree that 

the rights set forth in this Agreement shall be the exclusive rights available to the parties in the 

event of termination or separation from the employment. 

Section 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A.  Validity of Agreement; Severability.  If any paragraph or any portion thereof 

contained in this Agreement is held to be unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, it shall be 

deemed severable from this Agreement and shall not invalidate the remainder of the paragraph in 

which it is located or the remainder of this Agreement. 

B.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the 

parties as to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any prior agreement between the parties on 

the subject matter hereof.  No promises, representation, warranty, or covenant not included in 

this Agreement has been or is relied on by either party.  Each party has relied upon his own 

examination of this Agreement, the counsel of his own advisors, and the warranties, 

representations, and covenants in the Agreement itself.  The failure or refusal of either party to 

read the Agreement or other documents or to obtain legal or other advice relevant to this 

Agreement constitutes a waiver of any objection, contention, or claim that might have been 

based on such reading, inspection, or advice. 

C.  Construction.  Headings at the beginning of each section and subsection are 

solely for the convenience of the parties and are not part of and shall not be used to interpret this 

Agreement.  The singular form shall include plural and vice versa.  This Agreement shall not be 

construed as if it had been prepared by one of the parties, but rather as if both parties have 

prepared it.  Unless otherwise indicated, all references to sections are to this Agreement.  

D.  Modifications Shall Be In Writing and Authorized by the City Council.  This 

Agreement may be modified or amended only by a writing duly authorized and executed by both 

parties.  It may not be amended or modified by oral agreements or understanding between the 



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 6 
 

parties.  Any modification or amendment thereto shall only be effective if authorized by the City 

Council of the City of Mendota. 

E.  Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any action or proceeding, sounding in contract 

or tort, related this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action, or the non-dismissing party 

when the dismissal occurs other than by a settlement, shall be entitled to recover its reasonable 

costs and expenses through appeal, including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees and 

costs and expert fees and costs paid or incurred in good faith. This attorneys’ fees clause applies 

in alternative dispute proceedings and bankruptcy proceedings, including efforts to obtain relief 

from stay.  Prevailing party within the meaning of this Section shall include, without limitation, a 

party who successfully brings an action against the other party for sums allegedly due or 

performance of covenants allegedly breached, the party who obtains substantial relief sought in 

the action, and as otherwise defined by law. 

F.  Notices.  Any notices required by law or this Agreement shall be in writing and 

deemed delivered when given in person or sent by first-class mail with postage prepaid and 

addressed as follows:  

For CITY:     For EMPLOYEE: 
City Clerk, City of Mendota   Cristian Gonzalez  
643 Quince Street     
Mendota, CA 93640     
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 7 
 

 
 
 
 
Dated this _____ day of ___________________, 2023.  
 

CITY OF MENDOTA     EMPLOYEE  
 
 
BY: __________________________  BY: _____________________________ 
 Victor Martinez, Mayor     Cristian Gonzalez  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  
 
 
_________________________ 
John P. Kinsey 
Mendota City Attorney  
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
____________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk  
  



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 8 
 

Addendum to City Manager’s Employment Agreement with City of Mendota 

The ICMA Code of Ethics (with Guidelines) is reproduced in full below.   

The mission of ICMA is to advance professional local government through leadership, 
management, innovation, and ethics. To further this mission, certain principles, as enforced by 
the Rules of Procedure, shall govern the conduct of every member of ICMA, who shall:  

TENET 1 

We believe professional management is essential to efficient and democratic local government 
by elected officials. 

TENET 2 

Affirm the dignity and worth of local government services and maintain a deep sense of social 
responsibility as a trusted public servant. 

GUIDELINE 

Advice to Officials of Other Local Governments.  When members advise and respond to 
inquiries from elected or appointed officials of other local governments, they should inform the 
administrators of those communities in order to uphold local government professionalism. 

TENET 3 

Demonstrate by word and action the highest standards of ethical conduct and integrity in all 
public, professional, and personal relationships in order that the member may merit the trust and 
respect of the elected and appointed officials, employees, and the public.   

GUIDELINES 

Public Confidence.  Members should conduct themselves so as to maintain public confidence in 
their position and profession, the integrity of their local government, and in their responsibility to 
uphold the public trust. 

Length of Service.  For chief administrative/executive officers appointed by a governing body or 
elected official, a minimum of two years is considered necessary to render a professional service 
to the local government.  In limited circumstances, it may be in the best interests of the local 
government and the member to separate before serving two years. Some examples include 
refusal of the appointing authority to honor commitments concerning conditions of employment, 
a vote of no confidence in the member, or significant personal issues. It is the responsibility of an 
applicant for a position to understand conditions of employment, including expectations of 
service.  Not understanding the terms of employment prior to accepting does not justify 
premature separation.  For all members a short tenure should be the exception rather than a 
recurring experience, and members are expected to honor all conditions of employment with the 
organization. 

Appointment Commitment.  Members who accept an appointment to a position should report to 
that position.  This does not preclude the possibility of a member considering several offers or 
seeking several positions at the same time. However, once a member has accepted a formal offer 
of employment, that commitment is considered binding unless the employer makes fundamental 
changes in the negotiated terms of employment.  



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 9 
 

Credentials.  A member’s resume for employment or application for ICMA’s Voluntary 
Credentialing Program shall completely and accurately reflect the member’s education, work 
experience, and personal history.  Omissions and inaccuracies must be avoided.  

Professional Respect.  Members seeking a position should show professional respect for persons 
formerly holding the position, successors holding the position, or for others who might be 
applying for the same position. Professional respect does not preclude honest differences of 
opinion; it does preclude attacking a person's motives or integrity. 

Reporting Ethics Violations.  When becoming aware of a possible violation of the ICMA Code 
of Ethics, members are encouraged to report possible violations to ICMA.  In reporting the 
possible violation, members may choose to go on record as the complainant or report the matter 
on a confidential basis. 

Confidentiality.  Members shall not discuss or divulge information with anyone about pending or 
completed ethics cases, except as specifically authorized by the Rules of Procedure for 
Enforcement of the Code of Ethics. 

Seeking Employment.  Members should not seek employment for a position that has an 
incumbent who has not announced his or her separation or been officially informed by the 
appointive entity that his or her services are to be terminated.  Members should not initiate 
contact with representatives of the appointive entity.  Members contacted by representatives of 
the appointive entity body regarding prospective interest in the position should decline to have a 
conversation until the incumbent's separation from employment is publicly known. 

Relationships in the Workplace.  Members should not engage in an intimate or romantic 
relationship with any elected official or board appointee, employee they report to, one they 
appoint and/or supervise, either directly or indirectly, within the organization. This guideline 
does not restrict personal friendships, professional mentoring, or social interactions with 
employees, elected officials and Board appointees. 

Influence.  Members should conduct their professional and personal affairs in a manner that 
demonstrates that they cannot be improperly influenced in the performance of their official 
duties. 

Conflicting Roles.  Members who serve multiple roles – either within the local government 
organization or externally – should avoid participating in matters that create either a conflict of 
interest or the perception of one.  They should disclose any potential conflict to the governing 
body so that it can be managed appropriately.  

Conduct Unbecoming.  Members should treat people fairly, with dignity and respect and should 
not engage in, or condone bullying behavior, harassment, sexual harassment or discrimination on 
the basis of race, religion, national origin, age, disability, gender, gender identity, or sexual 
orientation. 

TENET 4 

Serve the best interests of the people. 

GUIDELINES 

Impacts of Decisions.  Members should inform their governing body of the anticipated effects of 
a decision on people in their jurisdictions, especially if specific groups may be disproportionately 
harmed or helped. 



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 10 
 

Inclusion.  To ensure that all the people within their jurisdiction have the ability to actively 
engage with their local government, members should strive to eliminate barriers to public 
involvement in decisions, programs, and services. 

TENET 5 

Submit policy proposals to elected officials; provide them with facts, and technical and 
professional advice about policy options; and collaborate with them in setting goals for the 
community and organization. 

TENET 6 

Recognize that elected representatives are accountable to their community for the decisions they 
make; members are responsible for implementing those decisions. 

TENET 7 

Refrain from all political activities which undermine public confidence in professional 
administrators. Refrain from participation in the election of the members of the employing 
legislative body. 

GUIDELINES 

Elections of the Governing Body.  Members should maintain a reputation for serving equally and 
impartially all members of the governing body of the local government they serve, regardless of 
party.  To this end, they should not participate in an election campaign on behalf of or in 
opposition to candidates for the governing body.  

Elections of Elected Executives.  Members shall not participate in the election campaign of any 
candidate for mayor or elected county executive. 

Running for Office.  Members shall not run for elected office or become involved in political 
activities related to running for elected office, or accept appointment to an elected office.  They 
shall not seek political endorsements, financial contributions or engage in other campaign 
activities. 

Elections.  Members share with their fellow citizens the right and responsibility to vote.  
However, in order not to impair their effectiveness on behalf of the local governments they 
serve, they shall not participate in political activities to support the candidacy of individuals 
running for any city, county, special district, school, state or federal offices. Specifically, they 
shall not endorse candidates, make financial contributions, sign or circulate petitions, or 
participate in fund-raising activities for individuals seeking or holding elected office. 

Elections relating to the Form of Government.  Members may assist in preparing and presenting 
materials that explain the form of government to the public prior to a form of government 
election.  If assistance is required by another community, members may respond.  

Presentation of Issues.  Members may assist their governing body in the presentation of issues 
involved in referenda such as bond issues, annexations, and other matters that affect the 
government entity’s operations and/or fiscal capacity. 

Personal Advocacy of Issues.  Members share with their fellow citizens the right and 
responsibility to voice their opinion on public issues. Members may advocate for issues of 
personal interest only when doing so does not conflict with the performance of their official 
duties. 



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 11 
 

TENET 8 

Make it a duty continually to improve the member’s professional ability and to develop the 
competence of associates in the use of management techniques. 

GUIDELINES 

Self-Assessment.  Each member should assess his or her professional skills and abilities on a 
periodic basis. 

Professional Development.  Each member should commit at least 40 hours per year to 
professional development activities that are based on the practices identified by the members of 
ICMA. 

TENET 9 

Keep the community informed on local government affairs; encourage communication between 
the citizens and all local government officers; emphasize friendly and courteous service to the 
public; and seek to improve the quality and image of public service. 

TENET 10 

Resist any encroachment on professional responsibilities, believing the member should be free to 
carry out official policies without interference, and handle each problem without discrimination 
on the basis of principle and justice. 

GUIDELINE 

Information Sharing.  The member should openly share information with the governing body 
while diligently carrying out the member’s responsibilities as set forth in the charter or enabling 
legislation. 

TENET 11 

Handle all matters of personnel on the basis of merit so that fairness and impartiality govern a 
member’s decisions, pertaining to appointments, pay adjustments, promotions, and discipline. 

GUIDELINE 

Equal Opportunity.  All decisions pertaining to appointments, pay adjustments, promotions, and 
discipline should prohibit discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, 
sexual orientation, political affiliation, disability, age, or marital status.  

It should be the members’ personal and professional responsibility to actively recruit and hire a 
diverse staff throughout their organizations. 

TENET 12 

Public office is a public trust. A member shall not leverage his or her position for personal gain 
or benefit. 

GUIDELINES 

Gifts.  Members shall not directly or indirectly solicit, accept or receive any gift if it could 
reasonably be perceived or inferred that the gift was intended to influence them in the 
performance of their official duties; or if the gift was intended to serve as a reward for any 
official action on their part. 



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 12 
 

The term “Gift” includes but is not limited to services, travel, meals, gift cards, tickets, or other 
entertainment or hospitality. Gifts of money or loans from persons other than the local 
government jurisdiction pursuant to normal employment practices are not acceptable.  

Members should not accept any gift that could undermine public confidence. De minimus gifts 
may be accepted in circumstances that support the execution of the member’s official duties or 
serve a legitimate public purpose. In those cases, the member should determine a modest 
maximum dollar value based on guidance from the governing body or any applicable state or 
local law. 

The guideline is not intended to apply to normal social practices, not associated with the 
member’s official duties, where gifts are exchanged among friends, associates and relatives. 

Investments in Conflict with Official Duties.  Members should refrain from any investment 
activity which would compromise the impartial and objective performance of their duties.  
Members should not invest or hold any investment, directly or indirectly, in any financial 
business, commercial, or other private transaction that creates a conflict of interest, in fact or 
appearance, with their official duties. 

In the case of real estate, the use of confidential information and knowledge to further a 
member’s personal interest is not permitted. Purchases and sales which might be interpreted as 
speculation for quick profit should be avoided (see the guideline on “Confidential Information”).  
Because personal investments may appear to influence official actions and decisions, or create 
the appearance of impropriety, members should disclose or dispose of such investments prior to 
accepting a position in a local government. Should the conflict of interest arise during 
employment, the member should make full disclosure and/or recuse themselves prior to any 
official action by the governing body that may affect such investments. 

This guideline is not intended to prohibit a member from having or acquiring an interest in or 
deriving a benefit from any investment when the interest or benefit is due to ownership by the 
member or the member’s family of a de minimus percentage of a corporation traded on a 
recognized stock exchange even though the corporation or its subsidiaries may do business with 
the local government. 

Personal Relationships.  In any instance where there is a conflict of interest, appearance of a 
conflict of interest, or personal financial gain of a member by virtue of a relationship with any 
individual, spouse/partner, group, agency, vendor or other entity, the member shall disclose the 
relationship to the organization.  For example, if the member has a relative that works for a 
developer doing business with the local government, that fact should be disclosed.  

Confidential Information.  Members shall not disclose to others, or use to advance their personal 
interest, intellectual property, confidential information, or information that is not yet public 
knowledge, that has been acquired by them in the course of their official duties.  

Information that may be in the public domain or accessible by means of an open records request, 
is not confidential. 

Private Employment.  Members should not engage in, solicit, negotiate for, or promise to accept 
private employment, nor should they render services for private interests or conduct a private 
business when such employment, service, or business creates a conflict with or impairs the 
proper discharge of their official duties. 



{7623/001/01568285.DOCX} 13 
 

Teaching, lecturing, writing, or consulting are typical activities that may not involve conflict of 
interest, or impair the proper discharge of their official duties.  Prior notification of the 
appointing authority is appropriate in all cases of outside employment. 

Representation.  Members should not represent any outside interest before any agency, whether 
public or private, except with the authorization of or at the direction of the appointing authority 
they serve. 

Endorsements.  Members should not endorse commercial products or services by agreeing to use 
their photograph, endorsement, or quotation in paid or other commercial advertisements 
marketing materials, social media, or other documents, whether the member is compensated or 
not for the member’s support.  Members may, however, provide verbal professional references as 
part of the due diligence phase of competitive process or in response to a direct inquiry. 

Members may agree to endorse the following, provided they do not receive any compensation: 
(1) books or other publications; (2) professional development or educational services provided 
by nonprofit membership organizations or recognized educational institutions; (3) products 
and/or services in which the local government has a direct economic interest.  Members’ 
observations, opinions, and analyses of commercial products used or tested by their local 
governments are appropriate and useful to the profession when included as part of professional 
articles and reports. 

 



EXHIBIT A 











1 

 

AGENDA IT EM – ST AFF REPORT  

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE TWO VEHICLES FOR THE 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $120,000.00 PLUS 
TAXES AND FEES AND EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE THE PURCHASES 

DATE: MARCH 14, 2023 

  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-17, authorizing the City Manager to 
purchase two vehicles for the Public Works Department in an amount not to exceed 
$120,000.00 plus taxes and fees and execute all documents necessary to effectuate the 
purchases? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Mendota (“City”) purchases vehicles for its Public Works Department 
(“Department”) regularly to ensure that the department has reliable transportation in 
order to provide essential services. The 2022-2023 fiscal year budget was approved back 
in July of 2022, and included $120,000 for the purchase of Department vehicles.  
Usually, the City either participates on a government contract purchase process or obtains 
three (3) quotes and then requests approval from the City Council to proceed with the 
purchases. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Currently, due to the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic, the climate and process for 
purchasing vehicles has dramatically changed. Availability has decreased, therefore, 
bringing back three (3) quotes is not practical since most vehicles are not lasting more 
than a few days at the dealerships before they are sold. This has also made purchasing 
through a government contract purchase impossible. As such, staff is requesting that the 
City Council authorize the City Manager to purchase one fleet construction body truck 
for operations, and another full-size SUV for the Public Works Director/City Manager to 
utilize for his duties with a not to exceed amount of $65,000 (plus taxes and fees) for the 
SUV and a not to exceed amount for a fleet truck of $55,000 (plus taxes and fees). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
The fiscal impact for the project will be funded through the water, sewer and general 
funds. Though the amount approved in budget was approximately $120,000.00, it may 
exceed that amount by 10% depending on taxes and fees. 
 
 



2 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-17, authorizing the City 
Manager to purchase two vehicles for the Public Works Department in an amount not to 
exceed $120,000.00 plus taxes and fees and execute all documents necessary to effectuate 
the purchases. 
 
Attachment: 

1. Resolution No. 23-17 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 23-17 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE TWO  
VEHICLES FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS  
DEPARTMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $120,000.00 PLUS TAXES AND FEES 
AND EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS  
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE  
PURCHASES 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota (the “City”) purchases vehicles for the Public 
Works Department (the “Department”) to ensure that Department has reliable 
transportation to provide essential services the community and its residents; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City allocated funding in the City’s approved 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 for the purchase of vehicles for the Department; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the current economic climate surrounding purchasing vehicles has 
made it increasingly difficult, if not impossible, to effectively purchase vehicles in 
accordance with the City’s purchasing procedures in Chapter 2.48 of the Mendota 
Municipal Code (“MMC”); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MMC section 2.48.090, subdivision (E), City staff may 
dispense with competitive bidding requirements where there are “limitations on the 
source of supply, necessary restrictions in specifications, necessary standardization, 
quality considerations or other valid reasons for proceeding without competitive 
bidding. . . .”; and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to ensure that the Department maintains reliable 

transportation to continue serving the community by protecting its health, safety, and 
welfare, it is imperative that the City Council authorize the purchase of these vehicles 
through direct sale with a previously approved “not to exceed” amount. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the City Council authorizes the City Manager, or their designee, to 
purchase two vehicles for the Public Works Department in an amount not to exceed 
$120,000.00 plus taxes and fees and execute all documents necessary to effectuate the 
purchases.    
 
       ______________________________ 
       Victor Martinez, Mayor 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 14th day of March, 
2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:            
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 23-18 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA RATIFYING 
AND EXTENDING THE PROCLAMATION  
OF LOCAL EMERGENCY ISSUED BY THE  
DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
ON MARCH 9, 2023, TO ADDRESS RAIN  
AND FLOODING THROUGHOUT THE CITY 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mendota (“City”) is empowered to protect the health and 
safety of its citizens; and 

 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 8630 and Mendota Municipal Code 

section 2.44.060 empower the City Manager, serving as the City’s Director of 
Emergency Services, to proclaim the existence or threatened existence of a local 
emergency when the City is affected or likely to be affected by a public calamity and the 
City Council is not in session; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2023, the City’s Director of Emergency Services issued 
a Proclamation of Local Emergency (“Proclamation”), which included the following 
Recitals: 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s Director of Emergency Services does 
hereby find that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of 
persons and property have arisen within the City—caused by 
flood, storm, torrential rain, and wind—which began on the 
9th day of March, 2023, and 
 
WHEREAS, these conditions are or are likely to be beyond 
the control of the services, personnel, equipment, and 
facilities of the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, the aforesaid conditions warrant and 
necessitate the proclamation of the existence of a local 
emergency, and immediate action is necessary to mitigate 
potential public calamity; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is not in session and cannot 
immediately be called into session. 

 
(Proclamation, March 9, 2023, p. 1.) 
 



 2 

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees with the assessment of the weather 
conditions provided by the City’s Director of Emergency Services in the Proclamation; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, it is imperative that City staff are provided the necessary tools and 
authorizations to ensure the health and safety of community members within the City; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the aforesaid conditions warrant and require immediate action to 
mitigate potential public calamity as the rain and flooding issues continue throughout the 
City.   
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the City Council hereby:  
 

SECTION 1.  Declares that the March 9, 2023, Proclamation of a Local 
Emergency is hereby confirmed, ratified, and extended until the earlier of:  
 

(1) issuance of a written determination by the City Director of Emergency 
Services that the conditions that gave rise to this local emergency no 
longer present a danger to the community; or  
 
(2) sixty (60) days from the date of this Resolution.   

 
SECTION 2.  Directs City staff to carry out and enforce the provisions of the 
March 9, 2023, Proclamation of Local Emergency, this Resolution, and all 
applicable  
 

  
      ______________________________ 
      Victor Martinez, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 14th day of March, 
2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:            
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: JENNIFER LEKUMBERRY, DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES & ASSISTANT CITY 
MANAGER 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: CALPERS CONTRACT AMENDMENT TO ADD THE SAFETY CATEGORY 

DATE: MARCH 14, 2023  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-19, approving an amendment to the contract 
between the Board of Administration, California Public Employees' Retirement System and the 
City of Mendota, and consider introducing and waiving the first reading of Ordinance No. 23-01 
and scheduling the public hearing for March 28, 2023? 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2016, the City of Mendota (“City”) entered into a contract with the Board of Administration, 
California Public Employees' Retirement System (“CalPERS”).  This agreement excluded the 
safety category as a result of the majority of those safety category employees voting against 
membership.  
 
In the current Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) between the City and Operating 
Engineers Local Union No.3, which represents the Mendota Police Officers Association 
(“OE3/MPOA”), under Article I (E), there is an agreement for a reopener to discuss and consider 
CalPERS, with the intention to implement CalPERS on or around July 1, 2023, contingent on the 
Mendota Transactions and Use Tax Measure (“Measure H”) being approved by the voters in the 
November 2022 election.  Prior Measure H passing, the City Council directed the City Manager 
to move forward with CalPERS for the safety category.  As a result, the City requested a 
valuation report in August 2022.  
 
Measure H was approved in the November 2022 general election to provide additional funding 
for essential City of Mendota services, including, but not limited to, improving parks and roads.  
Measure H implements a new 1.25% transactions and use tax, providing an estimated $493,498 
annually unless repealed, subject to publicly available annual audits with all funds benefitting 
Mendota residents.  
 
The City’s negotiation team met with OE3/MPOA and with City Council separately, providing 
both groups the valuation report which provided projected costs.  Staff was directed to move 
forward with the CalPERS contract amendment to include the safety category and eliminate the 
match for the 401k plan effective the same pay period in which the safety category for CalPERS 
becomes effective.  The City met and conferred with OE3/MPOA and reached an agreement to 
move forward with the CalPERS contract amendment to include the safety category and 



2 

 

eliminate the match for the 401k plan effective the same pay period in which the safety category 
for CalPERS becomes effective. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The City Council of the City shall not include any group in a contract with the Board of 
Administration of CalPERS if a majority of that group’s members vote to disapprove the 
proposed plan.  (Gov. Code, § 20470.)  As such, if the City Council adopts Resolution No. 23-
19, employee ballots will be given to all eligible safety category employees so they can cast their 
vote independently regarding the proposed plan. 
 
Provided by Finance Director Banda:  
Ideally, the Police Department/City Council Chambers (“PD/CC Project”), would be complete, 
and the City would be in the first year of budgeting and paying for the debt service, prior to 
considering implementation of CalPERS for public safety.  With the information NHA presented 
last year, the City would only be able to take on a debt service payment of $125,000.00 if 
CalPERS for the safety category were to be implemented.  Based on the last presentation for the 
PD/CC Project the debt service would be $232,000.00.  It is important to clarify that at the time 
of the presentations mentioned above, the City did not include the American Rescue Plan Act 
funds as a factor and the City did not have confirmation of Measure H passing.  These additional 
sources of funds may have offset the City ability to pay the debt service for the PD/CC, however 
it is important to note that the revenue streams generated from cannabis and sales tax are 
unpredictable.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Provided by Finance Director Banda:  
FY22/23- $9,381.57* (Only including the 2023 pay periods 12 and 13) based on the 12.78% 
employer cost rate. 
 
FY23/24- $129,213.17* based on the 13.54% employer cost rate. 
 
*The Finance Director prepared the fiscal impact estimates by including only the base pay of the 
currently active employees that fall under the safety category.  Once the City is informed of what 
incentive pays are considered reportable compensation by CalPERS, then the numbers will be 
recomputed and they will increase.  Lastly, we currently have 3 positions vacant (1-R-124 Police 
Officer; 1-Police Officer; & 1-Sergeant) which are not included in the calculation, and it is 
important to note that any additional safety positions added will increase the costs respectively.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council consider the information provided and direct staff on 
how to proceed in regard to Resolution No. 23-19 and consider introducing and waiving the first 
reading of Ordinance No. 23-01 and scheduling the public hearing for March 28, 2023. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 



3 

 

1. Attachment 1 – Actuarial Valuation Report for Proposed PEPRA Safety Police 
Plan for City of Mendota 

2. Resolution No. 23-19 
3. “Exhibit” - Contract Amendment 
4. Ordinance No. 23-01 
5. “Exhibit” - Contract Amendment 

 
 



  

California Public Employees’ Retirement System Actuarial Office 
400 Q Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 | Phone: (916) 795-3000 | Fax: (916) 795-2744 
888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) | TTY: (877) 249-7442 | www.calpers.ca.gov 

 
November 2022 
 

Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan for City of Mendota 
(CalPERS ID: 7745628127) 
New Category Actuarial Valuation Report as of November 30, 2022  
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 

Dear Employer, 

Enclosed please find a copy of the actuarial valuation conducted to determine the required contributions if the 
Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota elects to participate in the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS). This valuation is based on a valuation date and a contract start date of November 30, 2022. 
CalPERS staff actuaries are available to discuss the contents of this report with you. 

In the event your public agency elects to contract for the new category, your employees will be entitled to 
retirement benefits as provided by CalPERS per the Public Employees' Retirement Law. The contract for CalPERS 
membership will specify that, to the extent, if any, your employees may claim entitlement to additional benefits 
resulting from prior membership in a different retirement plan, such benefits will be the responsibility of your 
agency alone, and not of CalPERS. 

Required Contribution 

 

The rates shown above will be in effect unless there are further benefit or funding changes. If the membership 
or asset information is significantly different at the actual contract date, or if the actual contract effective date is 
delayed beyond the proposed effective date of November 30, 2022 by more than 90 days, the employer 
contribution rates shown above may have to be recalculated. The contribution rates shown above were based on 
the results of the June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2021 valuations. 
 
The Employer Amortization of Unfunded Accrued Liability will be invoiced monthly, in an amount equal to one-
twelfth of the annual amount, beginning the July following the contract date. As such, the FY 2023-24 payment 
of $0 assumes a contract date during FY 2022-23. The Estimated Employer Normal Cost for FY 2022-23 will 
depend on the number of applicable payroll reporting periods during the Fiscal Year. 

 
In accordance with PEPRA, the member contribution rates shown above are set at 50% of the expected normal 
cost rate for the benefits that will apply to your PEPRA Safety Police Plan during the fiscal years provided. Note 
that the member contribution rate may change over time if the total normal cost for PEPRA members fluctuates 
by more than 1% of payroll in future valuations. 

Fiscal Year 
Employer Normal 

Cost Rate 
Employer Amortization of 
Unfunded Accrued Liability 

PEPRA Employee Rate 

2022-23 12.78% $0 13.00% 

2023-24 13.54% $0 13.75% 

    

Projected Results 
 

2024-25 13.5% $0  TBD 



 
 

Risk Analysis 
 
The actuarial calculations supplied in this communication are based on a number of assumptions about long-term 
demographic and economic behavior. Unless these assumptions (e.g., terminations, deaths, disabilities, 
retirements, salary growth, and investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be differences on a 
year-to-year basis. The differences between actual experience and the assumptions are called actuarial gains and 
losses and serve to lower or raise the employer’s rates from year to year. So, the rates will fluctuate, especially 
due to fluctuations in investment return. 
 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining your rate can be found in Section 2, Appendix A.  A 
list of class 1 benefit provisions used in determining your rate is included in Section 1 of the report. A description 
of these provisions can be found in Section 2, Appendix B. 
 
Please see the Contribution Volatility and Other Risks section of this report for a discussion of factors that can 
lead to volatility in actuarial valuation results, including required contributions, in the future. 
 
If your agency would like to consider other benefit formulas or other combinations of benefit provisions, please 
contact us and we will be pleased to assist you. 
 

Sincerely,  

 
SCOTT TERANDO, ASA, EA, MAAA, FCA, CFA 
Chief Actuary, CalPERS 
  



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

New Category 
Actuarial Valuation 

as of November 30, 2022 
 

For the 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the 

City of Mendota, 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety Formula with 
3-year Final Average Compensation and 

0% Prior Service 
 
  



 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Section 1 – Plan Specific Information 
 
Section 2 – Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation Information  



 
 

Section 1 

C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  

 
 

 
Plan Specific Information  

for the 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of 

the 
City of Mendota  



 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 
Actuarial Certification           1 
 

Highlights and Executive Summary 

Introduction 3 
Purpose of Section 1 3 
Required Employer Contributions 4 
Plan’s Funded Status 5 
Projected Employer Contributions 5 
Subsequent Events 6 

 
 

Assets and Liabilities 

Development of the Plan’s UAL 8 

Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 9 
Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 10 

 
 

Risk Analysis 

Future Investment Return Scenarios 13 
Discount Rate Sensitivity 14 
Mortality Rate Sensitivity 14 
Maturity Measures 15 
Hypothetical Termination Liability 17 

 
 
Participant Data          18 
 
List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions        18 

 
Plan’s Major Benefit Options         19 
 
PEPRA Member Contribution Rates        20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 1 
 

 

 

Actuarial Certification 
This report was prepared in order to provide the employer with information about the cost of benefits and the 
contributions required in order to assist in the decision as to whether or not to contract for the benefits. 
 
Use of this report for other purposes is inappropriate. 
 
Section 2 of this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2021 provided by employers 
participating in the Safety Pool to which the proposed plan will belong and the benefit provisions under the 
CalPERS contracts for those agencies. 
 
As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the pool actuaries have certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of the 
risk pool that will contain your PEPRA Safety Police Plan has been performed in accordance with generally 
accepted actuarial principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, 
and that the assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the risk pool of the June 30, 
2021 valuation date and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth 
in the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for the plan, it is my actuarial opinion that the proposed employer contribution as of 
November 30, 2022 has been properly and accurately determined in accordance with the principles and standards 
stated above. 
 
The undersigned is an actuary who satisfies the Qualification Standards for Actuaries Issuing Statements of 
Actuarial Opinion in the United States with regard to pensions. 
 
 
 

 
TONY CUNY, ASA, MAAA 
Senior Actuary, CalPERS 
 
 

 
 

  

 



 

 

 

 
 

Highlights and Executive Summary 
 
 

• Introduction 
 
• Purpose of Section 1 

 
• Required Employer Contributions 

 
• Plan’s Funded Status 

 
• Projected Employer Contributions 

 
• Subsequent Events



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127  

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 3  
 

 

 

Introduction 
This report presents the results of the November 30, 2022 new category actuarial valuation of the PEPRA Safety 
Police Plan of the City of Mendota. This actuarial valuation sets the required employer contributions for Fiscal 
Years 2022-23 and 2023-24.  

Purpose of Section 1 
This Section 1 report for the PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota of the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS) was prepared by the plan actuary in order to: 

• Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of November 30, 2022; 
• Determine the minimum required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal years July 1, 2022 

through June 30, 2023 and July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024; and 
• Provide actuarial information as of November 30, 2022 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and 

other interested parties. 

The pension funding information presented in this report should not be used in financial reports subject to GASB 
Statement No. 68 for a Cost Sharing Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan. A separate accounting valuation 
report for such purposes is required. 

The measurements shown in this actuarial valuation may not be applicable for other purposes. The employer 
should contact their actuary before disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly 
described above. 

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this report 
due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or 
demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; changes in actuarial policies; and 
changes in plan provisions or applicable law. 

Assessment and Disclosure of Risk 

 
This report includes the following risk disclosures consistent with the recommendations of Actuarial Standards 
of Practice No. 51 and recommended by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP) in the Model Disclosure 
Elements document: 
 

• A “Scenario Test,” projecting future results under different investment income returns. 

• A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results using alternative discount rates 
of 5.8% and 7.8%.  

• A “Sensitivity Analysis,” showing the impact on current valuation results assuming rates of mortality 
are 10% lower or 10% higher than our current mortality assumptions adopted in 2021. 

• Plan maturity measures indicating how sensitive a plan may be to the risks noted above. 

 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127  

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 4  
 

 

 

Required Employer Contributions 
    Fiscal Year 

Required Employer Contributions  
 

 2023-24 

Employer Normal Cost Rate    13.54% 

  Plus     

Required Payment on Amortization Bases1     

1) Monthly Payment    $0 

   Or     

2) Annual Prepayment Option*    $0 
 
Required PEPA Member Contribution Rate 

    

Required PEPRA Member Contribution Rates    13.75% 

The total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan’s Employer Normal Cost Rate 
(expressed as a percentage of payroll and paid as payroll is reported) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued 
Liability (UAL) Contribution Amount (billed monthly (1) or prepaid annually (2) in dollars). 

* Only the UAL portion of the employer contribution can be prepaid (which must be received in full no 
later than July 31). 

 
 Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 

  2022-23  2023-24 

Development of Normal Cost as a Percentage of Payroll1     

Base Total Normal Cost for Formula  25.78%  27.290% 

Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits2     

    None  0.000%  0.000% 

Plan’s Total Normal Cost  25.78%  27.29% 

Plan's Employee Contribution Rate  13.00%  13.75% 

Employer Normal Cost Rate  12.78%  13.54% 
     

Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year3  $850,254  $874,061 
     

Estimated Employer Contributions Based on Projected Payroll   

Plan’s Estimated Employer Normal Cost4  TBD  $118,348 

Plan’s Payment on Amortization Bases  0  0 

Estimated Total Employer Contribution  TBD  $118,348 
 

1 The Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment will be charged beginning the July following the contract date.  As such, the 
FY 2023-24 Monthly UAL payment of $0 assumes a contract date during FY 2022-23.  This payment is only to pay for prior 
service 

2 Appendix C of Section 2 contains the list of class 1 benefits with their corresponding surcharges. 

3 Payroll from the prior year is assumed to increase by the 2.8% payroll growth assumption. 

4 The Plan’s Estimated Employer Normal Cost for FY 2022-23 will depend on the number of applicable payroll reporting 
periods during the Fiscal Year.  The FY 2023-24 amount assumes payments made for the entire Fiscal Year. 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127  

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 5  
 
 

 

Plan’s Funded Status 
November 30, 2022 

1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB)  $3,481,662 

2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability (AL)  0 

3. Plan’s Market Value of Assets (MVA)  0 

4. Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) [(2) - (3)]  0 

5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)]  N/A 

This measure of funded status is an assessment of the need for future employer contributions based on the 
selected actuarial cost method used to fund the plan. The UAL is the present value of future employer 
contributions for service that has already been earned and is in addition to future normal cost contributions for 

active members. For a measure of funded status that is appropriate for assessing the sufficiency of plan assets 
to cover estimated termination liabilities, please see “Hypothetical Termination Liability” in the “Risk Analysis” 
section. 

Projected Employer Contributions 
The table below shows projected employer contributions (before cost sharing) for the next six fiscal years. 
Projected results reflect the adopted changes to the discount rate described in Appendix A, “Statement of 
Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions” of the Section 2 report. The projections also assume that all actuarial 
assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will 
occur during the projection period. 

 
Required 

Contribution 
Projected Future Employer Contributions 

(Assumes 6.80% Return for Fiscal Year 2021-22) 

Fiscal Year 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 

Normal Cost % 13.54% 13.5% 13.5% 13.5% 13.5% 13.5% 

UAL Payment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

For some sources of UAL, the change in UAL is amortized using a 5-year ramp up. For more information, please 
see “Amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability” under “Actuarial Methods” in Appendix A. This 
method phases in the impact of the change in UAL over a 5-year period in order to reduce employer cost volatility 
from year to year. As a result of this methodology, dramatic changes in the required employer contributions in 
any one year are less likely. However, required contributions can change gradually and significantly over the 
next five years. In years where there is a large increase in UAL the relatively small amortization payments during 
the ramp up period could result in a funded ratio that is projected to decrease initially while the contribution 
impact of the increase in the UAL is phased in. 

For projected contributions under alternate investment return scenarios, please see the “Future Investment 
Return Scenarios” in the “Risk Analysis” section. 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127  

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 6  
 
 

 

Subsequent Events 
The contribution requirements determined in this actuarial valuation report are based on demographic and 
financial information as of June 30, 2021. Changes subsequent to that date are not reflected. Investment returns 
below the assumed rate of return may increase future required contributions while investment returns above 
the assumed rate of return may decrease future required contributions. 
 
The projected employer contributions on Page 5 are calculated under the assumption that the discount rate 
remains at 6.8% going forward and that the realized rate of return on assets for FY 2021-22 is 6.8%. 
 

This actuarial valuation report reflects statutory changes, regulatory changes and board actions through 
January 2022. Any subsequent changes or actions are not reflected. 



 

 
 

 

 
 

Assets and Liabilities 
 

 

• Development of the Plan’s UAL 
 

• Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 
 

• Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 
 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127  

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 8 
 

 

 

 

Development of the Plan’s UAL 
1. Plan’s Accrued Liability:  $0 

2.  Plan’s Market Value Assets:  $0 

3. Plan’s Unfunded Accrued Liability: (1) - (2)  $0 

 
 
 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127  

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool                    Page 9 
 

 

 

Schedule of Plan’s Amortization Bases 

 

The schedule of the plan’s amortization bases is below.  
 
• The assets, liabilities, and funded status of the plan are measured as of the date the new category is adopted: November 30, 2022. 
• The required employer contributions determined by the valuation are for Fiscal Year 2023-24. 

 
 

         Amounts for Fiscal 2023-24 

Reason for Base 
Date 

Established 

Ramp 
Up/Down 
2023-24 

Escalat-
ion  

Rate 

Amorti-
zation 
Period 

Balance 
6/30/21 

Payment 
2021-22 

Balance 
11/30/22 

Payment 
2022-23 

Balance 
6/30/23 

Scheduled 
Payment  

for 2023-24 

PRIOR SERVICE 06/30/21 No Ramp 0.000% N/A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

TOTAL     $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
 

   
 

If the total Unfunded Liability is negative (i.e., plan has a surplus), the scheduled payment is $0, because the minimum required contribution under PEPRA must be at 
least equal to the normal cost. 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127  

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool  Page 10 
 

 

Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 

The amortization schedule on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to the 
CalPERS amortization policy. Many agencies have expressed interest in paying off the unfunded accrued liabilities 
more quickly than required. As such, we have provided alternative amortization schedules to help analyze the 
current amortization schedule and illustrate the potential savings of accelerating unfunded liability payments.   
 
Shown on the following page are future year amortization payments based on 1) the current amortization 
schedule reflecting the individual bases and remaining periods shown on the previous page, and 2) alternative 
“fresh start” amortization schedules using two sample periods that would both result in interest savings relative 
to the current amortization schedule.  
 
The Current Amortization Schedule typically contains both positive and negative bases. Positive bases result 
from plan changes, assumption changes, method changes or plan experience that increase unfunded liability. 

Negative bases result from plan changes, assumption changes, method changes, or plan experience that 
decrease unfunded liability. The combination of positive and negative bases within an amortization schedule can 
result in unusual or problematic circumstances in future years, such as: 
 

• When a negative payment would be required on a positive unfunded actuarial liability; or 
• When the payment would completely amortize the total unfunded liability in a very short time period, 

and results in a large change in the employer contribution requirement. 
 
In any year when one of the above scenarios occurs, the actuary will consider corrective action such as replacing 
the existing unfunded liability bases with a single “fresh start” base and amortizing it over a reasonable period.  
 
The Current Amortization Schedule on the following page may appear to show that, based on the current 
amortization bases, one of the above scenarios will occur at some point in the future. It is impossible to know 
today whether such a scenario will in fact arise since there will be additional bases added to the amortization 
schedule in each future year. Should such a scenario arise in any future year, the actuary will take appropriate 
action based on guidelines in the CalPERS amortization policy. 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127  

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool      Page 11 

 
 

Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 

 

  Alternate Schedules 

 
Current Amortization  

Schedule 
N/A Year Amortization N/A Year Amortization 

Date Balance Payment Balance Payment Balance Payment 

6/30/2023 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

6/30/2024       

6/30/2025       

6/30/2026       

6/30/2027       

6/30/2028       

6/30/2029       

6/30/2030       

6/30/2031       

6/30/2032       

6/30/2033       

6/30/2034       

6/30/2035       

6/30/2036       

6/30/2037       

6/30/2038       

6/30/2039       

6/30/2040       

6/30/2041       

6/30/2042       

6/30/2043       

6/30/2044       

6/30/2045       

6/30/2046       

6/30/2047       

6/30/2048       

6/30/2049       

6/30/2050       

6/30/2051       

6/30/2052       

       

Totals  N/A  N/A  N/A 

Interest Paid N/A  N/A  N/A 

Estimated Savings   N/A  N/A 



 

 

 

Risk Analysis 

• Future Investment Return Scenarios 
 

• Discount Rate Sensitivity 
 

• Mortality Rate Sensitivity 
 

• Maturity Measures 
 

• Hypothetical Termination Liability



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation – November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool 
 

 Page 13 

Future Investment Return Scenarios 
Analysis using the investment return scenarios from the Asset Liability Management process completed in 
2021 was performed to determine the effects of various future investment returns on required employer 
contributions. The projections below reflect the impact of the CalPERS Funding Risk Mitigation policy. The 
projections also assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes in 
assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 
 
The first table shows projected contribution requirements if the fund were to earn either 3.0% or 10.8% 
annually. These alternate investment returns were chosen because 90% of long-term average returns are 
expected to fall between them over the 20-year period ending June 30, 2041.  

 
Required contributions outside of this range are also possible. In particular, whereas it is unlikely that 
investment returns will average less than 3.0% or greater than 10.8% over a 20-year period, the likelihood 
of a single investment return less than 3.0% or greater than 10.8% in any given year is much greater. The 
following analysis illustrates the effect of an extreme, single year investment return. 
 
The portfolio has an expected volatility (or standard deviation) of 12.0% per year. Accordingly, in any given 

year there is a 16% probability that the annual return will be -5.2% or less and a 2.5% probability that the 
annual return will be -17.2% or less. These returns represent one and two standard deviations below the 
expected return of 6.8%. 
 
The following table shows the effect of a one or two standard deviation investment loss in FY 2021-22 on the 
FY 2024-25 contribution requirements. Note that a single-year investment gain or loss decreases or increases 
the required UAL contribution amount incrementally for each of the next five years, not just one, due to the 
5-year ramp in the amortization policy. However, the contribution requirements beyond the first year are also 
impacted by investment returns beyond the first year. Historically, significant downturns in the market are 
often followed by higher than average returns. Such investment gains would offset the impact of these single 
year negative returns in years beyond FY 2024-25. 
 

Assumed Annual Return for 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 

Required 
Employer 

Contributions 

Projected 
Employer 

Contributions 

2023-24 2024-25 

(17.2)% (2 standard deviation loss)   

    Normal Cost Rate 13.54% 13.5% 

    UAL Contribution $0 $0 

(5.2)% (1 standard deviation loss)     

    Normal Cost Rate 13.54% 13.5% 

    UAL Contribution $0 $0 

 
• Without investment gains (returns higher than 6.8%) in year FY 2022-23 or later, projected 

contributions rates would continue to rise over the next four years due to the continued phase-in of 
the impact of the illustrated investment loss in FY 2021-22. 

• The Pension Outlook Tool can be used to model projected contributions for these scenarios beyond 
FY 2024-25 as well as to model other investment return scenarios

Assumed Annual Return 

 FY 2021-22 
through 2040-41 

Projected Employer Contributions 

2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 

3.0% (5th percentile)      

    Normal Cost Rate 13.5% 13.5% 13.5% 13.5% 13.5% 

    UAL Contribution $0 $110 $530 $1,500 $3,200 

10.8% (95th percentile)           

    Normal Cost Rate 13.9% 14.3% 14.1% 14.5% 14.8% 

    UAL Contribution $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation – November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 14 
 

 

 

Discount Rate Sensitivity 
 

The discount rate assumption is calculated as the sum of the assumed real rate of return and the assumed 
annual price inflation, currently 4.50% and 2.30%, respectively. Changing either the price inflation assumption 
or the real rate of return assumption will change the discount rate. The sensitivity of the valuation results to the 
discount rate assumption depends on which component of the discount rate is changed. Shown below are 
various valuation results as of November 30, 2022 assuming alternate discount rates by changing the two 
components independently. Results are shown using the current discount rate of 6.8% as well as alternate 
discount rates of 5.8% and 7.8%. The rates of 5.8% and 7.8% were selected since they illustrate the impact of 
a 1.0% increase or decrease to the 6.8% assumption.  
 
Sensitivity to the Real Rate of Return Assumption 
 

As of November 30, 2022  
1% Lower 

Real Return Rate 
Current 

Assumptions 
1% Higher 

Real Return Rate 

Discount Rate 5.8% 6.8% 7.8% 

Inflation 2.3% 2.3% 2.3% 

Real Rate of Return 3.5% 4.5% 5.5% 

a) Total Normal Cost 34.35% 27.29% 21.95% 

b) Accrued Liability $0 $0 $0 

c) Market Value of Assets $0 $0 $0 

d) Unfunded Liability/(Surplus) [(b) - (c)] $0 $0 $0 

e) Funded Status N/A N/A N/A 

 
Sensitivity to the Price Inflation Assumption  
 

As of November 30, 2022  
1% Lower 

Inflation Rate 
Current 

Assumptions 
1% Higher 

Inflation Rate 

Discount Rate 5.8% 6.8% 7.8% 

Inflation 1.3% 2.3% 3.3% 

Real Rate of Return 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 

a) Total Normal Cost 28.79% 27.29% 24.69% 

b) Accrued Liability $0 $0 $0 

c) Market Value of Assets $0 $0 $0 

d) Unfunded Liability/(Surplus) [(b) - (c)] $0 $0 $0 

e) Funded Status N/A N/A N/A 

Mortality Rate Sensitivity 

The following table looks at the change in the plan costs and funded ratio as of November 30, 2022 under two 
different longevity scenarios, namely assuming post-retirement rates of mortality are 10% lower or 10% higher 
than our current mortality assumptions adopted in 2021. This type of analysis highlights the impact on the plan 

of improving or worsening mortality over the long-term. 

As of November 30, 2022 10% Lower 
Mortality Rates 

Current 
Assumptions 

10% Higher 
Mortality Rates 

a) Total Normal Cost 27.65% 27.29% 26.95% 

b) Accrued Liability $0   $0 $0 

c) Market Value of Assets $0 $0 $0 

d) Unfunded Liability/(Surplus) [(b) - (c)] $0 $0 $0 

e) Funded Status N/A N/A N/A 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation – November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 15 
 

 

Maturity Measures 

As pension plans mature they become more sensitive to risks. Understanding plan maturity and how it affects 
the ability of a pension plan sponsor to tolerate risk is important in understanding how the pension plan is 
impacted by investment return volatility, other economic variables and changes in longevity or other 
demographic assumptions. Since it is the employer that bears the risk, it is appropriate to perform this analysis 
on a pension plan level considering all rate plans. The following measures are for one rate plan only. 

One way to look at the maturity level of CalPERS and its plans is to look at the ratio of a plan’s retiree liability 
to its total liability. A pension plan in its infancy will have a very low ratio of retiree liability to total liability. As 
the plan matures, the ratio starts increasing. A mature plan will often have a ratio above 60%-65%. 

Ratio of Retiree Accrued Liability to 
Total Accrued Liability 

November 30, 2022 

  
1. Retired Accrued Liability 0 

2. Total Accrued Liability 0 

3. Ratio of Retiree AL to Total AL [(1) / (2)] N/A 

Another way to look at the maturity level of CalPERS and its plans is to look at the ratio of actives to retirees. A 
pension plan in its infancy will have a very high ratio of active to retired members. As the plan matures, and 
members retire, the ratio starts declining. A mature plan will often have a ratio near or below one. The average 
support ratio for CalPERS public agency plans is 0.82. 

Support Ratio November 30, 2022 

  
1. Number of Actives 14 

2. Number of Retirees 0 

3. Support Ratio [(1) / (2)] N/A 

 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation – November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 16 
 

 

Maturity Measures (Continued)  

The actuarial calculations supplied in this communication are based on various assumptions about long-term 
demographic and economic behavior. Unless these assumptions (e.g., terminations, deaths, disabilities, 
retirements, salary growth, and investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be differences on 
a year-to-year basis. The year-to-year differences between actual experience and the assumptions are called 
actuarial gains and losses and serve to lower or raise required employer contributions from one year to the 
next. Therefore, employer contributions will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of 
investment returns. 

Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 

Shown in the table below is the asset volatility ratio (AVR), which is the ratio of market value of assets to payroll.  
Plans that have higher AVR experience more volatile employer contributions (as a percentage of payroll) due to 
investment return. For example, a plan with an asset-to-payroll ratio of 8 may experience twice the contribution 
volatility due to investment return volatility than a plan with an asset-to-payroll ratio of 4. It should be noted 
that this ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but generally tends to stabilize as the 
plan matures. 

Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 

Also shown in the table below is the liability volatility ratio (LVR), which is the ratio of accrued liability to payroll. 
Plans that have a higher LVR experience more volatile employer contributions (as a percentage of payroll) due 
to investment return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with LVR ratio of 8 is expected to have twice 
the contribution volatility of a plan with LVR of 4. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a longer-term 
potential for contribution volatility. The AVR, described above, will tend to move closer to the LVR as a plan 
matures. 

Contribution Volatility November 30, 2022 

  
1. Market Value of Assets  $0 

2. Payroll  850,254 

3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) [(1) / (2)]  0.0 

4. Accrued Liability  $0 

5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) [(4) / (2)]  0.0 

 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation – November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 17 
 

 

Hypothetical Termination Liability 
The hypothetical termination liability is an estimate of the financial position of the plan had the contract with 
CalPERS been terminated as of November 30, 2022. The plan liability on a termination basis is calculated 
differently compared to the plan’s ongoing funding liability. For the hypothetical termination liability calculation, 
both compensation and service are frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or service accruals 
are assumed. This measure of funded status is not appropriate for assessing the need for future employer 
contributions in the case of an ongoing plan, that is, for an employer that continues to provide CalPERS 
retirement benefits to active employees. 

A more conservative investment policy and asset allocation strategy was adopted by the CalPERS Board for the 
Terminated Agency Pool. The Terminated Agency Pool has limited funding sources since no future employer 
contributions will be made. Therefore, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets and benefit 
security for members is increased while funding risk is limited. However, this asset allocation has a lower 
expected rate of return than the PERF and consequently, a lower discount rate is assumed. The lower discount 

rate for the Terminated Agency Pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 

The effective termination discount rate will depend on actual market rates of return for risk-free securities on 
the date of termination. As market discount rates are variable, the table below shows a range for the hypothetical 
termination liability based on the lowest and highest interest rates observed during an approximate 2-year period 
centered around the June 30, 2021 valuation date. 

 
 

Market 
Value of  

Assets (MVA) 

Hypothetical 
Termination 
   Liability1,2 

 @ 1.00% 

Funded  
Status 

Unfunded 
Termination 

Liability 
@ 1.00% 

Hypothetical 
Termination 

    Liability1,2 
 @ 2.25% 

Funded 
Status 

Unfunded 
Termination 

Liability 
@ 2.25% 

$0 $0 0.0% $0 $0 0.0% $0 

 
 
1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 5% contingency load in accordance with Board policy. Other actuarial 

assumptions can be found in Appendix A of the Section 2 report. 
 

2 The current discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10-year and 30-year U.S. 
Treasury yields where the weights are based on matching asset and liability durations as of the termination date. The 
discount rates used in the table are based on 20-year Treasury bonds, rounded to the nearest quarter percentage point, 
which is a good proxy for most plans. The 20-year Treasury yield was 2.00% on June 30, 2021. 

 
In order to terminate the plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to Terminate. The completed Resolution will allow the plan actuary to give you a preliminary 
termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of the plan liabilities. CalPERS advises you to consult with 
the plan actuary before beginning this process. 
 
This information is intended to give the employer an estimate of the cost to terminate the plan.  However, once 
a plan enters into contract with CalPERS, a plan is prohibited from terminating in the first five years. 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation – November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 18 
 

 

 

Participant Data 
 
The table below shows a summary of your plan’s member data upon which this valuation is based:   
 

 November 30, 2022 

Reported Payroll  $850,254 

Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes  $874,061 

   

Number of Members   

     Active  14 

     Transferred  0 

     Separated  0 

     Retired  0 

 

 

List of Class 1 Benefit Provisions 
This plan has the additional Class 1 Benefit Provisions: 
 

• None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127 

 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Pool Page 19 
 
 

 

Plan’s Major Benefit Options 
Shown below is a summary of your agency’s proposed major optional benefits. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions can be found in 
Appendix B of Section 2. 
 
 

 Benefit Group 

Benefit Provision Police       

Benefit Formula 2.7% @ 57       
Social Security Coverage Yes       
Full/Modified Supplemental       

        
Employee Contribution Rate 13.00%       
        
Final Average Compensation Period Three Year       
        
Sick Leave Credit Yes       
        
Non-Industrial Disability Standard       
        

Industrial Disability Standard       
        
Pre-Retirement Death Benefits        

Optional Settlement 2W Yes       
1959 Survivor Benefit Level No       
Special Yes       
Alternate (firefighters) No       

        
Post-Retirement Death Benefits        

Lump Sum $500       
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) No       

        
COLA 2%       

        

        

 

 

 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127 

 

 
 

PEPRA Member Contribution Rates 

The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) established new benefit formulas, final compensation 
period, and contribution requirements for “new” employees (generally those first hired into a CalPERS-covered position on 
or after January 1, 2013). In accordance with Government Code Section 7522.30(b), “new members … shall have an initial 
contribution rate of at least 50% of the normal cost rate.” The normal cost rate is dependent on the plan of retirement 
benefits, actuarial assumptions and demographics of the risk pool, particularly members’ entry age. Should the total normal 
cost rate change by more than 1% from the base total normal cost rate, the new member rate shall be 50% of the new 
normal cost rate rounded to the nearest quarter percent. 
 
The table below shows the determination of the PEPRA member contribution rates effective July 1, 2022, based on 50% of 
the total normal cost rate as of the June 30, 2020 valuation. 

 

   Basis for Current Rate Rates Effective July 1, 2022 

Rate Plan 
Identifier 

Benefit Group Name 
Total 

Normal 
Cost 

Member 
Rate 

Total 
Normal 

Cost 
Change 

Change 
Needed 

Member 
Rate 

TBD Safety Police PEPRA Level 26.044% 13.00% 25.78% (0.264%) No 13.00% 

 
 

The table below shows the determination of the PEPRA member contribution rates effective July 1, 2023, based on 50% of the total 
normal cost rate as of the June 30, 2021 valuation. 
 

  Basis for Current Rate Rates Effective July 1, 2023 

Rate Plan 
Identifier 

Benefit Group Name 
Total 

Normal 
Cost 

Member 
Rate 

Total 
Normal 

Cost 
Change 

Change 
Needed 

Member 
Rate 

TBD Safety Police PEPRA Level 26.044% 13.00% 27.29% 1.246% Yes 13.75% 



CalPERS New Category Actuarial Valuation - November 30, 2022 
Proposed PEPRA Safety Police Plan of the City of Mendota 
2.7% @ 57 PEPRA Safety with 3-year Final Average Compensation, 0% Prior Service 
CalPERS ID: 7745628127 

 

 
 

Section 2 

 

C A L I F O R N I A  P U B L I C  E M P L O Y E E S ’  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  

 
 
 

Section 2 may be found on the CalPERS website 

(www.calpers.ca.gov) in the Forms and  
Publications section 

 

 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 23-19 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA CONFIRMING ITS 
INTENTION TO APPROVE AN AMENDMENT  
TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE BOARD  
OF ADMINISTRATION, CALIFORNIA PUBLIC  
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND  
THE CITY OF MENDOTA 
 
 WHEREAS, the Public Employees' Retirement Law permits the participation of 
public agencies and their employees in the Public Employees' Retirement System by 
the execution of a contract, and sets forth the procedure by which said public agencies 
may elect to subject themselves and their employees to amendments to said Law; and   
 
 WHEREAS, one of the steps in the procedures to amend this contract is the 
adoption by the governing body of the public agency of a resolution giving notice of its 
intention to approve an amendment to said contract, which resolution shall contain a 
summary of the change proposed in said contract; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the following is a statement of the proposed change:  
 

To provide for a new police member category with Section 
7522.2(d) (2.7% @ 57 Supplemental formula) with 0% prior service. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota, that the City of Mendota does hereby give notice of its intention to approve an 
amendment to the contract between said public agency and the Board of 
Administration, Public Employees' Retirement System, a copy of said amendment is 
attached hereto as an "Exhibit" and made a part hereof by this reference. 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Victor Martinez, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 14th day of March, 
2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:      ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 











BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL  ORDINANCE NO. 23-01 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA AUTHORIZING 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT  
BETWEEN THE BOARD OF  
ADMINISTRATION, CALIFORNIA PUBLIC 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM  
AND THE CITY OF MENDOTA 
 

WHEREAS, by adopting Resolution Nos. 23-04 and 23-19, the City Council 
of the City of Mendota indicated its intention to amend its existing agreement (the 
“Agreement”) with the Board of Administration (“Board”) of the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to amend this Agreement to provide 

CalPERS offerings to a new police member (safety) category with Section 
7522.2(d) (2.7% @ 57 Supplemental formula) with 0% prior service. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Mendota does ordain 
as follows: 
  
 SECTION 1.  That an amendment to the contract between the City Council 
of the City of Mendota and the Board of Administration, California Public 
Employees' Retirement System is hereby authorized, a copy of said amendment 
is attached hereto, marked “Exhibit,” and by such reference made a part hereof as 
though fully set forth herein. 
 
 SECTION 2.  The City Manager of the City of Mendota is hereby authorized, 
empowered, and directed to execute said amendment for and on behalf of the City 
of Mendota. 
 
 SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall become effective and in full force at 
12:00 midnight on the 31st day following its adoption. Within fifteen (15) days of the 
adoption of this Ordinance, a summary thereof, including the names of the City 
Council Members voting for and against it, shall be prepared by the City Attorney 
for publication in the City of Mendota through the Firebaugh-Mendota Journal, and 
a certified copy of the Ordinance shall be posted in the office of the City Clerk.  
 
 
 

* * * * * * * * * * 
 



The foregoing ordinance was introduced on the 14th day of March, 2023 and duly 
passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Mendota at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 28th day of March, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

 
      __________________________ 
      Victor Martinez, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
John Kinsey, City Attorney 

 











 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 23-20 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA ESTABLISHING 
THE FEE SCHEDULE FOR THE USE OF 
THE WILLIAM ROBERT JOHNSTON  
MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mendota (“City”) has the authority to 
set the fees for the exclusive use of City facilities by Resolution pursuant to Section 
12.20.090 of the Mendota Municipal Code (“MMC”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, in light of the recent closure of the William Robert Johnston 
Municipal Airport (the “Airport”), organizations are requesting the City’s permission to 
utilize the Airport; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council to impose suitable fees for the use 
of the Airport that are similar to the those the City currently charges for the exclusive 
use of the sports fields at Rojas-Pierce Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the City hereby adopts the fee schedule for the exclusive use of the 
Airport, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”  
 
       ______________________________ 
       Victor Martinez, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 14th day of March, 
2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A 



{7623/001/01567915.DOC} 

Fee Schedule for the Use of the William Robert Johnston Municipal Airport 
 
 

FEE DESCRIPTION FEE TOTAL 
  

FACILITY USE FEES  
Use of Facility (Private Party) $200.00 per 

application/use 
Use of Facility (Youth and/or Non-

Profit) 
No Fee 

  
DEPOSITS  

General Deposit* $250 per 
application/use 

Key Checkout Deposit* $50 per 
application/use 

 
*Deposit is refundable upon completion of the facility use if all Facility Use 
Permit conditions are met 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Updated March 14, 2023 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: NANCY BANDA, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: GRANTS UPDATE 

DATE: MARCH 14, 2023 
  

GRANTS UPDATE 
 
 Automatic Meter Read Project – Staff will be preparing a final invoice for the grant 

after receiving the confirmation of approval from our last reimbursement. State Water 
Board is requesting more information regarding the second reimbursement request. 

 SB 1383 – Staff will host an educational workshop on Friday, April 21st from 9 am to 12 
pm. Staff will be scheduling dates to conduct home visits to educate the public on the 
new organics law. We are hoping we will have volunteers from the Adelante Mendota 
program.  

 Proposition 64 – The movie night for Adelante Mendota was canceled due to weather. 
We will be rescheduling this event to be held on Monday, April 3rd at Rojas-Pierce Park 
with the showing of “Frozen II”. Staff has completed all quarterly reporting through 
December 2022. 

 Community Resilience Grant – Staff is assisting Townsend Affairs with applying for a 
“Mendota Community Center” This project will be a place to gather when there is a need 
in an emergency but throughout the year a place to gather for the needs of the 
community. This grant is due on March 10, 2023. 

 Floodplain Maps – There will be a site visit with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to 
be held in May 2023. 

 
In – Progress Grants: 
 Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project – County of Fresno, Urban Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program  
 Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project – Per Capita Program  
 Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project – CDBG-CV  
 COPS Hiring Program – Department of Justice 
 Proposition 64 – Board of State and Community Corrections 
 Urban Flood Protection Grant – California Natural Resources Agency 
 Automatic Meter Read Project – State Water Board 
 Tire-Derived Product – Cal Recycle 
 SB 1383 – Cal Recycle 
 Office of Traffic Safety – STEP Program for October 2022 thru September 2023 
 Water Storage and Booster Pump – County of Fresno 
 Floodplain Maps – U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 



455 W. Fir Avenue 
Clovis, CA 93611 

Tel:  (559) 449-2700 
Fax:  (559) 449-2715 

www.provostandpritchard.com  

G:\Mendota_City of-3336\3336OG01_On-Going\100\110 Status Reports\City Eng Council Report.docx 
 

Engineering  Surveying  Planning  Environmental  GIS  Construction Services  Hydrogeology  Consulting 
Clovis    Bakersfield    Visalia    Modesto    Los Banos    Chico    Merced    Sacramento 

Memorandum 
To:   City Council via Cristian Gonzalez, City Manager 

From:   
Michael Osborn, City Engineer 
Jeff O’Neal, City Planner 

Subject:  City Engineer’s Report to City Council 

Date:   March 7, 2023 

Engineering Projects: 

1. Rojas Pierce Park: 
• Construction of Phase 2 Expansion Project (field lighting) with CDBG funding 
• Completed 

2. Well 10 and Water Main Relocation 
• Design in progress; coordination with USBR and BB Limited 

3. Citywide RRXG Improvements: 
• Coordinating crossing improvements with Railroad, Caltrans & CPUC 
• Construction anticipated in Winter 2023 

4. MJHS Safe Routes to School Project 
• Construction with ATP funding 
• Starts: 3/27/2023 
• Complete: 4/26/2023 

5. 2022 Local Street Reconstruction Project 
• Construction with SB1 funding 
• Starts: 3/20/2023 
• Complete: 5/4/2023 

6. Backwash Reclaim Project 
• Design is underway; looking for funding opportunities for construction 

7. Mendota Stormwater Improvement Project 
• Prop 68 UFPGP funded: Final design complete and bidding this month 
• Construction anticipated in Summer/Fall 2023 

8. Derrick & Oller Roundabout 
• CEQA & NEPA completed 
• Design in progress 
• Construction anticipated in Spring 2024 

9. Westside Water Tank & Booster Pump 
• ARPA funded design is underway 
• Construction anticipated in Summer/Fall 2023 

Planning/Development Projects 

1. Rojas Pierce Park Annexation 
• Continuing discussions with USBR about whether and how the WWD land 

retirement program affects the project. 



To: City Council via City Manager  February 2, 2023 
City Engineer’s Report to City Council  Page 2 of 2 

G:\Mendota_City of-3336\3336OG01_On-Going\100\110 Status Reports\City Eng Council Report.docx 

 

2. Regional Housing Needs Allocation 
• Participating in Fresno COG meetings for 6th Cycle multijurisdictional Housing 

Element  
3. Safe Routes to School Master Plan 

• Preparing Final Plan 
• Completion in Spring 2023 

Grant Applications: 

1. 5th Street & Quince Street Reconstruction: 
• $706,251 in STBG funding AWARDED; Construction authorization in FFY 23/24 

2. Amador & Smoot Extension: 
• $874,000 in STBG & CMAQ TPP funds; Construction authorization in FFY 23/24 

On-going (this month): 

1. Representation of the City at FCOG TTC 
2. Coordination of road projects with Caltrans 
3. Assistance to Finance Director for grant opportunities 
4. Coordination with USACOE for Panoche Creek flood study 

Overall P&P Staff engaged (month of February): 

• Engineers: 14 
• Planners: 3 
• Surveyors: 1 
• Environmental Specialist: 0 
• GIS/CAD Specialists: 2 
• Construction Manager: 1 
• Project Administrator: 0 

Abbreviations: 
EOPCC – Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 
NTP – Notice to Proceed 
CUCCAC – California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting 
Commission 
STBG – Surface Transportation Block Grant 
CMAQ – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (grant) 
ATP – Active Transportation Plan (grant) 
RFP – Request for Proposal 

RFA- Request for Authorization (for grant funding) 
FCOG – Fresno Council of Governments 
ADA – Americans with Disabilities Act 
DBE – Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
TTC – Technical Transportation Committee (through FCOG) 
RTP/SCS – Regional Transportation Plan, Sustainable 
Communities Strategies 


	2-28-23 City Council Meeting Minutes
	Warrant List
	Reso 23-12 Staff Report
	Reso 23-12 Attach 1
	Reso 23-12 Cap-Cable Replacement Lozano Lift
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:

	Reso 23-13 Staff Report ACCESS Services (Fresno Superior Court)
	Reso 23-13 ACCESS Services (Fresno Superior Court)
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	EXHIBIT A SHEET
	Reso 23-13 Exhibit A
	Reso 23-14 Staff Report
	Reso 23-14 P P Agreements - 5th Quince (WJH Edits) (01567431)
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	EXHIBIT A SHEET
	Reso 23-14 Exhibit A
	EXHIBIT B SHEET
	Reso 23-14 Exhibit B
	Reso 23-15 Staff Report
	Reso 23-15 Facility Use
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:
	______________________________

	EXHIBIT A SHEET
	FUA 23-01_Redacted
	FUA 23-03_Redacted
	FUA 23-05_Redacted
	FUA 23-07_Redacted
	FUA 23-08_Redacted
	FUA 23-09_Redacted
	FUA 23-10_Redacted
	FUA 23-11_Redacted
	FUA 23-12_Redacted
	FUA 23-13_Redacted
	FUA 23-14_Redacted
	EXHIBIT B SHEET
	Reso 23-15 Exhibit B
	2023

	EXHIBIT A SHEET
	Reso 23-15 Exhibit A - Ex A
	EXHIBIT C SHEET
	Reso 23-15 Exhibit C
	EXHIBIT D SHEET
	Reso 23-15 Exhibit D
	Reso 23-16 City Manager Contract
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	EXHIBIT A SHEET
	Reso 23-16 Exhibit A_Redacted
	EXHIBIT A SHEET
	Reso 23-16 Exhibit A - Ex A
	Reso 23-17 Staff Report
	Reso 23-17 PW Vehicles
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:

	Reso 23-18 Ratifying Local Emergency
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:

	Reso 23-19 Staff Report
	Reso 23-19 Attachment 1
	Reso 23-19 CalPERS Approval
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:      ______________________________

	Reso 23-19 Exhibit
	Ord 23-01 CalPERS Approval
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	Ord 23-01 Exhibit
	Reso 23-20 Fees for Airport Use
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	EXHIBIT A SHEET
	Reso 23-20 Exhibit A
	Finance Director Report
	City Engineer Report

	AGENDA: 


